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The Princeton Review, Inc.
Summary Financial Data
{$ in thousands, except per share data)

Revenue 2006 2005 2004 2003
Test Preparation Services 92,405 87,360 74,297 71,719
K-12 Services 35,694 31,932 28,403 21,525
Admissions Services 12,641 11,252 11,085 11,218
Total Revenue 140,740 130,544 113,785 104,462

Cost of revenue
Test Preparation Services 31,907 27,917 20,809 18,516
K-12 Services 21,703 16,274 8.328 3,533
Admissions Services 5,510 04,251 2,836 2,888
Total cost of revenue 59,120 48,442 31973 24,937
Gross profit 81.620 82,102 81,812 79,525

Total operating expenses 90,312 86,352 87.431 65,634

Income (loss) from operations (8,692) {4,250) {5,617 13,891

Netincome {loss) {9,531) {2,185) {29,495) 4,309

Net income {loss) attributed to
common stockholders {10,048) {4,628} {30,934} 4,309

Net income (loss} per share
basic and diluted $(0.36) ${0.17) $(1.13) $0.16

2004 financials include two non-cash expenses: an impairment charge of $8.2 million to write-down the goodwill associated with our
2001 acquisition of Embark.com, inc., and a $22.1 million valuation allewance against our deferred tax assets.
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Dear FELLOW SHAREHOLDER:

Once again, [ am pucting my thoughts into a format that works well for us in our core businesses.

Welcome to Cracking The Princeton Review, 2006 Edition.

A LonNG YEaARr
2006 was a frustrating year for our company.

For the past year, we have been executing an aggressive plan to simplify the Company and restore
profitability. We've challenged our strategy and worked to refine our operations, re-engineering many of our

processes. But as our results show, the transition has been more expensive and time-consuming than we had

hoped, and we still have a long way 1o go.

ProGress, Bur...
We did make important progress this past year. We continued to focus on driving costs out of the

Company. ‘The last several years have seen our overhead grow rapidly. In some part, this was in direct

response to the expansion of our business, but it also reflects inefficiencies and transitional expenses.

To restore profitability, we made some difficult decisions to streamline operations and reduce staff. We

strengthened our business processes and financial discipline and worked to beuer leverage our technology,
content and rools across the business:
* We overhauled our financial reporting tools and processes, replacing our accounting systems with

Oracle and most recendy, launching our project management accounting, Early this summer, we
g our proj g y
plan to finish systems to streamline the student billing processes, taking both cost and complexity

out of our retail accounts receivable procedures.

+ We consolidated our K-12 sales force, a move that helped reignite growth in sales to districts, while
eliminating ovetlapping territories and the resultant pelitics and costs.

* We consolidated our technology development units, reducing costs and delivering systems that will
produce major productivity savings over the next few years while improving the integrity and quality
of our products.

* We outsourced IT web-hosting operations, which will furcher reduce expenses while improving
performance and reliabilicy.

* Finally, we sharpened our strategic focus and determined that we can derive the best returns on our
brand, technology and assets by focusing on two critical markets: students, and K-12 districts. As 'l

describe, we recently completed the sale of our technology business, Embark, and consolidated the

remaining pieces of our Admissions Services division under the Prep and K-12 Services divisions.
We move forward as a simpler, two-division organization.
Our advances — though significant — did not improve this year’s financial results, in part because they
required considerable time and resources. Moreover, weak performance in our retail test prep courses and

high costs in the K-12 division more than offset the savings generated. On revenue of nearly $141 million,

we lost $10 million, or $0.36 per share.
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Test Prep Goals For 2006
& Streamline marketing
& Grow ttoring and SES

Goaus For 2007
{2 Update classroom courses
{2 Grow tutoring and SES

@ roomanaygNoIEON [ aam

Test PREPARATION SERVICES

As you probably know, the Prep division is our oldest and largest division; it prepares students for
standardized admissions tests like the SAT, and tutors them in a variety of subjects. We also run
Supplemental Educational Service (SES) programs in failing schools. A majority of our work is in

classroom-based courses, but our tutoring operations have been growing quickly.

SES anp Tutorng

After a weak start, the division ended 2006 well. Much of the growth came from SES, where revenue
doubled. A lot of providers burned through a lot of money chasing this market; we moved slowly
while the politics and processes sorted themselves our, and we are now one of the country’s leading

SES providers.

We continue to grow our tutoring business, and we have started to gain momentum on small
group tutoring, in which we match a witor to three students wich similar needs. This business has

tremendous potential.

Crassroom PROGRAM

On the other hand, LSAT and SAT classroom course revenue dropped versus a year ago, and the shortfall
contributed greatly to the Company’s overall disappointing results. The drop in LSAT paralleled the drop
in total LSAT test takers for the year, and the SAT drop followed a year in which enrollment surged due
to a change in the test. Still, we expected better, and accordingly, we are rethinking these programs. In
the months ahead, we will be making some changes to our product features, pricing and positioning in
response to those market shifts. We believe these changes will re-establish growth in those segments.

ADMISSIONS SERVICES

The Admissions Services division helped students and universities find one another and handled
electronic applications for colleges and graduate schools. As noted, we have sold off the electronic
application business, spun off the higher education marketing sales and account management
operations, and consolidated the development of our web site and books into the Prep division.
Moving forward, Prep will also be responsible for online and print tools that match students and

post-secondary institutions.

In the end, the Company will be more focused and predicrable. The Prep division will prepare students
and parents for higher education; this includes tutoring and books, test prep courses and admissions and
financial aid help. The K-12 division will help districts improve instruction. As each scales, we can move

service centers under them o streamline further.




K-12 Services

The K-12 Services division helps school districts improve educational outcomes and build
instructional capaciry through the use of low—stakes formative assessment tied to supplemental rexts

and professional development.

GrowTH RESUMES...
On our financials, you'll see that revenue increased by about 12% this year. We continue to feel
good about our sales force and our ability to produce products and services that are helpful and

attractive to districts.

...PERHAPS ToO FasT
However, we struggled to keep pace with the increasing scale of our business as we resumed higher

growth.

Our assessment platform has serviced many of the largest districts in the country. Burt it was aging,
which made it exceptionally difficult and expensive to service clients. We built its replacement this
year, and launched it in several districts; Assessment Center is a state-of-the-art engine, with great

and marturing tools for our project managers and content developers. However, in serving the two
platforms to new and old clients this fall, we experienced serious glitches with both. At the same time,
our content team struggled to meet the evolving and very complex needs of these districts. As we
provided additional resources to solve these problems and deliver quality product to our dlients, our

margins were negatively impacred.

But K-12 15 FinaLwy PurTiNg 1T ToGETHER

Solving this markert has tried our patience. It took time to position ourselves and hone our product
mix, time to build a solid sales force, and it’s taken us some time to build the right content
development and project management skills that will allow us vo adapt to the ever-changing needs of

the schoel districts we service.

We think we've pur the right team together. That team is working hard at solving the operational
problems and is focused on achieving profitable resules, We kicked off 2007 with a full pipeline of new
business, robust product offerings, an industry-leading platform, and a fresh and energized sales and

management teamn. I've predicted this before, but this is the year this division becomes a solid producer.

K-12 Goats ror 2006

W Standardize & streamiine wodkdiow

Be profitable

GoaLs for 2007

Q1 Sweamline operations
() Market to small districts
(O Be profitabla
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More CHANGES To ComE

To help us finish creating the efficient, effective company I've promised for several years, ['ve asked Howard
Tullman to take over as chairman of the Company. Howard is a serial entrepreneur who has created and
turned around several companies. He is pushing me and the team here to steer more aggressively around
some of the landmines we've been stepping on. Further, I've brought in a consulting team to help us focus

on finding additional cost savings and improving our financial systems and operational reporting.

In closing, we remain energized by the opportunities tha exist for The Princeton Review and believe firmly
that the steps we are taking will insure a longer-term improved company. We've gor a great ceam of smart,
hard-working people, an unrivaled brand in education, market-leading products, unmatched industry

knowledge, and, we believe, limitless opportunities to execute a solid strategy to grow and prosper.

With that said, we still have much more o accomplish as we continue to transform the Company. We will
continue our pursuit of opportunities to improve operating efficiency while continuing to deliver better

outcomes for students, parents and districts.

If you have any comments or questions, please email me ar JohnK@Review.com.
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PART I

All statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not historical facts are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such forward-looking
statements may be identified by words such as “believe,” “intend,” “expect,” “may,” “could,” “would,” “will,”
“should,” “plan,” “project,” “contemplate,” “anticipate” or similar statements. Because these statements reflect
our current views concerning future events, these forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties. Qur actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of many factors, including, but not limited to, the factors described under the caption
“Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to update
publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason, even if new information becomes available or other

evenis occur in the future.

"6, LI NN TY

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, unless the context indicates otherwise, “The Princeton Review,”
“the Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to The Princeton Review, Inc. and its subsidiaries and
predecessors.

Item 1. Business
Overview

The Princeton Review provides integrated classroom-based, print and online products and services that
address the needs of students, parents, educators and educational institutions. The Company was founded in
1981 by our Chief Executive Officer, John Katzman, as an SAT preparation course. Today, based on our
experience in the test preparation industry, we now believe that we offer the leading SAT preparation course
and are among the leading providers of test preparation courses for most major post-secondary and graduate
admissions tests, In 2006, the Company and its franchisees provided test preparation courses and tutoring
services for the SAT, GMAT, MCAT, LSAT, GRE and other standardized admissions tests to more than
129,000 students in over 1,500 locations throughout the United States and abroad.

In 2006, the Company operated through the following three divisions:

» The Test Preparation Services division, founded in 1981, provides classroom-based, as well as oniine
test preparation courses. The Test Preparation Services division also provides tutoring and No Child
Left Behind (NCLB) Supplemental Education Services. Additionally, the division receives monthly
royalties from its independent franchisees who provide classroom-based test preparation courses and
Supplemental Education Services under the Princeton Review brand.

o The K-12 Services division, founded in 1998, provides a range of services to K-12 schools and school
districts (o help primary and secondary school students and teachers measurably improve academic
performance, including online and print-based assessment, professional development, and materials to
support school-based intervention programs.

» The Admissions Services division, founded in 1986, provides marketing services to higher education
institutions, and post-secondary counseling services and web-based products to secondary schools and
school districts. Until February 2007, when we sold this business, the Admissions Services Division
also provided web-based admission products to higher education institutions.

The Company also authors more than 200 print and software titles on test preparation, academic
admissions and related topics under the Princeton Review brand. Books are sold primarily through Random
House, Inc., from which the Company collects fees for advances, royalties and editing and marketing
arrangements.

The Company was incorporated in Delaware in March 2000. The Company’s Internet address is
www. PrincetonReview.com. On its Investors web site, located at www. PrincetonReview.com, the Company posts
the following filings as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission: Annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a)
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or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All such filings on the Investors web site are available free
of charge.

Our Products and Services

Test Preparation Services Division

The Test Preparation Services division provides test preparation services to students taking the following
major U.S. standardized tests.

SAT LSAT (Law School Admissions Test)
GMAT (Graduate Management Admissions Test) MCAT (Medical College Admissions Test)
GRE (Graduate Record Examination) ACT (American College Test)

TOEFL (Test of English as a Foreign Language) PSAT

USMLE (United States Medical Licensing Examination) SAT I

Our Classroom-Based Course Offerings

Our test preparation courses focus on customer service and quality instruction. Our experienced teachers
and tutors generally work with groups of 12 or fewer students in our SAT classes. Qur GMAT and GRE
classes generally have no more than eight students in each class to maximize individual attention and grouping
by similar ability. We have also completely redesigned our LSAT course offerings to offer two options — one
longer and more intensive, and one designed to maximize instruction over a shorter time frame. In 2006, our
GRE and MCAT courses were completely updated to reflect significant changes to these tests.

We believe that an important part of our test preparation courses is the high quality study materials and
the advanced diagnostic analysis that our students receive. We spend significant resources on research and
development to enhance the supplemental materials used in our courses. As a result, each of our students
receives in-depth analytical materials, sample questions, testing drills, model exams and diagnostic analysis of
their progress as they take the course.

Qur Private Tutoring Offerings

The Princeton Review private tutoring program is our most exclusive, customized offering. We offer
one-to-one and small group, high-end admissions counseling and tutoring services for all of the admissions
tests. In addition, we provide individual assistance with academic subjects. Tutoring is chosen by students and
parents who want customized instruction from our very best instructors on a flexible schedule.

QOur Online Course Offerings

Our award-winning online courses are fully interactive and are particularly attractive to students who need
the flexibility to prepare at any time of the day or night and on short notice. The online courses have been
remapped for use by all of our classroom-based and tutoring students as well. Students can take tests, make up
classes, or simply do extra work online on their own schedule. Our online tools have enriched all of our
preducts while providing more flexibility by offering all Princeton Review students the ability to choose their
best and most convenient way of learning as they go through our programs.

Our School-Based Offerings

In addition to offering our standardized test preparation courses to individual students, we also offer our
SAT, SAT II and ACT test preparation services to schools and districts around the United States. The Princeton
Review works with hundreds of such institutional clients to provide test preparation services to their students.
These clients range from remote private schools to large urban school districts and other sponsoring non-
educational organizations. Our institutional test preparation courses are custom designed to meet the needs of
these institutional clients and their students. Using the same materials and techniques, we train our own
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teachers and, occasionally, district teachers, to deliver test preparation, remediation and enrichment to districts
of all demographics. We also offer extensive testing and professional development services.

Additionally, our Test Preparation Services division has teamed up with our K-12 Services division to
become a major provider of Supplemental Education Services (SES) under NCLB. By combining content and
materials developed by our K-12 Services division with our Test Preparation Services division’s teaching
professionals we deliver remediation and enrichment services directly to thousands of students in school
districts throughout the country. Our customized SES services offer students intensive, live instruction related
to Math and English language arts (including reading) within a small group setting. We believe that school-
based services provide a significant growth opportunity in the coming years.

Our Test Preparation Publications and Software

Examples of our books and educational software products include the following:

Cracking the SAT Cracking the AP Calculus Anatomy Coloring Book

Cracking the GMAT Cracking the AP Chemistry Human Brain Coloring Book
Cracking the LSAT Cracking the AP US History Essential High School Dictionary
Cracking the GRE Cracking the AP European History  Cracking the Praxis

WordSmart Cracking the GED Cracking the ASVAB

MathSmart Math Workout for the GMAT Crash Course for the SAT
GrammarSmart Verbal Workout for the GMAT Crash Course for the GRE

The Princeton Review: Cracking the SAT, ACT, GMAT, LSAT & GRE 2008 Editions software

Roadmap to the CAHSEE Roadmap to the Regents Cracking the Virginia SOL Series
(California) {(New York)

Roadmap to the FCAT (Florida) North Carolina Roadmap Series Know It All Series

Roadmap to the HSPA (New Ohio Roadmap Series Smart Junior Series
Jersey)

Roadmap to the MCAS Virginia Roadmap Series Cracking the Texas End-of-Course
(Massachusetts) Series

K-12 Services Division
Services for Schools

The accountability movement, which has gained momentum over the past 10 years and has been codified
by new federal laws, including NCLB, places testing at the center of K-12 education. Performance on these
tests carries important consequences for students, teachers and administrators alike. Students who perform
poorly can face mandatory summer school, a repeated grade, or denial of a high school diploma. For teachers
and school administrators, these tests exert strong pressure on teaching and learning, and class or school
performance increasingly affects the direction of their careers,

The K-12 Services division partners with schools to help them meet these challenges and measurably
improve academic performance. Recognizing that schools need a broad range of products and services, we
offer customized solutions that include formative and benchmarking assessments, professional development,
and materials to support after school programs, Research indicates that the synergy of effective assessments,
improvements in teacher quality, and skill-specific, standards-aligned instruction can significantly improve
student performance, and our goal is to provide schools with the right tools to achieve this result. In 2006, we
worked with the U.S. Department of Education and a number of states and districts across the country,
including: Virginia, Maryland, the School District of Philadelphia, Los Angeles Unified School District,
Chicago City Schools, and The New York City Department of Education.

We provide the following three major solutions to school districts throughout the country. Each solution
can be combined into customized programs to meet the specific needs of each school district.
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Assessments to Inform Instruction

We offer districts interim, low-stakes assessments aligned to their curriculum and state standards. These
instruments can be delivered in traditional paper and pencil format or online through our Assessment Center
{formerly Homeroom.com) platform. Assessment Center is a powerful, web-based tool that enabies educators
to quickly assess students’ academic strengths and weaknesses while providing immediate feedback and
tailored educational resources for improving performance. Results are provided in a timely, usable and
actionable format for teachers, administrators, parents and students,

These assessments have four important features for school districts:

Quick Turnaround. Detailed reports are delivered online, soon after test administration.

Useful Reporting. Our reports are designed to be maximally useful for teachers to guide instruction
and for students and parents to provide meaningful guidance.

Connection to Learning Resources. Teachers, students and parents have access to specific resources
based on actual areas of need. These resources include proprietary Princeton Review lessons and direct
links to web-based resources.

Ties to Professional Development. The Princeton Review works with teachers and administrators to
ensure that they understand the solution, and follows up with the instructional leadership of the schools
to review profiles of learning outlined by the data. In addition, The Princeton Review works with
districts to provide “parent nights” to help inform the community.

Professional Development

We provide ongoing, comprehensive professional development to help teachers ensure the academic
success of their students. Our professional development programs are ongoing in order to continually build
upon knowledge and to ensure proper implementation of skills and resources introduced throughout our
sessions. Programs are flexible and customized.

We offer three main professional development programs:

Ongoing data-differentiated instruction and assessment support. We implement ongoing professional
development programs that focus on using data in the classroom to drive individualized instruction,
with the ultimate goal being mastery in the classroom and improvements on state siandardized tests.
The Princeton Review works with instructional leaders to help them learn how to interpret and use
reports generated through The Princeton Review’s assessments, as well as from their state standards
test, to drive student instruction.

Individualized professional development programs. Using several data streams, from teacher seif-
evaluations to low stakes interim assessments, we create individualized professional development for a
district’s staff, With this program, teachers work in an ongoing manner with a Princeton Review
consultant who helps each teacher focus instruction on the area of his or her students’ needs. Our
consultants help each teacher evaluate data and reports gathered from low-stakes assessments adminis-
tered throughout the program and subsequently recommend individualized professional development in
order to expand each teacher’s knowledge of his or her students skili set.

Product Training. Training is a crucial component of any successful, comprehensive program. Every
program The Princeton Review offers contains some form of training and/or staff development.

Intervention Programs

We offer a comprehensive Math and Reading off-the-shelf intervention program called SideStreets.
SideStreets was designed to meet the needs of struggling students in grades two through eight. SideStreets
provides engaging, guided classroom instruction that reaches students at their levels. The program is uniquely
designed to build students’ essential skills, step-by-siep, so under-performing students can move quickly
towards proficiency.




Aligned to state and national standards, SideStreets is suitable for during school, after school, extended
day, summer school, and SES programs. Program components include a full set of student and teacher
materials that integrate assessment, instruction, and professional development. Prior to and during the program,
certified trainers work with clients to provide professional development to ensure successful implementation.

We also have the expertise and capacity to build custom intervention programs (instruction, assecssment,
and professional development) specific to client needs.

Admissions Services Division

We sell a range of products and services that help higher education institutions attract new applicants and
work closely with high schools to aid them in the college and career counseling they deliver. Qur goal is to
guide students and parents through the challenging transition from high school to college. We also guide
college students to graduate or professional school programs, and offer career advice services through the
information available on our free web site, www.PrincetonReview.com. Additionally we offer more than 70
print titles on these topics. On February 16, 2007, we sold our business of providing electronic application and
prospect management tools to higher education institution customers, previously conducted by the Admissions
Services Division, to Embark Corp. (the “Embark Sale”) (See “Business — Acquisitions and Dispositions.”)

The following are some of the major products, services and tools we offer to higher education institutions,
high schools, school districts and individual students and parents.

Post Secondary Institutions. 'We sell academic institutions a range of marketing options on a subscription
and transactional basis. Colleges and graduate schools may include an in-depth profile about their school in
our books and on our web site for which the institutions pay us a subscription fee. More importantly, we
promote these institutions to students who match their profile. The institutions pay us when these students
request further information. We currently anticipate that we will restructure how we provide these services in
the very near term, as described more fully under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Overview.”

Secondary Schools and School Districts.  'We sell K-12 school districts support for their post-secondary
counseling efforts by offering customizable packages of services that include college counseling advisors, our
college gnidance books and a web-based college counseling support product.

s Post-secondary Counseling Management Tools. Supported by a combination of online and print tools,
we help districts set interim and outcome goals and track the progress of their schools towards those
goals.

s Post-Secondary Counseling Support.  We provide teams of specialists who provide professional
development and counseling services on-line and/or in schools, supporting the efforts of school-based
counselors.

Princetonreview.com visitors. 'We attract students to Princetonreview.com by offering extensive, free
useful tools and content. We leverage our high volume of student site usage through our marketing
relationships with post-secondary institutions, as well as by selling test preparation services to these students.

» School Information. We provide detailed information about colleges and graduate schools, including,
in many cases, students’ opinions about faculty, workload, social life, sports and more. This information
is largely derived from our bestselling guidebooks.

* Major, Career and Other Searches. Through a series of “wizards™ or matching tools, we help students
narrow down their list of potentiat schools, majors, internships, scholarships, and other related
educational and career options.

» Discussion Boards and Communication Tools. We provide a forum for students to discuss college and
graduate school admissions experiences, ask questions of students and administrators on campus, and
obtain advice from Princeton Review moderators.
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» Organization. We help students keep track of information about their prospective schools, and try to
make the process simpler and less stressful.

Our Admissions Services Publications

America’s Best Value Colleges Guide to College Majors

Best 361 Colleges Guide to Study Abroad

Best 282 Business Schools Guide to Summer Programs

Best 170 Law Schools K&W Guide (Learning Disabilities Guide)
Best 168 Medical Schools Parents’ Guide to College Life

Complete Book of Colleges Paying for College Without Going Broke
College Essays That Made a Difference Visiting College Campuses

Graduate School Companion 145 Things to Do When You Grow Up

Qur Franchised Operations

Our classroom-based test preparation courses and tutoring services are delivered through company-
operated locations and through our independent franchisees. Our franchisees provide these test preparation
courses and tutoring services under the Princeton Review brand within a specified territory, in accordance with
franchise agreements with us. The royalties paid to us by our franchisees are comprised of a general royalty
ranging from 8% — 9.5% of their cash receipts collected under the Princeton Review name. Royalties received
from franchisees also include a $27.00 per student fee for use, by their students, of our online supplemental
course tools. Royalities also include a fee of 2% of the cash receipts of our domestic franchisees, for
contribution to a marketing fund. Finally, those of our franchisees that purchased the rights to offer SES
courses in their territories also pay us an 8% royalty with respect to the cash receipts they earn from those
courses. Our franchisees also purchase our course and marketing materials, which they use in conducting and
promoting their classes. Royalties collected from our independent franchisees and revenue from their purchases
of materials together accounted for approximately 3% of our total 2006 revenue.

Our franchisees do not provide Princeton Review Online courses. However, to the extent we provide our
Princeton Review Online courses to retail customers residing within the defined territories of our domestic
franchisees, we generally pay those franchisees a royalty of 10% of all of our revenue derived from selling
Princeton Review Online courses to retail students residing in their territories, net of certain administrative
expenses. We have not entered into any such royalty arrangements with our franchisees for our other web-
based products and services.

We have authorized certain of our domestic franchisees to offer SES programs as part of their Princeton
Review businesses, for which they pay us royalties in the same manner as for other authorized courses. These
franchisees paid a fee in 2005 to reimburse us for an allocated share of our SES development expenses. We
have also established contract terms with domestic franchisees relating to other live K-12 student instruction in
their territories. If we offer these programs in the franchisees’ territories, the terms give us the option to
subcontract a customer agreement to the franchisee and pay the franchisee 853% of the net program receipts or
to deliver the program directly and pay the franchisee a royalty of 5% of net program receipts.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had seven franchisees operating in approximately 18 territories
under the Princeton Review name in the United States and 16 franchises with approximately 50 offices in 20
countries.




Our independently-owned domestic tfranchisees currently provide test preparation courses and tutoring
services in the following jurisdictions:

Number of

_Countles
California. . ... ..o 12
Colorado . . .. ..o e e 8
CONNECHCUL . . . ...t e e e e e e e 7
Florida. . .. ..o e e e e e 57
Massachusetts . . ... ... . e 4
Michigam . ... L e e 4
Nevada . ... . e e 1
New Mexico ... ..o e 33
New York . ..o 5
Ohi0 . e e e
Pennsylvania . ... ... .. e e e 4
Rhode Island . . . .. .. ... 5
L8 3 29

Our independently-owned international franchises are located in Egypt, Guam, India, Israel, Japan,
Jordan, Lebanon, Malaysia, Mexico, Pakistan, People’s Republic of China, the Philippines, Saudi Arabia,
Singapore, South Korea, Syria, Taiwan, Thailand, Turkey and the United Arab Emirates. We intend to continue
to expand our international presence through the sale, in the next several years, of additional franchises,
primarily in Asian, Middle Eastern and South American markets.

Over the last several years, we completed a number of acquisitions of businesses operated by our former
domestic franchisees, as more fully described below under “Acquisitions and Dispositions.” We entered into
new franchise agreements with our remaining domestic franchisees toward the end of 2005. We terminated
one domestic franchisee for various defaults under its franchise agreement in July 2005. We initiated an
arbitration proceeding to confirm the validity of the termination and to recover amounts owed and seek
damages from the former franchisee. The counterclaim against Princeton Review alleges we wrongfully
terminated the franchise agreement and breached contractual obligations relating to the provision of SES in
the former franchisee’s territory.

Acquisitions and Dispositions

On February 16, 2007, we sold certain assets of our Admissions Services division (the “Embark Sale™).
Such assets were sold to Embark Corp. and comprised the business of providing electronic application and
prospect management tools to higher education institution customers, primarily on a subscription basis. The
purchase price consisted of approximately $7.0 million in cash and an earn-out of up to an additional
$1.25 million, based upon certain achievements of the sold business in 2007.

In the last several years, we completed acquisitions of the businesses of a number of our former domestic
franchisees. In October, 2004, we completed a small acquisition of the independent franchise that provided test
preparation courses in Puerto Rico for a purchase price of approximately $130,000. In July 2003, we
completed a small acquisition of 77% of Princeton Review of North Carolina, Inc., the independent franchise
that provided test preparation courses in North Carolina, for a purchase price of approximately $890,000, of
which approximately $760,000 was financed with notes to the seller, including imputed interest. In November
2003 we purchased the remaining 23% for approximately $248,000, of which approximately $208,000 was
financed with notes to the seller, including imputed interest. In October 2002, we completed a small
acquisition involving the assets of Princeton Review of St. Louis, one of our franchisees that provided test
preparation courses in Missouri, for a purchase price of approximately $850,000, of which approximately
$470,000 was financed with a note to the sellers. In 2001, we completed acquisitions of four of our domestic
franchisees for aggregate consideration of approximately $22.8 million.
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We intend to continue to pursue strategies to maximize stockholder value, which may continue to include
acquisitions that will help us further expand our product offerings or grow geographically or other strategic
alternatives, such as dispositions, reorganizations, recapitalizations or other similar transactions. We expect our
acquisition focus to be on companies with complementary products or services, including those businesses
operated by our remaining domestic franchisees that we can acquire on favorable terms. From time 1o time,
we have made investments in businesses with which we wanted to build strategic relationships, and we may
do so in the future, We anticipate that future acquisitions or strategic investments, if consummated, would
involve some combination of cash, debt and the issvance of our stock.

Sales and Marketing

The majority of our students and their parents choose our test preparation programs based on the
recommendations of other students, parents, teachers and counselors. We also build awareness of our brand
and promote our products through relationships with other companies that publish and distribute our products,
including Random House, which publishes and distributes the books we author. We also utilize an institutional
sales force within our K-12 division and engage in some national and local advertising.

In the last several years, we have substantially increased our sales and marketing efforts in order to
market and support our newer products and services, such as our web-based marketing, application and
admissions management products, our K-12 products, our online and institutional test preparation offerings
and our SES programs. Our sales and marketing activities by division are as follows:

Test Preparation Services Division. Nationally, we use mass print media, conferences, direct mail and
electronic media to market our products and services to students, parents and educators. Locally, we and our
franchisees primarily advertise in local and school newspapers, distribute posters and sponsor school activities.
We also conduct extensive free information sessions and practice tests to expose our products to our markets.
Virtually everyone in our regional offices is part of the sales force. They and our regional phone centers
counsel students and parenis regarding specific courses. Qur Princeton Review one-to-one admissions
counseling and tutoring initiative is marketed to high-end customers utilizing a distinctive message and
dedicated marketing resources. Our Princeton Review Online products are marketed through electronic media
and e-commerce partnerships, as well as through our classroom course marketing efforts. We recently
consolidated our school sales force into the K-12 Division, but continue to retain a sales staff for our SES
business. We expect that marketing to educational institutions will continue to constitute a major focus of the
marketing activities of the Test Preparation Services division,

K-12 Services Division. We are marketing our K-12 services to schools and school districts through a
number of channels, including national conferences, direct mail, electronic media and telemarketing. Qur K-12
Services division manages our company-wide sales and marketing force of approximately 30 people. Assess-
ment Center is also integrated in the offerings of, and sold by, our business partners such as Plato Leamning,
Inc. and SchoolNet.

Admissions Services Division. Admissions Services had a dedicated sales and marketing team that
primarily solicited post-secondary institutions to purchase our products and services. Following the Embark
sale, we are reevaluating the sales and marketing needs of the remaining businesses and expect to reassign
remaining staff to our other divisions, as necessary.

Product Design and Development

We believe that successful product design, development and enhancement has been, and will continue to
be, essential to the success of our business. We believe that the strength of our reputation and brand name is
directly attributable to the quality of our products and services, and expect to continue to devote significant
resources to enhancing our current products and services and offering additional high-quality products and
services that are responsive to our customers’ needs.

Test Preparation Services Division. We rely on our development staff, teachers and other education
experts (o create and refine the materials used in our Test Preparation Services division. Our goal is 10 design
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and improve our products in such a way as to offer our students the best and most productive overall
experience, while addressing their preferences and fitting within their lifestyles. We seek to accomplish this
by:

* continually updating and enhancing our test preparation materials and our teaching methods;

* ensuring that our designated personnel take virtually every major standardized test for which we offer
courses, 5o that our techniques and materials remain current;

* performing quantitative and qualitative research into the preferences and needs of our customers;
+ regularly soliciting and reviewing feedback from students taking our courses;

» enhancing the services and functionality of our online test preparation tools and content; and

* frequently updating our standardized test preparation publications.

Overall, we seek to provide a complementary mix of online and offline offerings that students can choose
from to best fit their needs and achieve their goals.

K-12 Services Division. We rely on a team of teachers, educational experts and developers to research,
design, enhance and deliver our K-12 educational products and services, which include, live instruction, online
and paper-based assessments, professional development and publications. Our programs are designed to
provide customized and highly focused resources to improve student performance. Our focus in the K-12
Services division is to continue to expand and refine our offerings to afford schools and school districts the
highest degree of flexibility possible in the mix of products they choose to purchase from us, while delivering
measurable results. In 2003, we introduced SideStreets, an innovative off-the-shelf intervention program, to
supplement our customized programs.

Admissions Services Division. Since launching our Review.com (now www.PrincetonReview.com) web
site in 1994, we have continually expanded the material available and made improvements to its content and
functionality. The online informational materials and tools are developed and enhanced by our authors and
design engineers, through strategic partnerships with third parties and through feedback from guidance and
admissions counselors, We regularly modify and enhance our web site to provide students, parents and
guidance counselors with additional information and interactive tools designed to assist them with the school
selection, admissions and financial aid processes. We also continually strive to provide our educational
institution customers with more effective ways to reach potential applicants. Finally, our publications are
frequently updated by our staff and freelance authors and editors to ensure that new editions are up to date
and include the most current information available on college and graduate school admissions and related
subjects.

Significant Customers

No single customer exceeded 10% of our total revenue in any of the last three years. In the K-12 Services
division, the top three customers in 2006 accounted for 58% of that division’s revenue, while the top two
customers accounted for 56% and 59% of that division’s revenues in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Competition

The markets for our educational products and services are highly competitive. Following is our
competitive landscape, by division:

Test Preparation Services Division. Our Test Preparation Services division faces competition in
standardized test preparation primarily from one other established national company, Kaplan, Inc., a division
of The Washington Post Company. We also face competition from many local and regional companies that
provide test preparation, career counseling and application assistance to students, In the SES market, national
competitors include Edison Schools, Platform Learning, Sylvan (a division of Educate, Inc.) and Kaplan, with
many smaller providers competing with us on a locat level.
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K-12 Services Division. Our K-12 Services division faces competition primarily from the four national
textbook companies, Pearson Plec, Harcourt, Inc. (an affiliate of Reed Elsevier Group Plc), Houghton Mifflin
Company and McGraw-Hill Companies, some of which have acquired online and supplemental providers.

Admissions Services Division. Our Admissions Services division provides a wide variety of products and
services that face competition from a variety of companies that, to different extents, provide products and
services similar to ours for the higher education market. In particular, The College Board, a non-for-profit
membership association, provides a similar range of products and services to the undergraduate market.

We believe that the principal competitive factors in our markets include the following:
* brand recognition;

« ability to demonstrate measurable results;

» availability of integrated online and offline solutions;

« overatl quality of user experience;

« alignment of offerings with specific needs of students, parents and educators; and

¢ value and availability of preducts and services.

We believe that our primary competitive advantage is our well-known and highly trusted Princeton
Review brand, our extensive experience in test preparation and admissions, our innovative, high-quality
educational products and services and our employees. We also believe that our ability to attract students,
parents and educators to our Princetonreview.com web site offers higher education institutions access to a large
body of potential applicants and offers sponsors and merchandisers an attractive source of potential consumers.
However, some of our competitors may have more resources than we do, and they may be able to devote
greater resources than we can to the development, production and sale of their services and respond more
quickly than we can to new technologies or changes in the education marketplace. As a result, we may not be
able to maintain our competitive advantages or otherwise compete effectively with current or future
competitors.

Intellectual Property and Property Rights

QOur copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade secrets, proprietary technology and other intellectual
property rights distinguish our products and services from those of our competitors, and contribute to our
competitive advantage in our target markets. To protect our brand, products and services and the systems that
deliver those products and services to our customers we rely on a combination of copyright, trademark and
trade secret laws as well as confidentiality agreements and licensing arrangements with our employees,
customers, independent contractors, sponsors and others.

We strategically pursue the registration of our intellectual property rights. However, effective patent,
trademark, service mark, copyright and trade secret protection may not always be available. Existing laws do
not provide complete protection, and monitoring the unauthorized use of our intellectual property requires
significant resources. We cannot be sure that our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights will be
adequate or that third parties will not infringe or misappropriate these rights. In addition, there can be no
assurance that competitors will not independently develop similar intellectual property. If others are able to
copy and use our products and delivery systems, we may not be able to maintain our competitive position. If
litigation is necessary to enforce our intellectual property rights or determine the scope of the proprictary
rights of others, we may have to incur substantial costs or divert other resources, which could harm our
business.

We have used “The Princeton Review™ as our principal service and trademark for test preparation services
and related publications and materials since 1982. In the past, Princeton University did not object to our use,
provided we used an express disclaimer of affiliation with the University in connection with most of our uses.
In February of 20035, we entered into an agreement with Princeton University under which it has agreed not to
oppose or contest our use or registration of these marks anywhere in the world and also to provide us consent
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and assistance where necessary to secure such registration, as long as we include the disclaimer of affiliation
with the University in the size and manner specified in the agreement and annually inform our employees and
franchisees of the requirement for use of the disclaimer.

In order 10 develop, improve, market and deliver new products and services, we may be required to obtain
licenses from others. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain licenses on commercially
reasonable terms or at all or that rights granted under any licenses will be valid and enforceable.

In addition, competitors and others may claim that we have infringed their intellectual property rights.
Defending any such lawsuit, whether with or without merit, could be time-consuming, result in costly litigation
or prevent us from offering our products and services, which could harm our business. If a lawsuit against us
is successful, we may lose the rights to use our products or be required to modify them, or we may have to
pay financial damages. We have been subject to infringement claims in the past and expect to be subject to
legal proceedings and claims from time to time in the ordinary course of business, including claims of alleged
infringement of the trademarks, patents and other intellectual property rights of third parties.

Government Regulation

To offer franchises in the U.S., we must comply with regulations adopted by the Federal Trade
Commission and with several state laws that regulate the offeyand sale of franchises. Federal and state
franchise sales laws may apply to transfers and renewals of existing franchises in some circumstances. The
FTC’s Trade Regulation Rule on Franchising, or the FTC Rule, and various state laws require that we
(1) furnish prospective franchisees with a franchise offering circular containing prescribed information; and
(2) in some states, register the franchise offering before an offer is made.

Our existing franchise relationships are subject to a number of state laws that regulate substantive aspects
of the franchisor-franchisee relationship, including:

« those governing the termination or non-renewal of a franchise without good cause;

* requirements that a franchisor deal with its franchisees in good faith;

+ prohibitions against interference with the right of free association among franchisees; and
« those regulating discrimination among franchisees in charges, royalties or fees.

Some foreign countries also have laws affecting the offer, sale or termination of franchises within their
borders and to their citizens. Although unlikely, U.S. federal and state franchise regulation may be deemed
applicable to our efforts to establish franchises abroad. Failure to comply with these laws could limit or
preclude our ability to expand internationally through franchising.

To date, these laws have not precluded us from secking franchisees in any given area and have not had a
material adverse effect on our operations. However, compliance with federal, state and international franchise
laws can be costly and time consuming, and we cannot be certain that we will not encounter delays, expenses
or other difficulties in this area.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 565 fuli-time employees, including 57 in content and editorial, 66 in
administration, finance, legal and human resources, 57 in information systems, 20 in marketing, 34 in sales,
101 in customer support and 230 in our regional offices performing multiple tasks, including sales,
administrative, and teaching functions. In addition, we had approximately 2,900 part-time employees,
comprised mainly of teachers.

None of our employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We consider our employee
relations to be good.
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Segment Information

For financial information relating to our operating divisions by business segment, see Note 12 to our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth information with respect to our executive officers as of March 27, 2007.

Name Age Position

John S. Katzman .. ................ 47  Chief Executive Officer

Mark Chernis .................... 40  President, Chief Operating Officer

Stephen Melvin. . ................. 55  Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Kevin A . Howell .................. 48  Executive Vice President, General Manager K-12
Services Division

Margot Lebenberg .. ............... 39  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary

Young I.Shin . .. ... ... ... ... 40  Executive Vice President, General Manager

Admissions Services Division

John S. Katzman, Chief Executive Officer, founded our company in 1981. Mr. Katzman has served as our
Chief Executive Officer and director since our formation. Mr. Katzman served as our President from 1981
until August 2000. Mr. Katzman is the brother of Richard Katzman, one of the other members of the board of
directors. Mr. Katzman received a BA from Princeton University.

Mark Chernis, President, Chief Operating Officer and Secretary, joined us in 1984. Mr. Chernis has
served as Chief Operating Officer and Secretary since 1995 and became President in August 2000. From 1989
to 1995, Mr. Chernis served as our Vice President, Operations. From 1984 to 1989, Mr. Chernis served as a
systems analyst. Mr. Chernis received a BA from Vassar College.

Stephen Melvin, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer rejoined the company in 2007, having left in 2006.
He had first joined us in 1998 and served as our Chief Financial Officer from 1999 to 2005. From 1996 to
1998, he served as Vice President of Solow Realty Company where he was responsible for overseeing the
property management business. From 1987 to 1996, Mr. Melvin was Chief Financial Officer of Western
Heritable Investment Corporation, a real estate investment and management company. From 1983 to 1987,
Mr. Melvin served as Controller of Private Satellite Network, Inc. From 1978 to 1983, Mr. Melvin was
Assistant Corporate Controller of Paramount Pictures Corp. From 1974 to 1978, Mr. Melvin was a Certified
Public Accountant at Deloitte & Touche LLP. Mr. Melvin received a BA from the University of Virginia and
an MS from New York University.

Kevin A. Howell, Executive Vice President, General Manager K-12 Services Division, joined us in
October 2005. From 2001 1o 2005, Mr. Howell was with the National Education Association’s (NEA) Portal
Company, where he served as interim CEO for a subsidiary providing online training for K-12 educators.
From 1995 to 2000, Mr. Howell worked for McGraw Hill, rising to the position of Senior Vice President,
Technology and New Media. He began his career with Digital Equipment Corporation, where he held various
managerial positions of increasing responsibility, He received a B.A. in Economics from Vassar College.

Margot Lebenberg, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, joined us in June 2004,
From 2003 to 2004, Ms. Lebenberg served as the Executive Vice President, Senior Managing Director and
General Counsel and Secretary for SoundView Technology Group, Inc., a research driven securities firm,
through its sale to Charles Schwab. From 2001 to 2003, she served as Vice President and Assistant General
Counsel of Cantor Fitzgerald, a leading financial services provider, and its subsidiary eSpeed, Inc., a leader in
developing and deploying electronic trading. From 1996 to 2000, she served as Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary of SOURCECORP, Incorporated (formerly known as F.Y.1. Incorporated), a business
process outsourcing and consulting firm, in Dallas, Texas. Ms. Lebenberg began her career at Morgan, Lewis &
Bockius LLP in New York and founded and served as President of Living Mountain Capital LLC, a business

13




advisory consulting firm specializing in corporate development, strategic alliances and restructurings.
Ms. Lebenberg received her JD from Fordham University Schqol of Law and her BA from SUNY
Binghamton. :

Young J. Shin, Executive Vice President, General Manager Admissions Services Division, joined us in
February 2003. From Qctober 2002 to February 2003, Mr. Shin served as the Chief Executive Officer of
eduAdvisors, LLC, an education marketing company. In 1995, Mr. Shin co-founded Embark.com, Inc., a
provider of online college and graduate school information and application services, the assets of which we
acquired in October 2001. Mr. Shin served as Embark’s Chairman of the Board from 1995 until February
2003, as Embark’s Chief Technology Officer from 2000 to 2001 and its President and Chief Executive Officer
from 1995 to 2000. From 1991 o 1994, Mr. Shin was a Technical Specialist and Consulting Practice Manager
at Seer Technologies, Inc. a computer aided software company. Mr. Shin received a BS from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology and a BS from Massachuseits Institute of Technology’s Sloan School of Management.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risk factors together with all of the other information
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K before making an investment decision with respect to our
common stock. Any of the following risks, as well as other risks and uncertainties described in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations and could
adversely affect the value of our common stock.

Risks Related to OQur Business

We have a recent history of significant operating losses and may not be able to achieve sustained profit-
ability if we are unable to increase revenue from our newer products and services and successfully imple-
ment a number of new initiatives, in which case we could experience an adverse change in the market
price of our common stock.

Over the last few years, the Company has invested heavily in the expansion of existing business lines and
the development of new businesses. These investments, combined with Sarbanes-Oxley compliance costs and
rising overhead expense, have driven losses in each of our last three fiscal years. We have incurred net losses
of approximately $10.0 million, $32.2 million and $29.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately
$75.9 million,

In order to achieve sustained profitability we will need to implement changes to existing business
processes, significantly reduce overhead expense and drive profitable revenue growth in cur K-12 Services
Division. The Company is re-engineering processes and systems to reduce our overhead, continue to improve
our internal control management process and upgrade or replace certain critical business systems.

If we are unable to achieve these objectives, we may fail to achieve or sustain profitability in subsequent
periods, in which case the market price of our common stock may be adversely affected.

If colleges and universities reduce their reliance on standardized admissions tests or there is a substantial
reduction in the emphasis placed by federal and state governments on assessment and remediation in K-
12 education, our business will be materially adversely affected.

The success of our Test Preparation and K-12 services businesses depends on the continued use of
standardized tests. If the use of standardized tests declines or falls out of favor with educational institutions or
state and local governments, the markets for many of our products and services will deteriorate and our
business will be materially adversely affected. Additionally, the SES market, which is serviced by our Test
Preparation Services division, is dependent on the availability ‘of federal funding under NCLB. A substantial
reduction in funds available for SES programs under this Act could have an adverse effect on our operating
results.
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Our contracts with schools, school districts, municipal agencies and other governmental bodies present
several risks, including the nature and timing of revenue recognition, which, combined with fixed
expenses, puts a strain on our working capital requirements.

As the Company has grown over the last several years, we have begun to enter into more and more
contracts with schools, school districts, municipal agencies, and other governmental bodies. These contracts
present several types of risks and uncertainties. Many of our contracts with school districts are school-year
contracts subject to annual renewal at the option of the school district, and in many instances the school
district can terminate or modify the contracts at their convenience. Any number of factors could cause a school
district to terminate or fail to renew a contract or otherwise affect a school district’s willingness to contract
with us, including negative publicity (whether or not the reason for such publicity is within our control) and
changes in the composition of local school boards or changes in school district administration. Any termination
or non-renewal of a contract with a schoo! district could have an adverse effect on cur results of operations,
and a termination or non-renewal caused by our failure to improve the poor academic performance of students
enrolled in our programs could adversely affect our ability to secure contracts with other school districts.

Additionally, the approval processes of some of our customers in this area, which are required for formal
contract execution, are lengthy and cumbersome and, in many cases, are not completed prior to the time we
begin performance. This means that we, at times, incur substantial costs prior to the format execution of these
agreements by the customer. While to date we have found that, following the award of the contract to us, final
approval required for the customer to sign the agreement is usually a formality, our revenue recognition
policies preclude us from recognizing revenue from these contracts until there is a final agreement binding on
the customer. Costs, however, are recorded as incurred, whether or not the contract is signed. While we try not
to incur significant costs until we are awarded a project and we do everything possible to expedite the formal
execution of these agreements by the customer, the timing of this final step is outside our control. Until such
time as we transition over to a school-based fiscal year our current calendar-based fiscal year makes it more
difficult for us to forecast quarterly revenue streams from these contracts. This may make it more difficult for
us to deliver operating results in line with analysts’ forecasts, and could therefore adversely affect our stock
price.

Because our customers are often unable to begin payment for services until formal approval of the
agreement, this delay in formal contract execution may also cause our cash balances to fluctuate significantly
from period to period and may expose us to credit risk. We believe that we may be able to recover monies
owed from a customer for which we have performed services but who fails to render payment in the absence
of a signed contract based on several legal theories designed to prevent unjust enrichment. However, this basis
of recovery may not be available in all jurisdictions where we enter into these contracts, or may limit our
recovery with respect to amounts or timing. Accordingly, the absence of a signed agreement may, depending
on the laws of the applicable jurisdiction, make it substantially more difficult or impossible for us to recover
sums due to us under these agreements. While we have not experienced a default by a customer under such
circumstances to date, and believe that the nature of the parties with which we are contracting makes such a
default less likely, it is a possibility that such circumstances may arise in the future with respect to one or
more of these contracts.

We face risks related to the implementation of a new technolagy platform in our K-12 Services division in
2007.

During 2007, we will be migrating our K-12 customers to a new technology platform. The migration will
entail technical risk and expense, may divert management attention and may cause disruption to us or our
customers. For example, there is a risk that the new platform will not be able to handle existing customers and
scale to support new ones. Additionally, any customers who we are not able to migrate for technical reasons or
otherwise will have to utilize the legacy platform during 2007, which will require us to incur the added
expense of operating two systems simultaneously. Any such difficulties could make the migration more
expensive and disrupt our business.
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If we fail to comply with applicable state and federal regulations, we may face government sanctions and
other adverse consequences,

As a result of providing services funded by government programs, we are subject to increased state and
federal regulation. Compliance with state and federal regulations can be costly and time consuming, and we
cannot be sure that we will not encounter delays, expenses or other difficulties. Further, our failure to comply
with these regulations could result in financial penalties, restrictions on our operations, reputational harm and
decreased ability to secure contracts in other jurisdictions.

We face intense competition that could adversely affect our revenue, profitability and market share.

The markets for our products and services are highly competitive, and we expect increased competition in
the future that could adversely affect our revenue, profitability and market share. Our current competitors
include but are not limited to:

* providers of online and offline test preparation and tutoring services;
» companies that provide SES services;

* companies that provide print, software, web-based and other educational assessment and supplemental
products and services to districts and states in the highly competitive K-12 market; and

* companies that offer both face-to-face and web-based products and services to assist individuals and
educational organizations with counseling or recruiting.

Some of our competitors may have more resources than we do, These competitors may be able to devoie
greater resources than we can to the development, promotion and sale of their services and respond more
quickly than we can to new technologies or changes in customer preferences. We may not be able to maintain
our competitive position or otherwise compete effectively with current or future competitors, especially those
with significantly greater resources.

Some of our competitors that provide K-12 educational products and services may have more experience,
larger customer bases and greater brand recognition in that market. Further, established companies with high
brand recognition and extensive experience providing various educational products to the K-12 market may
develop products and services that are competitive with ours.

Negative developments in school funding or education laws could reduce our institutional revenue.

We expect to derive a growing portion of our revenue from sales of our products and services to
educational institutions, including our K-12 Services division’s offerings, high school counseling products,
SES programs and institutional test preparation offerings. Our ability to generate revenue from these sources
may be adversely affected by decreased government funding of education. Public school funding is heavily
dependent on support from federal, state and local governments and is sensitive to government budgets. In
addition, the government appropriations process is often slow and unpredictable. Funding difficulties also
could cause schools to be more resistant to price increases in our products, compared to other businesses that
might be better able to pass on price increases to their customers.

Although SES is a potentially sizeable opportunity, this market depends on federal, state, city and school
district politics, all of which are in constant flux. As a result of opposition to NCLB mandates, we have cut
back the number of school districts in which we offer an SES program in order to focus on the districts that
we consider most SES-friendly. Qur ability to expand services in the SES market will depend on the level of
acceptance and cooperation by school districts even if government funding for SES remains at the current
level.
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The ineffectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting could result in a loss of investor confi-
dence in our financial reports and have an adverse effect on our stock price.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Section 404™), and the rules and regulations
promulgated by the SEC to implement Section 404, we are required to include in our Form 10-K an annual
report by our management regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. The
report includes, among other things, an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of the end of our fiscal year. This assessment must include disclosure of any material weaknesses
in our internal control over financial reporting identified by management.

As of December 31, 2006, our internal control over financial reporting was ineffective due to the presence
of material weaknesses, as more fully described in Item 9.A of this Form 10-K. This could result in a loss of
investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, which may have an adverse
effect on our stock price.

Our business is subject to seasonal fluctuations, which may cause our operating results to fluctuate from
quarter to quarter. This may result in volatility or adversely affect our stock price.

We experience, and expect 1o continue to experience, seasonal fluctuations in our revenue because the
markets in which we operate are subject to seasonal fluctuations based on the scheduled dates for standardized
admissions tests and the typical school year. These fluctuations could result in volatility or adversely affect our
stock price. We typically generate the largest portion of our test preparation revenue in the third quarter.
However, as SES revenues increase, we expect to recognize these revenues primarily in the first and fourth
quarters. Our K-12 Services division also experiences seasonal fluctuations in revenue, with the first and fourth
quarters {corresponding to the school year) expected to have the highest revenue.

Our quarterly operating results are not indicative of future performance and are difficult to forecast.

Qur quarterly operating results may not meet expectations of public market analysts or investors, which
could cause our stock price to decline. In addition to the seasonal fluctuations described above, our operating
results may vary from quarter to quarter in response to a variety of other factors beyond our control,
including:

* our customers’ spending patterns, which, in some cases, are difficult to predict;

+ the timing of school districts’ funding sources and budget cycles;

« the timing of signing, expirations and renewals of educational institution contracts;

« variations in product mix, particularly in the case of our K-12 Services division;

= the timing of corporate sponsorships and advertising; and

*» non-recurring charges incurred in connection with acquisitions or other extraordinary transactions.

Due to these factors, we believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results may not be
indicative of our future performance and you should not rely on them to predict the future performance of our
stock price. In addition, our past results may not be indicative of future performance because several of our
businesses were introduced or acquired relatively recently.

Loss of significant customers could significantly adversely affect our revenue or cause disruptions in our
operations.

As the business of our K-12 Services division has evolved, the contracts entered into with school districts
have generally increased in size. As a result, three customers in 2006 and two customers in 20035 accounted
for 58% and 56% of that division's revenue, respectively. The loss of one or more such customers could
significantly adversely affect our revenue. Additionally, we rely on Random House as the publisher and
distributor of all of the books we write, Rovalties and other fees from books authored by us and published and
distributed by Random House represented approximately 3% of our revenue in each of 2006 and 2005.
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Accordingly, termination of our relationship with Random House could adversely affect our revenue and cause
disruption in our operations.

If we are not able to continually enhance our web-based products and services and adapt them to changes
in technology, our future revenue growth could be adversely affected.

If our improvement and adaptation of our web-based products and services is delayed, results in systems
interruptions or is not aligned with market expectations or preferences, our revenue growth could be adversely
affected. The online environment is rapidly evolving, and the technology used in web-based products changes
quickly. We must therefore be able to quickly modify our solutions to adapt to emerging online standards and
practices, technological advances, and changing user and sponsor preferences. Ongoing enhancement of our
web site, web-based products and related technology will entail significant expense and technical risk. We
may use new technologies ineffectively or fail to adapt our web site, web-based products and related
technology on a timely and cost-effective basis.

If our domestic franchisees contest our interpretation of our agreements with them, our ability to offer
our products in the domestic franchisees’ territories could be adversely affected, which could adversely
affect our revenue.

If our domestic franchisees contest our interpretation of our rights and obligations under our existing
agreements with them, then our ability to deliver our products and services within their franchise territories
could be hindered, and our revenue could be adversely affected. Through a series of franchise agreements and
other agreements, our independent franchisees have various rights to provide test preparation products and
services under the Princeton Review brand within specified territories, and to use our trademarks and other
intetlectual property in connection with providing these services. Similarly, we have various rights to market
and sell our products and services in the franchisees’ territories. Our agreements have been reviewed and
renegotiated to accommodate our business goals and the goals of our franchisees as they have both developed
over the years.

If we do not adequately protect the intellectual property rights to our products and services, we may lose
these rights and our business may suffer materially.

Failure to protect our intellectual property could materially adversely affect our business. We depend on
our ability to protect our brand, our products and services and the systems that deliver those products and
services to our customers. We rely on a combination of copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as wel! as
confidentiality agreements and licensing arrangements, to protect these products. These intellectual property
rights distinguish our products and services from those of our competitors. If others are able to copy, use and
market these products and delivery systems, then we may not be able to maintain our competitive position.
Despite our best efforts, we cannot assure you that our intellectual property rights will not be infringed,
violated or legally imitated. Existing laws do not provide complete protection and policing the unauthorized
use of our products and services requires significant resources.

If our products and services infringe the intellectual property rights of others, this may result in costly lit-
igation or the loss of our own intellectual property rights, which could materially adversely affect our
business.

Competitors and others have claimed and may claim in the future that we have infringed their intellectual
property rights. The defense of any lawsuit, whether with or without merit, could be time-consuming and
costly. If a lawsuit against us is successful, we may lose, or be limited in, the rights to offer our products and
services. Any proceedings or claims of this type could materially adversely affect our business.

18




We may be held liable for the content of materials that we author, content available on our web site or
products sold through our web site.

We may be subject to claims for defamation, negligence, copyright or trademark infringement or other
legal theories based on the content of materials that we author, and content that is published on or downloaded
from our web sites, accessible from our web sites through links to other web sites or posted by our users in
chat rooms or bulletin boards. These types of claims have been brought, sometimes successfully, against online
services as well as print publications in the past. Although we carry general liability insurance, our insurance
may not cover potential claims of this type, such as trademark infringement or defamation, or may not be
adequate to cover all costs incurred in defense of potential claims or to indemnify us for all liability that may
be imposed. In addition, these claims, with or without merit, would result in diversion of our management
personnel and financial resources. Further, if print publications that we author contain material that customers
find objectionable, these publications may have to be recalled, which could result in lost revenue and adverse
publicity.

The loss of our senior management could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We depend on the continued service of our senior management. The loss of our Chief Executive Officer,
John Katzman or our President and Chief Operating Officer, Mark Chernis, could materially adversely affect
our business. In addition, in recent periods, we have experienced turnover at the Chief Financial Officer
position, with two CFO departures within the last 18 months. Our current CFQ, Stephen Melvin, is serving in
that position on an interim basis. This has resulted in instability and has made it difficult for us to achieve
objectives we have set for the finance department, including implementation of internal control improvements.
If we are unable to solidify the CFO function, we will likely continue to experience inefficiencies and
instability in the finance department. In addition, our President and Chief Operating Officer has assumed the
role of interim division President of Test Preparation Services, leaving our executive team thinly stretched.

Our business may be harmed by actions taken by our franchisees that are outside our control.

Approximately 3% of our 2006 revenue was derived from royalties paid to us by our franchisees and
from sales of our course and marketing materials to these franchisees. If our franchisees do not successfully
provide test preparation services in a manner consistent with our standards and requirements, including failing
to hire and train qualified managers or instructors or failing to abide by all applicable laws and regulations,
our image and reputation may suffer and our revenue could decline.

Franchise regulations could limit our ability to terminate or replace unproductive franchises, which could
adversely affect our results of operations, and could limit our ability to expand internationally through
Jfranchising.

Applicable laws may delay or prevent us from terminating an unproductive franchise or withholding
consent to renewal or transfer of a franchise, which could have an adverse effect on franchise royalties. We
are subject to both federal and state laws regulating the offer and sale of franchises. These laws also frequently
apply substantive standards to the relationship between franchisor and franchisee and limit the ability of a
franchisor to terminate or refuse to renew a franchise. Some foreign countries also have laws affecting the
offer and sale of franchises within their borders and to their citizens and U.S. federal and state franchise
regulation may be applicable to our efforts to establish franchises abroad. Failure to comply with these laws
could limit or preclude our ability to expand internationally through franchising.

Compliance with federal, state and international franchise laws can be costly and time consuming, and we
cannot be certain that we will not encounter delays, expenses or other difficulties in this area. Further, the
nature and effect of any future legislation or regulation of our franchise operations cannot be predicted.
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The terms of our secured credit facility restrict us from engaging in many activities and require us to sat-
isfy various financial tests. We expect that any credit facilities that we obtain in the future will contain
similar restrictions and requirements.

Our secured credit facility contains covenants that restrict, among other things, our ability to incur
additional debt, sell our assets, merge with or acquire another entity, pay cash dividends, create liens, change
our fundamental organization or lines of business, make investments and engage in transactions with affiliates,
and contains events of default that are triggered, among other things, if we breach these covenants or if we
fail to make payments when due under the credit facility, all of which may adversely affect our ability to grow
and to pursue new business opportunities. The secured credit facility also requires us to maintain specific
financial thresholds. Events beyond our control could affect our ability to meet those financial thresholds, and
we cannot assure you that we will meet them. A breach of any of the covenants contained in our secured
credit facility could allow the lenders to declare all amounts outstanding under the secured credit facility to be
immediately due and payable. We have pledged substantially all of our assets to the lenders as coliateral under
our secured credit facility. The lenders could proceed against the collateral granted to them if we are unable to
meet our debt service obligations. If the amounts outstanding under our secured credit facility are accelerated,
we may be forced to restructure or refinance our obligations, obtain equity financing or sell assets, which we
may be unable to accomplish in a timely manner, on terms satisfactory to us or at all. If we are unable to
restructure or refinance our obligations, we may default under our obligations. In order to replace our existing
secured credit facility or raise additional capital, we may seek to obtain one or more credit facilities in the
future. We expect that any credit facilities we enter into in the future will contain restrictions and requirements
similar to those described above.

If we are unable to obtain additional capital, our business may be adversely affected.

In the future, we may require substantial additional capital to finance ongoing operations or the growth of
our business. To the extent that our existing sources of liquidity, cash flow from operations and anticipated
credit line are insufficient to fund our activities, we may need to raise additional funds.

We cannot be certain that we will be able to obtain needed financing on favorable terms. If we fail to
raise additional funds, we may need to sell debt or additional equity securitics or to reduce our growth to a
level that can be supported by our cash flow. Without additional capital, we may not be able to:

* further develop or enhance our services and products;

* acquire necessary technologies, products or businesses;

» expand operations in the United States or internationally;
* hire, train and retain employees;

* market our services and products; or

* respond to competitive pressures or unanticipated capital requirements.
resp p p q

Charges related to completed acquisitions could negatively affect our results of operations.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (SFAS 142), Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,
requires goodwill and other intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life to be reviewed at least annually
for impairment. To the extent these assets are deemed to be impaired, they must be written down. At
December 31, 2004, we wrote down $8.2 million in goodwill associated with our acquisition of Embark.com,
Inc., due to the Admission Services division’s poor performance. Any future write down of goodwill, while
noncash, would similarly adversely affect our operating results. As of December 31, 2006, we had unamortized
goodwill of $31.5 million related to acquisitions.

We may engage in future acquisitions that could dilute the equity interest of our stockholders, increase
our debt or cause us to assume contingent liabilities, all of which may have a detrimental effect on the

20




price of our common stock. If any acquisitions are not successfully integrated with our business, our
ongoing operations could be negatively affected.

We may acquire the businesses of one or more of our remaining domestic franchisees or other businesses,
products or technologies in the future. To facilitate future acquisitions, we may take actions that could have a
detrimental effect on our financial condition, results of operations ot the price of our common stock,
including:

* issuing equity securities or convertible debt securities, which would dilute current stockholders’
percentage ownership;

= incurring substantial debt; or

« assuming contingent labilities.

Acquisitions also entail numerous business risks, including:

+ difficulties in assimilating acquired operations, technologies or products;

* unanticipated costs that could materially adversely affect our results of operations;

* negative effects on our reported results of operations from acquisition related charges and amortization
of acquired technology and other intangibles;

* diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;

» adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers and customers;

* risks of entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience; and

« the potential inability to retain and motivate key employees of acquired businesses.
We may undertake divestitures that may limit our ability to manage and maintain our business and may
adversely affect our business.

We may undertake sales or other strategic dispositions or alternatives relating to certain businesses or
operations to attemnpt to maximize stockholder value. These transactions involve a number of risks, including:

+ Diversion of management attention and transaction costs associated with negotiating and closing the
transaction;

* Inability to retain customers, management, key personnel and other employees due to the altered nature
of our businesses after such transaction;

» Inability to realize the benefits of divestitures and collect monies owed to us; and

* Failure to realize the highest value of the divested business because we are selling it before its full
potential has been achieved.

We could be liable for events that occur at facilities that we use to provide our services, and a liability
claim against us could adversely affect our reputation and our financial results.

We could become liable for the actions of instructors and other personnel at the facilities we use to
provide our classroom-based services. In the event of on-site accidents, injuries or other harm to students, we
could face claims alleging that we were negligent, provided inadequate supervision or were otherwise liable
for the injuries. Although we maintain liability insurance, this insurance coverage may not be adequate to
protect us fully from these claims. In addition, we may not be able to obtain liability insurance in the future at
reasonable prices or at all. A successful liability claim could adversely affect our reputation and our financial
results. Even 1f unsuccessful, such a claim could cause unfavorable publicity, entail substantial expense and
divert the time and attention of key management personnel.
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If we experience system failures, our reputation may be harmed and users may seek alternate service pro-
viders causing us to lose revenue.

If our primary and backup computer systems were to fail or be disrupted, our services could be
interrupted and we may lose revenue and future business. We depend on the efficient and uninterrupted
operation of our computer and communications hardware and software systems, These systems and operations
are vulnerable to damage or interruption from floods, fires and power loss and similar events, as well as
computer viruses, break-ins, sabotage, intentional acts of terrorism, vandalism and other misconduct and
disruptions or delays occurring throughout the Internet network infrastructure. Although all of our material
systems are redundant, short-term service interruptions may take place if our primary systems were to fail or
be disrupted and we are forced to transition to backup systems. Our computer hardware necessary for our
online operations is currently Jocated al two professional data centers; one in White Plains, NY, and the other
in Westminster, MD, which is operated by Random House. Both facilities have redundancy for power, A/C
and internet access. Accordingly, our online operations are dependent on our ability to maintain our systems in
effective working order and to protect them from disruptive events. We do not have a formal disaster recovery
plan, and our insurance policies may not adequately compensate us for any losses that may occur due to
failures of or interruptiens in our systems.

In addition, the system failures of third party Internet service providers could produce interruptions in our
service for those users who access our services through these third party providers. Service interruptions could
reduce our revenue and our future revenue will be harmed if our users believe that our system is unreliable.

If our systems are unable to accommodate a high volume of traffic on our web site, the growth of our
revenue could be reduced or limited.

If use of our web site infrastructure increases beyond our capacity, customers may experience delays and
interruptions in service. As a result, they may seek the products and services of our competitors and the
growth of our revenue could be reduced or limited. Because we seek to generate a high volume of traffic and
accommodate a large number of customers on our web site, the satisfactory performance, reliability and
availability of our web site, processing systems and network infrastructure are critical to our reputation and
our ability to serve our customers. If use of our web site continues to increase, we will need to expand and
upgrade our technology, transaction processing systems and network infrastructure. While slower response
times have not had a material effect on our results of operations to date, our web sites have in the past and
may in the future experience slower response times due to increased traffic.

Future regulations or the interpretation of existing laws pertaining to the Internet could decrease the
demand for our producis or increase the cost of doing business.

Any new law or regulation pertaining to the Internet, or the application or interpretation of existing laws,
could increase our cost of doing business, decrease the demand for our products and services, or otherwise
harm our business. We must comply with a variety of federal and state laws affecting the content of materials
distributed over the Internet, as well as regulations and other laws restricting the collection, use and disclosure
of personal information that we may obtain in the course of providing our online services. In particular, we
must comply with the Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act, which, as implemented, mandates that we
obtain verifiable, informed parental consent before we collect, use or disclose personal infoermation from
children under the age of 13. Future laws or regulations may relate to information retrieved from or
transmitted over the Internet, consumer protection, online content, user privacy, taxation and the quality of
products and services. Compliance with future laws and regulations, or existing laws as they may be
interpreted in the future, could be expensive, time consuming, impractical or impossible.

We may be liable for invasion of privacy or misappropriation by others of our users’ information, which
could adversely affect our reputation and financial results.

Some of our services require the disclosure of sensitive information by the user. We rely on a number of
security systems for our services to protect this information from unauthorized use or access. If the security

22




measures that we use to protect personal information or credit card information are ineffective, we may be
subject to liability, including claims for invasion of privacy, impersonation, unauthorized purchases with credit
card information or other similar claims. In addition, the Federal Trade Commission and several states have
investigated the use of personal information by certain Internet companies. We could incur significant expenses
if new regulations regarding the use of personal information are introduced or if our privacy practices are
investigated.
Risks Related to the Securities Markets and Ownership of Our Common Stock

Our stock price has been and may continue to be volatile, which could adversely affect our stockholders.

Since our initial public offering in 2001, the market price of our common stock has been volatile, and it
may continue to be volatile as a result of one or more of the following factors, most of which are beyond our
control:

*» variations in our quarterly operating results;
= changes in securities analysts’ estimates of our financial performance;
* loss of a major customer or failure to complete significant transactions;

* announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnerships,
joint ventures or capital commitments;

* changes in market valuations of similar companies;

* the discussion of our company or stock price in online investor communities such as chat rooms;
= additions or departures of key personnel

* fluctuations in stock market price and volume, and

* our continuing operating losses.

Securities class action lawsuits alleging fraud have often been filed against companies following periods
of volatility in the market price of their securities. In the future, we may be the target of similar lawsuits. If a
lawsuit were to be filed against us, it could result in substantial costs and the diversion of our management’s
attention and resources, which could seriously harm our financial results or result in a decline in the market
price of our common stock. Declines in the market price of our common stock could also harm employee
morale and retention, our ability to attract qualified employees and our access to capital.

We have anti-takeover protections, which may discourage or prevent a takeover of us, even if an acquisi-
tion would be beneficial to our stockholders.

Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as provisions of Delaware law,
could make it more difficult for another cormpany to acquire us, even if a takeover would benefit our
stockholders. The provisions in our corporate documents:

* authorize the tssuance of “blank check” preferred stock that could be issued by our board of directors
to increase the number of outstanding shares, making a takeover more difficult and expensive;

* establish a staggered board of directors, so that it would take three successive annual meetings to
replace all directors;

» prohibit cumulative voting in the election of directors, which would otherwise allow less than a
majority of stockholders to elect director candidates;

» prohibit stockholders from calling special meetings of stockholders;

» prohibit stockholder action by written consent, thereby requiring all stockholder actions to be taken at a
meeting of our stockholders; and
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+ establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for
proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law and the terms of our stock option
plans may discourage, delay or prevent a change in our control, which may depress the market price of our
common stock.

Concentration of ownership among our existing executive officers and directors may make it more diffi-
cult for other stockholders to influence significant corporate decisions and may hinder a change of
control.

As of March 27, 2007, our present directors and executive officers and their affiliates beneficially owned
approximately 33% of our outstanding common stock. In particular, John 8. Katzman, our Chief Executive
Officer, beneficially owned approximately 32% of our outstanding common stock. This concentration of
ownership may make it more difficult for other stockholders to influence matters requiring stockholder
approval and may have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of our company,
thereby possibly depriving our stockholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common stock as
part of any sale or acquisition.

Certain risks associated with our Series B-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock.

On June 4, 2004, we completed a private placement of 10,000 shares of our Series B-1 Cumnulative
Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B-1 Preferred Stock™) for $10 million in the aggregate. We currently
have 6,000 shares of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock outstanding, following redemption by Fletcher Interna-
tional, Ltd. (“Fletcher™) of 4,000 shares in 2006. Dividends on the Series B-1 Preferred Stock are payable
quarterly, at our option in cash or registered shares of our common stock, at a minimum rate of 5% per
annum. The Series B-1 Preferred Stock is convertible into our common stock at a current conversion price of
$8.086 per share, subject to adjustment upon certain eveats. The holder of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock may
also redeem its shares of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, in lieu of converting such shares, at any time on or
after November 28, 2005, for shares of common stock, unless we satisfy the conditions for cash redemption,
for an amount of shares of our commeon stock based upon a redemption rate equal to 102.5% of the then
prevailing price of our common stock plus the value of any accrued and unpaid dividends. The holder also has
the right, currenily exercisable during 2007 and subject to extension under certain circumstances, to purchase
up to $20 million in newly created series of preferred stock having, except as set forth in our agreement
pertaining to the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, similar terms, conditions, rights, preferences and privileges as the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock (the “Additional Preferred Stock™), The Additional Preferred Stock will be
convertible into shares of out common stock at a conversion price currently set at the greater of 88.21% of the
then prevailing price of our commeon stock or $8.0860 per share, subject to adjustment upon certain events.

The issuance of our shares of common stock to the holder thereof upon conversion or redemption of the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock and any Additional Preferred Stock and their resale by the holder will increase our
publicly traded shares. These resales could also depress the market price of our common stock. We will not
control whether or when the holder elects to convert its securities for common stock. The perceived risk of
dilution may cause our stockholders to sell their shares, which would contribute to a downward movement in
the stock price of our common stock. Moreover, the perceived risk of dilution and the resulting downward
pressure on our stock price could encourage investors to engage in short sales of our common stock. By
increasing the number of shares offered for sale, material amounts of short selling could further contribute to
progressive price declines in our common stock.

Additionally, under the agreement governing the issvance of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, we are
obligated to timely register with the SEC shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion or redemption
of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock and any Additional Preferred Stock, and to maintain the effectiveness of
such registration in accordance with the terms of the agreement. If we fail to do so, we are subject to certain
penalties, as more fully described in Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements. Due to our failure to
comply with these registration requirements, in each case due to delays in resolving SEC comments, the
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conversion price of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock has been reduced from $11.00 to $8.0860 and the
conversion price for any Additional Preferred Stock has been reduced from the greater of $11.00 or 120% of
the prevailing price of our common stock to the greater of $8.0860 or 88.21% of the prevailing price of our
common stock. Due to our inability to timely file our Form 10-Q for the third quarter of 2006, resulting from
the required restatement of our financial statements, we are not eligible to register the common stock issuable
upon conversion of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock and any Additional Preferred Stock on Form S-3 until such
time as we have been current in our periodic filings for 12 consecutive months. This will require us to use
Form S-1 to comply with our registration requirements with respect to the Series B-1 Preferred Stock and any
Additional Preferred Stock, which is more time consuming and expensive. Given the current timeline for
effecting such registration on Form 8-1, we anticipate a further reduction of the conversion prices applicable
1o the Series B-1 Preferred Stock and any Additional Preferred Stock by at least 5%. Additionally, we cannot
be sure that we will be able to comply with the registration requirements applicable to our Series B-1
Preferred Stock and any Additional Preferred Stock in a manner that will allow us to avoid future reductions
in the conversion price.

In November 2006, due to a planned restatement of its historical Financial statements, as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company was unable to timely file our Form 10-Q for the third
quarter of 2006, resuiting in the Company failing to maintain an effective registration statement for the benefit
of the holder of its Series B-1 Preferred Stock. If the holder requests redemption of the Series B-1 Preferred
Stock the Company must redeem for cash because it cannot redeem for registered shares of common stock.
Accordingly, there is the possibility that the Company may be required to fund any future redemptions in cash
until it is again able 1o maintain an effective resale registration statement for the benefit of the holder of the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing the registration
requirements. As of March 27, 2007, Series B-1 Preferred Stock of $6 million was outstanding and available
for redemption. On March 30, 2001, the Company borrowed $3 million pursuant to increase negotiated in their
existing line of credit agreement which if with cash on hand and cash generated from operations, should
provide the funds necessary effect such potential redemption.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located in New York, New York, where we lease approximately 30,000 square feet
of office space under a lease that expires on December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 2006, we also leased an
aggregate of approximately 249,000 square feet of office space for additional operations in New York, New
York and our 56 regional offices or classroom locations located in Arizona, California, Colorado, Georgia,
Illinois, Louisiana, Maryiand, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Missouri, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio,
Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, Washington, Washington D.C., Canada and
Puerto Rico.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On September 10, 2003, CollegeNet, Inc. filed suit in Federal District Court in Oregon, alleging that the
Company infringed a patent owned by CollegeNet, U.S. Patent No. 6,460,042 (the “’042 Patent), related to the
processing of the online applications. CollegeNet never served the Company and no discovery was ever conducted.
However, apparently based on adverse rulings in the related lawsuits concerning the same *042 Patent (the “Related
Litigation™), CollegeNet dismissed the 2003 case against the Company without prejudice on January 9, 2004.

On August 2, 2005, the Court of Appeals for the Federa! Circuit issued an opinion favorable to
CollegeNet in its appeal from the adverse rulings in the Related Litigation.

The next day, on August 3, 2005, CollegeNet again filed suit against the Company alleging infringement of the
same "042 Patent that was the subject of the earlier action. On November 21, 2005, CollegeNet filed an amended
complaint, which added a second patent, U.S. Patent No. 6,910,045 (the “"045 Patent™), to the lawsuit. The Company
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was served with the amended complaint on November 22, 2005, and filed its answer and counterclaims on January 13,
2006, which was later amended on February 24, 2006. On March 20, 2006 CollegeNet filed its Reply to the
Company’s counterclaims. CollegeNet seeks injunctive relief and unspecified monetary damages.

The Company filed a request with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“PTO”} for ex parte
reexamination of CollegeNET'’s '042 Patent on September 1, 2005. The Company filed another request with
the PTO for ex parte reexamination of CollegeNET’s "045 Patent on December 12, 2005. Although CollegeNet
has not pursued any claims against the Company on a related U.S. Patent No. 6,345, 278 (the “’278 Patent”),
the Company filed another request with the PTO for ex parte reexamination claims 1-18, 21-29, 31-39, 41 and
42 of the *278 Patent on November 8, 2006. The PTO granted the Company’s requests and ordered
reexamination of all claims of the CollegeNet '042 patent on October 31, 2005, ordered reexamination of all
claims of the 045 Patent on January 27, 2006, and ordered reexamination of claims 1-18, 21-29, 31-39, 41
and 42 of the 278 Patent on February 2, 2007.

On March 29, 2006, the court granted the Company’s motion to stay all proceedings in the lawsuit
pending completion of the PTO’s reexaminations of the CollegeNet "042 and '045 patents. On November 9,
2006 the PTO issued a Non-Final Office Action rejecting all 44 claims of the '042 patent. On January 9,
2007, CollegeNET filed a Response to the Non-Final Office Action with the PTO. The Princeton Review
cannot predict the likely outcome of these preceedings but believes that it has meritorious defenses to
CollegeNET’s claims and intends to vigorously defend.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Comman Stock and Related Stockholder Matters
Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “REVU.” The following
table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of our common stock as
reported on the NASDAQ Global Market.

2006 2005
w ﬂ Low High Low
2T A U $6.05 $5.05 $6.14  $5.25
SECONU . . . i e e e e 6.45 532 5.95 5.46
Third . ..o e e e e 545 5.10 6.25 5.70
Fourth ... . i e e e e 5.51 5.17 6.03 5.05

As of March 27, 2007, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market
was $35.40 per share. As of March 27, 2007, there were 62 stockholders of record of our common stock. This
does not include the number of persons whose stock is in nominee or “street name” accounts through brokers.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and we do not intend to pay
any cash dividends with respect to our common stock in the foreseeable future, We currently intend to retain
any earnings for use in the operation of our business and to fund future growth. Any future determination to
pay cash dividends on our common stock will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend
upon our financial condition, operating results, capital requirements and such other factors as the board of
directors deems relevant. Additionally, our ability to pay cash dividends is subject to the consent of the lenders
under the terms of our credit facility, which is described in Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The consolidated statement of operations data for each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 has been derived from our
audited consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Annval Report on Form 10-K. The
consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the
consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 has been derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements which are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The information
shown below is qualified by reference to and should be read together with our consclidated financial
statements and their notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We have calculated the weighted
average shares used in computing net income (loss) per share as described in Note 1 to our consolidated
financial statements.

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
({In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue
Test Preparation Services .. .............. $ 92405 3% 87360 $ 74297 % 71,719  $67.930
K-12 Services. . ..o i i i iveie e 35,694 31,932 28.403 21,525 10,066
Admissions Services. . .. ..... ... ... ... .. 12,641 11,252 11,035 11,218 11,240
Total Revenue. . ..................... 140,740 130,544 113,785 104,462 89,236
Cost of revenue
Test Preparation Services ................ 31,907 27917 23,553 20,809 18,516
K-128Services. . . ....... ... 21,703 16,274 13,308 8,328 3,533
Admissions Services . . . ... .. ... ... ..., 5,510 4,251 2,941 2,836 2,888
Total costof revenue. . ... ..., oo ... 59,120 48,442 39,802 31,973 24,937
Grossprofit ........................ 81,620 82,102 73,983 72,489 64,299
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative ......... 90,012 86,352 79,231 65,634 65,482
Impairment of investment and goodwill. . . . .. 300 — 3,199 — 344
Total operating expenses . . ............. 90,312 86,352 87,430 65,634 65,826
Income (loss) from operations. .. ..........., (8,692) (4,250} (13,447) 6,855 (1,527
Netincome (loss). ....................... {9,531) (2,185) {29,495) 4,309 {1,090)
Dividends and accretion on Series B-1 Preferred
Stock . ... e e (517) (2,443) (1,439) — —
Net income (loss) attributed to common
stockholders . . ........... .. ..o ... {10,048) (4,628) (30,934 $ 4,309 5(1,000)
Basic income (loss) pershare . ... ........... $ (036) $ (017 $ (1.13) $ 016 § (0.04)
Diluted income (loss) per share. . .. .......... $ (036) & (@17 $ (113 $ 016 §$ (0.04)

Weighted average shares used in computing net
income (loss) per share

Basic ......... ... ... ool 27,578 27,570 27,468 27,306 27,239
Dilmted. ...... .. ... .o o L 27,573 21,570 27,468 27,467 27,239
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As of December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents. . ............... $ 10822 $ 8002 $19,197 $ 13937 § 11,963
Total asSets . ..o ovi e 118,108 105,371 107,641 121,697 112,116
Long-term debt, net of current portion. ... .. .. 14,127 2,845 4213 5,710 5,656
Series B-1 Preferred Stock . ............... 6,000 10,000 8,147 — —
Stockholders’ equity 41,163 50,453 55,104 84,467 79,298

Period-to-period comparability of the above Selected Consolidated Financial Data is affected by the
following:

In 2006, we redeemed 4,000 shares of our Series B-1 Preferred Stock for approximately $4.4 million.

In 2005, as part of the franchise renewal process, four of our franchisees licensed the right to sell, under
The Princeton Review brand, SES in their franchised territories for approximately $1.0 million.

In 2004, we incurred an $8.2 million impairment charge for the write-down of goodwill related to
Embark, and recorded a reserve against our deferred tax asset, in the form of a valuation allowance, in the
amount of $22.1 miliion.

In 2004, we sold our Series B-1 Preferred Stock for gross proceeds of $10.0 miilion.
In 2003, we acquired the Princeton Review of North Carolina.

In 2002, we acquired The Princeton Review of St. Louis.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read
in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Qur actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of many factors, including, but not limited to, those described under “Risk Factors” and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

Overview

The Princeton Review provides educational products and services to students, parents, educators and
educational institutions. These products and services include integrated classroom-based and online instruction,
professional development for teachers and educators, print and online materials and lessons, and higher
education marketing. We operate our businesses through three divisions, which correspond to our business
segments.

The Test Preparation Services division derives the majority of its revenue from classroom-based and
Princeton Review Online test preparation courses and tutoring services. Additionally, Test Preparation Services
receives royalties from its independent franchises who provide classroom-based courses under the Princeton
Review brand. Since 2004, this division has also been providing SES programs to students in public school
districts. This division has historically accounted for the majority of our overall revenue and accounted for
approximately 66% of our overall revenue in 2006.

In 2006, the Test Preparation Services division’s revenue increased by 6%, reflecting a return to historical
growth rates after a record growth the prior year due to introduction of the new SAT. During 2006, the fastest
growing areas for this division were its SES courses, sales of which have increased in response to the
increased emphasis on state assessments, and institutional sales, which are partially attributed to the new SAT
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test introduced in 2005. Our Tutoring revenue grew during the year as well, while retail classroom revenues
settled back to 2005 levels.

The K-12 Services division provides a number of services to K-12 schools and school districts, including
assessment, professional development, intervention materials {workbooks and related products) and
face-to-face instruction. As a result of the increased emphasis on accountability and the measurement of
student performance in public schools in this country and the centralization of school districts’ purchasing of
assessment, professional development and suppletmental educational products and services, this division
continues to see growing demand by the public school market for its products. During 2006 this division’s
recognized revenue was adversely impacted by unsigned contracts where work has begun. For example, during
2006, a large contract representing over 33 million in revenue was unsigned at year-end. Accordingly, revenue
related to this contract was deferred until 2007. Despite the revenue shortfall related to this contract, revenue
increased by 12% primarily due to the success of K-12 Services sales of the SideStreets after-school
intervention materials

The K-12 Services division continues to enter into more large, muitiple element contracts with schools,
school districts, municipal agencies, and other governmental bodies, requiring us to deliver a combination of
products and services, including online and print-based assessment, professional development, and face-to-face
instruction, The approval processes of some of our customers in this area, which are required for formal
contract execution, are lengthy and cumbersome. These contracts therefore present several types of risks and
uncertainties, including reducing our ability 10 effectively predict our operating performance, increasing
variability in our cash balances and increasing credit risk. These risks and vuncertainties are discussed in detail
under the heading “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

While we see continued strong revenue growth in this division, operating results are difficult to predict
accurately, due to the foregoing factors and the fact that each contract entered into by this division has its
own, unique product mix. Because our various products in this division have different gross margins
(professional development and live course instruction products typically have lower gross margins than fees
for assessment products and printed materials), contracts with varying product mix could significantly alter
this division’s operating results from period to period. In addition, this division faces challenges related to its
rapid growth, including building a first-class customer support organization, continually improving quality
control processes for customized product and developing better project management tools. As a result of all of
these factors, gross margins in this division declined from 49% in 2005 to 39% in 2006.

Throughout the periods discussed in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations, our Admissions Services division derived most of its revenue from the sale of web-
based admissions and application management products and marketing services to educational institutions. In
2006, this division represented 9% of our overall revenue.

As described under “Business-Acquisitions and Dispositions,” during February 2007, we sold the
subscription-based admissions and application management services business, having reached the conclusion
that this line of business could not be grown profitably on a long-term basis and was-non-sirategic o our
overall educational services businesses. The sale added cash to our balance sheet, lowered certain corporate
support costs and enhanced focus on our core strength of working with students. See Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Following the completion of the Embark Sale, we entered into discussions with Young Shin, the General
Manager of the Admissions Services Division, regarding a transaction pursuant to which Mr. Shin would
terminate his employment with the Company, and enter into an agreement with the Company pursuant to
which sales, support, collection, marketing and related functions involved in our higher education institution
marketing business will be outsourced to an entity formed by Mr. Shin, in exchange for a revenue sharing
arrangement. These discussions are currently at an advanced stage and we anticipate finalization of an
agreement in the very near term. During 2006, we recorded approximately $3.4 million in revenue from the
marketing services that are the subject of this proposed transaction.
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Revenue
Test Preparation Services. The Test Preparation Services division derives revenue primarily from:

* classroom-based and online test preparation courses and tutoring services, which consists of tuition and
fees paid to our company-operated sites. We recognize revenue from tuition paid for our courses over
the life of the course, which is usually from five to 10 weeks depending on the course type. Tutoring
revenue is based on an hourly fee and is recognized as the services are delivered. Course and tutoring
revenue represented approximately 46% of our total revenue in 2006.

» SES programs, which consist of after-school courses taught primarily in the K-12 grades. We are
typically paid for these courses on a per-student basis, and recognize the revenue over the life of the
courses. SES revenue represented approximately 6% of our total revenue in 2006, almost double the
rate in 2005.

+ royalty fees paid to us by our independent franchisees. These royalties in 2006 are 8%-9.5% of all cash
receipts collected by our franchisees for all test preparation and tutoring services performed by them
under the Princeton Review name. Royalties received from franchisees also include a $27.00 per
student fee, for use by their students, of our online supplemental course tools. Royalties also include a
fee of 2% of the domestic franchisees’ cash receipts for contribution to a marketing fund. For a
description of the marketing fund, see Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. Finally, those of
our franchisees that purchased the rights to offer SES courses in their territories also pay us a 8%
royalty with respect to the cash receipts they earn from those courses. This revenue represented
approximately 3% of our total revenue in 2006.

« sales of course and marketing materials and other products to our independent franchisees. This revenue
is recognized upon the transfer of title to our customers, which occurs on the shipment dates of these
materials. This revenue represented approximately 1% of our total revenue in 2006.

« authoring books published by Random House and providing content for software. This revenue consists
of performance-based fees, including royalties and marketing fees from sales of books and software.
We recognize these fees based on sales of the books and software when reported to us by the
publishers. Additionally, we earn delivery-based fees from Random House in the form of advances and
copy editing fees for books written by us. We recognize these fees as the products are delivered. This
revenue represented approximately 2% of our total revenue in 2006.

K-12 Services. The K-12 Services division derives revenue from the services we provide to primary and
secondary schools and school districts, from authoring books published by Random House and McGraw-Hill.

Revenue from schools and school districts is derived from:

« fees for training and professional development for school teachers and administrators, which we
recognize over the period that the services are provided,

« fees for paper-based and online benchmark testing, which we recognize over the period the services are
delivered;

* sales of printed materials, which we recognize when the materials are delivered; and,

» annual subscription fees for the Assessment Center (formerly called Homeroom) subscription service,
recognized by us ratably over the life of the subscription period, which is typically one or two years.

The revenue we earned from the above products and services we provided to schools and school districts
represented approximately 25% of our total revenue in 2006.

Revenue from authoring books published by Random House is derived from performance-based fees,
including royalties and marketing fees from sales of books. We recognize these fees based on sales of the
books when reported to us by the publisher. Additionally, we earn delivery-based fees from Random House in
the form of advances and copy editing fees for books written by us. We recognize these fees as the products
are delivered. This revenue represented less than 1% of our total revenue in 2006,
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Revenue from McGraw-Hill is derived from royalties under an agreement that expired in September,
2003 for Princeton Review branded content that we provided for their textbooks, which we recognize based on
sales reported by McGraw-Hill, Revenue from our contract with McGraw-Hill represented approximately 1%
of our total revenue in 2006.

Admissions Services. The Admissions Services division derives revenue from:

» web-based subscription, application and marketing fees. These fees consist of annual subscription fees
and application processing fees paid to us by academic institutions for our online application and
management products {which business was sold in the Embark sale), annual subscription fees paid to us
by secondary schools for our ECOS product, and annual marketing fees paid to us by academic
institutions to promote their programs on our web site and in our publications. We recognize the
subscription and marketing fees over the contract period, which are typically one or two years. We
recognize the application processing fees in the month that the relevant applications are submitted. This
revenue represented approximately 6% of our total revenue in 2006.

» college counseling fees paid by high schools. This revenue consists of annual subscription fees paid to
us by secondary schools. We recognize these fees over the contract period, which is typically one to
three years. This revenue represented approximately 2% of our total revenue in 2006.

* marketing fees paid to us by academic institutions based upon the number of student inquiries we
generate. This revenue is recognized as leads are generated based on the price per lead in the applicable
contracts, and represented 1% of our total revenue in 2006.

* authoring books published by Random House. This revenue consists of performance-based fees,
including royalties and marketing fees from sales of books. We recognize these fees based on sales of
the books when reported to us by the publisher. Additionally, we earn delivery-based fees from Random
House in the form of advances and copy editing fees for books written by us. We recognize these fees
as the products are delivered. This revenue represented less than 1% of our total revenue in 2006.

+ sales of advertising and sponsorships to businesses and schools wishing to promote their products,
services and programs on our web site. Advertising and sponsorship revenue is recognized each month
based on contractual terms. This revenue represented less than 1% of our total revenue in 2006,

Cost of Revenue

Test Preparation Services. Cost of revenue consists of course expenses of our company-owned
operations, cost of course materials sold and the costs to author, develop, edit and produce content for books
and software. Course expenses consist of costs incurred to deliver test preparation courses, SES programs,
tutoring and admissions counseling services, including rent of classroom space, teacher salaries, credit card
fees, and costs of course materials. The largest components of cost of revenue in our Test Preparation Services
division are rent for classroom spaces and teacher salaries, which together accounted for approximately 66%
of the cost of revenue of this division in 2006. Also included in cost of revenue is a royalty we pay to our
franchisees in exchange for allowing us to offer our Princeton Review Online courses within their territories.
This royalty is calculated based on a fee per student which varies depending on the course. These fees are for
Princeton Review Online courses provided to students residing within our franchisees’ territories, net of certain
administrative expenses.

K-12 Services. Cost of revenue primarily consists of the costs related to providing training, professional
development, after school programs, authoring and producing workbooks, developing content for textbooks,
our Assessment Center subscription service and book development. Additionally, cost of revenue includes
amortization expense related to our capitalized K-12 content, which are the direct costs we incur to write
questions and lessons that are used across our various product categories in this division. These costs,
primarily comprised of internal compensation costs of dedicated employees, are capitalized and amortized over
a seven-year period, on a straight-line basis (see Note | to our Consolidated Financial Statements).
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Admissions Services. Cost of revenue includes the costs to author, develop and edit our books and the
admissions services section of our web site. Cost of revenue also includes the costs to build and maintain our
web-based products, primarily comprised of internal compensation costs of dedicated employees, and the
commissions related to the sale of those products, which are recognized over the contract period, and credit
card fees incurred in connection with processing student applications, which are recognized in the month the
applications are processed. Additionally, cost of revenue includes the costs to provide counseling services to
high schools contracting for this service.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include selling, general and administrative expenses as well as any impairment
charges. Selling, general and administrative expenses include payroll and payroll related expenses, advertising
expenses and office facility expenses, including rent, utilities, teiephone and miscellaneous expenditures, which
collectively represented approximately 68% of our total selling, general and administrative expenses in 2006.
Selling, general and administrative expenses also include costs associated with national advertising campaigns
that benefit our company-owned locations as well as our independent franchisees. Finally, the remaining
components of selling, general and administrative expenses include professional fees, travel and entertainment,
health insurance and depreciation and amortization.

In April 2006, the Company announced and commenced implementation of a restructuring program. The
restructuring included, among other things, streamlining our software development groups and reducing staff
in some administrative functions to better align the cost structure with revenue and growth expectations. The
restructuring charge incurred during 2006 was approximately $827,000 and consists of severance-related
payments for all employees terminated in connection with the restructuring. At December 31, 2006,
substantially all of the severance payments had been made.

The following table summarizes the percentage of total revenue for certain expense items to aid in the
understanding of the analysis of our operating expenses. While overall expenses have increased, we are
making progress in containing our SG&A expenses and expect to see additional improvements in 2007.

As a Percentage of
Total Revenue
2006 2005 2004

Salaries, labor and employee benefits . . ...... ... .. .. ... o L 339% 36.5% 37.5%
General and administrative . . .. ... ... ... .. ... L 207% 19.6% 28.6%
Advertising and marketing . . ... . ... ... 46% 52% 56%
Depreciation and amortizalion .. ..... ... .ttt riierieraans 5.0% 48% 5.1%
Total operating Xpenses ... ... ... ... .. i i i e 64.2% 66.1% 763%

Income Taxes

As a result of the effect of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, on the recoverability of our net
deferred tax assets, we decided to record a 100% valuation allowance against any deferred tax benefits. In
2006 and 2005, a deferred tax benefit of $2.8 and $1.5 million, respectively, was offset by additions to the
valuation allowance of the same amount, resulting in no net U.S. Federal or state tax expense in those years.
Our foreign subsidiary was profitable during 2006 and after utilizing all of its net operating loss carryforward,
recorded a tax provision of $153,000. Our effective income tax rate was 3% and 0% for 2006 and 20085,
respectively, as a result of the valuation allowances and foreign tax provision.

We currently have significant deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carryforwards, tax credit
carryforwards and deductible temporary differences that will reduce taxable income in future years. Our loss
in 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the emphasis placed on cumulative losses under generally accepted accounting
principles represents sufficient evidence under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, for us to
determine that it was appropriate to establish a full valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets.
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Although management expects these assets will ultimately be fully utilized, future performance cannot be
assured. The Company will continue to evaluate the need for the valuation allowance in future periods.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2006, total revenue increased by $10.2 million, or 7.8%, from
$130.5 million in 2005 to $140.7 million in 2006.

Test Preparation Services revenue increased by $5.0 million, or 5.8%, from $87.4 million in 2005 to
$92.4 million in 2006. Retail course revenue decreased by $2.1 million, driven by lower SAT course revenue,
primarily due to a very significant increase in 2005 revenues driven by the new SAT introduced at that time.
Tutoring revenue increased by $1.2 million and institutional sales increased by $5.2 million, inclusive of a
$3.9 million SES increase.

K-12 Services revenue increased by $3.8 million, or 11.8%, from $31.9 million in 2005 to $35.7 million
in 2006. Intervention revenue increased by $8.4 million resulting from new customer contracts, as well as
price increases for our SideStreets products. Professional development revenue increased by $1.1 million.
These increases were partially offset by a decrease in assessment services revenue of $5.4 million primarily
due to fewer test administrations earlier in the year and the deferral of assessment revenues from the fourth
quarter of 2006 into 2007 as a result of delaying the revenue recognition for a large contract for testing due to
the inability to obtain final customer signatures before year end.

Admissions Services revenue increased by $1.4 million or 12.3%, from $11.3 million in 2005 to
$12.6 million in 2006. Higher education technology revenue increased by $1.0 million and higher education
marketing services increased by $616,000.

Cost of Revenue.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, total cost of revenue increased by $10.7 million, or 22.0%, from
$48.4 million in 2005 to $59.1 million in 2006.

Test Preparation Services cost of revenue increased by $4.0 million, or 14.3%, from $27.9 million in
2005 to $31.9 million in 2006. This increase is due to an increase in site rent of $911,000 because more
classes were held, a $637,000 increase in tutoring pay to support higher levels of revenue and as a result of a
salary increase, a $1.9 million increase in costs to service the expanded SES courses and a $436,000 increase
in the costs of content expenditures for books and courses. Gross margin declined by 2.5% from 68.0% to
65.5% due to product mix which included a greater portion of revenue in 2006 from SES which has lower
gross margins. Additionally, as a result of lower retail classroom enrollments there was reduced classroom
utilization which translates into lower profit margins.

K-12 Services cost of revenue increased by $5.4 million, or approximately 33.4%, from $16.3 million in
2005 to $21.7 million in 2006. Gross margin declined by 9.8%, from 49.0% to 39.2%. This drop in gross
margins is attributed to four factors. First, the higher margin assessment revenues decreased compared to the
2005 levels. Second, while intervention revenues increased, the margins on SideStreets revenues are lower than
the intervention materials sold in 2005. Third, we experienced higher customer support costs for many new
customer contracts delivered in 2006 as we continue to work out the logistics of content development, Q&A,
printing and delivery for multiple customers. Lastly, our content amortization costs increased as a percentage
of revenue primarily due to the large investment in developing the SideStreets materials during 2006.

Admissions Services cost of revenue increased by $1.3 million, or 29.6%, from $4.3 million in 2005 o
$5.5 million in 2006. Gross margin declined by 5.8%, from 62.2% to 56.4% primarily due to lower margins
related 10 higher educational services revenue.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2006, operating expenses increased by $4.0 million, or 4.6%, from
$86.4 million in 20035 to $90.3 million in 2006.

¢ Test Preparation Services increased by $5.2 million, or 12.6%, from $41.3 million in 2005 to
$46.5 million in 2006. Salaries and related costs increased by approximately $1.4 million as a result of
the timing of the hiring of new employees, part time support costs, bonus payments and commissions.
Bad debt expense increased by approximately $1.2 million primarily related to an increase in the
reserve for aged student receivables; professional fees increased by $1.4 million due primarily to SES
related legal fees and third party SES commissions, and corporate allocations increased by approx-
imately $1.2 million related to technology, tegal and facility charges.

+ K-12 Services increased by $1.4 million, or 8.7%, from $16.0 million in 2005 to $17.4 million in 2006.
Salaries and related costs increased by approximately $2.2 million related to new hires and part time
employees.

+ Admissions Services decreased by $329,000 or 3.9%, from $8.4 million in 2005 to $8.1 million in
2006. This decrease is primarily the result of a reduction in salary and related costs of approximately
$401,000, lower travel and entertainment expenses of approximately $341,000, lower local busingss
taxes of $121,000 and lower training costs of $91,000. These decreases were partially offset by an
increase in development expenses of $321,000 and bad debt expenses of $339,000.

» Corporate decreased by $2.3 million or 11.2%, from $20.6 million in 2005 to $18.3 million in 2006.
Professional service fees decreased by $787,000 due to lower Sarbanes-Oxley compliance costs,
Salaries and related expense decreased by $2.3 million, due primarily to the benefits of the restructuring
program. Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $961,000 due primarily to the installation
of an enterprise resource management system.

Interest expense

Interest expense increased by $296,000, or 83.5%, from $354,000 in 2005 to $650,000 in 2006 as a result
of borrowings against a new credit facility.

Other income (expense)

During 2006, other expense of $35,000 includes the premium paid to Fletcher International, Lid. of
approximately $377,000 related to the redemption of 4,000 shares of our Series B-1 Preferred Stock. This was
partially offset by the change in the fair value of the embedded derivatives and warrant related to the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock. During 2005, the Company had other income of approximately $2.4 million
comprised of $1.1 million in SES territory rights sales to franchisees and $1.3 million related to the change in
value of the embedded derivatives and warrant.

Income Taxes

The estimated effective tax rate used in 2006 and 2005 would have been approximately 40%. During
2006 we continued to record a valuation allowance against the increase in our deferred tax asset. When we
achieve profitability, any tax provision recorded as a result of these pre-tax profits will be offset by a reversal
of the tax valuation allowance previously recorded, which reversal would be for the same amount as the
provision.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2005 total revenue increased by $16.8 million, or 14.7%, from
$113.8 million in 2004 to $130.5 million in 2005.
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Test Preparation Services revenue increased by $13.1 million, or 17.6%, from $74.3 million in 2004 to
$87.4 million in 2005. This increase is driven by an increase of $9.3 million in retail, institutional and tutoring
revenue, once again reflecting strong enrollment in SAT, LSAT and MCAT courses, and $2.1 million in SES
revenue.

K-12 services revenue increased by $3.5 million, or 12.4%, from $28.4 million in 2004 to approximately
$31.9 million in 2005. This increase is driven by $2.4 million in assessment services, $1.8 million in
workbook intervention materials (primarily SideStreets) and $943,000 of professional development services.

Admissions Services revenue increased by $167,000, or 1.5%, from $11.1 million in 2004 to $11.3 million
in 2005. This increase is driven by an increase of approximately $700,000 in revenue from counseling
services, and a $1.4 million increase in higher education marketing fees. Reductions to revenue include a
decrease in higher education technology fees and book related revenues related to timing,

Cost of Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2005, total cost of revenue increased by $8.6 million, or 21.7%, from
$39.8 miilion in 2004 to $48.4 million in 2005,

Test Preparation Services cost of revenue increased by $4.4 million, or 18.5%, from $23.6 million in
2004 to $28.0 millicn in 2005. This increase is primarily driven by the variable expense increase related to
higher retail enrollments, and higher tutoring and institutional revenue. Gross margin declined slightly by 0.3%
from 68.3% to 68.0%.

K-12 Services cost of revenue increased by $3.0 million, or 22.3%, from $13.3 million in 2004 to
$16.3 million in 2005. This increase is driven by variable expense of approximately $2.1 million on
$4.0 million of incremental revenue growth. In addition, there was an increase of $300,000 of web content
amortization an $889,000 increase related to incrementat content production and labor related expense. Gross
margin declined by 4.1% from 53.1% to 49.0% due to revenue timing and content production related costs.

Admissions Services cost of revenue increased by $1.3 million, or 44.5%, from $2.9 million in 2004 to
$4.3 million in 2005. This increase is driven by an increase of $500,000 in counseling expense and $700,000
of other related expense in support of both the technology and marketing business. Gross margins declined by
11.3% from 73.5% to 62.2%. The key drivers of this reduction relate to $700,000 in revenue credits driving
approximately 6% of the decline, as well as approximately 2% in consulting mix and another 1.5% attributed
to the cost base.

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expense increased by approximately $7.1 million or 9.0%, from
$79.2 million in 2004 to $86.4 million in 2005. This increase is attributed to: salary expense of $2.1 million,
office rent and related expense of $730,000, professional fees primarily related to Sarbanes-Oxley of
$2.8 million, $400,000 in advertising and recruitment expense and workers compensation fees of $300,000.

Impairment of goodwill

Our 2004 results included a write-down of approximately $8.2 million of goodwill related to the 2001

acquisition of Embark.com, Inc.

Interest expense

Interest expense remained about the same at $354,000 in 2005 and $361,000 in 2004,

Other income (expense)

During 2005, other income of $2.4 million includes the change in the fair value of the embedded
derivatives and warrant, of approximately $1.3 million, related to the Series B-1 Preferred Stock and the sale
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of SES territory rights to franchisees for $1.1 million. During 2004, the Company had $918,000 of other
income related to the change in value of the embedded derivatives and warrant.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents on hand, collections from customers and
our credit facility. Our Test Preparation Services division has historically generated, and continues to generate,
the largest portion of our cash flow from its retail classroom and tutoring courses. These customers usually
pay us in advance or contemporaneously with the services we provide, thereby supporting our short-term
liquidity needs. Increasingly, however, across all of our divisions, we are generating a greater percentage of
our cash from contracts with institutions such as schools, school districts and post-secondary institutions, all of
which pay us in arrears. Typical payment performance for these institutional customers, once invoiced, ranges
from 60 to 90 days. Additionally, the long contract approval cycles and/or delays in purchase order generation
with some of our contracts with large institutions or school districts can contribute to the level of variability in
the timing of our cash receipts.

At December 31, 2006, we had $10.8 million of cash and cash equivalents. The $2.8 million increase in
cash from the December 31, 2005 balance is primarily attributed to $15 million in borrowings against a new
credit line and reduction in capital spending of approximately $5.9 million, offset by a reduction in cash
provided from operations.

Cash provided by operating activities is our net loss adjusted for certain non-cash items and changes in
operating assets and liabilities. During 2006, cash provided by operating activities was $1.4 million, compared
to $7.5 million for 2003, a decrease of $6.1 million. The decrease is primarily attributed to a larger net loss in
2006, adjusted for higher depreciation and amortization and bad debt expense in 2006. The increase in
accounts receivable of $11.5 million results from late December billings in the K-12 Services division because
of late contract closing. This also caused our deferred income to increase by $6.0 million. Offsetting this was
an increase in our accounts payable and accrued expenses due to slower payments at the end of the year.

During 2006, we used $6.9 million in cash for investing activities as compared to $13.6 million used
during 2005. This decrease results from reduced technology spending and a reduction of $2.9 million in
content development expenditures.

Financing cash flows consist primarily of transactions related to our debt and equity structure. We added
approximately $8.4 million in 2006 compared to net amount used of $5.1 million during 2005. During 2006,
we entered into a new credit line and term loan and borrowed $15.0 million. Part of this borrowing was used
to redeem $4.0 million of Series B-1 Preferred Stock.

In November 2006, due to a planned restatement of its historical financial statements as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company was unable to timely file its Form 10Q for the third
quarter of 2006 resulting in the Company failing to maintain an effective registration statement for the benefit
of the holder of its Series B-1 Preferred Stock. If the holder requests redemption of the Series B-1 Preferred
Stock the Company must redeem for cash because it cannot redeem for registered shares of common stock.
Accordingly, there is the possibility that the Company may be required to fund any future redemptions in cash
until it is again able to maintain an effective resale registration statement for the benefit of the holder of the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing the registration
requirements. On March 30, 2007, the Company borrowed $3 million pursuant to an increase negotiated in
their existing line of credit agreement which along with cash on-hand and cash generated from operations,
should provide the funds necessary to effect any such potential redemption.

Our future liquidity needs will depend on, among other factors, the timing and extent of technology
development expenditures, new business bookings, the timing and collection of receivables and continuing
initiatives designed to improve operating cash flow. We believe that our current cash balances and anticipated
operating cash flow will be sufficient to fund our normal operating requirements for the next 12 months,
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

As of December 31, 2006, our principal contractual obligations and commercial commitments consisted
of obligations outstanding under our line of credit, long-term office and classroom leases, obligations under
promissory notes entered into in connection with acquisitions, employment agreements and several capital
leases of computer equipment. As of December 31, 2006, we operated from leased premises in Arizona,
California, Colorado, Georgia, lltinois, Louisiana, Maryland, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Missouri, New Jersey,
New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, Washington,
Washington D.C., Puerto Rico and Canada.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and other commercial commitments set forth
therein as of December 31, 2006.

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
($ in millions)

Long-term debt obligations . .. ..................... $17.4 $ 3.7 $ 1.7 %120 $—
Capital lease obligations 1.1 0.7 0.4 — —
Operating lease obligations 30.6 5.5 99 7.2 8.0
Purchase obligations(1}. .. ........... ... .. ... ..., 4.4 3.4 L0 — =

Total. .. ... $53.5 $13.3 $13.0 3192 $8.0

|

(1) Purchase obligations consist of payments required under employment agreements.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — a
Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 37 (“SFAS 154”). SFAS 154 requires
retrospective application to prior period financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it is
impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS 154
also redefines “restatement™ as the revising of previously issved financial statements to reflect the correction
of an error. This statement is effective for accounting changes and a correction of errors made in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2005 and did not have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) released FASB Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”).
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting and reporting for uncertainties in income taxes and prescribes a comprehensive
model for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 prescribes a two-step evaluation process
for tax positions. The first step is recognition based on a determination of whether it is more likely than not
that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation
processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The second step is to measure a tax position that
meets the more-likely-than-not threshold. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is
greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. If a tax position does not meet the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position is not recognized in the financial statements.
FIN 48 is effective beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The cumulative effects, if any, of applying
FIN 48 will be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption
which for calendar year companies is January 1, 2007. The Company does not expect this pronouncement to
have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The estimates, methods and judgments we use in applying our accounting policies significantly impact
the results we report in our financial statements. Some of our accounting policies require us to make subjective
and difficult judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain,
QOur most critical accounting estimates include the assessment of the collectability of cur accounts receivable
balances, which impacts bad debt write-offs; recoverability of goodwill, which impacts goodwill impairment
expense; assessment of recoverability of long-lived assets, which primarily impacts operating margins when
we record the impairment of assets or accelerate their depreciation; valuation of embedded derivatives and
warrant which impacts gain or loss on derivative instruments; recognition and measurement of current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities, which impacts our tax provision, revenue recognition requirements,
which impacts how and when we recognize revenue from our goeds and services and the estimates we use to
record stock-based compensation expense. Below, we discuss these policies further, as well as the estimates
and judgments involved.

We also have other policies that we consider to be key accounting policies. However, these policies do
not meet the definition of critical accounting estimates because they do not generally require us to make
estimates or judgments that are difficult or subjective.

Accounts Receivable. 'We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for losses resulting from the
inability of our customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances for uncollect-
ible accounts may be required. We review our aged receivables monthly. This review includes discussions with
our customers and their account representatives, the customers’ payment history and other factors. Based on
these reviews we may increase or decrease our allowance for uncollectible accounts if we determine there is a
change in the collectability of our accounts receivable.

Goodwill and Territorial Marketing Rights. We perform an annual goodwill impairment review during
the fourth quarter, or more frequently if indicators of potential impairment exist. No impairment was indicated
in 2006 or 2005. In 2004, we recorded an impairment expense of $8.2 million against goodwill in our
Admissions Services division due to the continued poor performance of this division. Our impairment review
process is based on a discounted future cash flow approach that uses our estimates of revenue for the reporting
units, driven by assumed market growth rates as well as appropriate discount rates. These estimates are
consistent with the plans and estimates that we use to manage the underlying businesses.

Long-Lived Assets. 'We assess the impairment of long-lived assets when events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying value of the assets or the asset grouping may not be recoverable. Factors we
consider in deciding when to perform an impairment review include significant under-performance of a
business or product line in relation to expectations, significant negative industry or economic trends and
significant changes or planned changes in our use of the assets. Recoverability of assets that will continue to
be used in our operations is measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset grouping to the related
total future undiscounted net cash flows. If an asset grouping’s carrying value is not recoverable through those
cash flows, the asset grouping is considered to be impaired. The impairment is measured by the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and their fair value, based on the best information available, including
market prices or discounted cash flow analysis.

Embedded Derivatives and Warrant. Our Series B-1 Preferred Stock contains two embedded derivatives
that, consistent with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting
Jor Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” are accounted for separately from the Preferred Stock. The
two embedded derivatives, the “holder’s conversion option™ and the “make whole” provision, are accounted
for on a combined basis and, along with the warrant, reported at fair value. Any changes to fair value are
reflected in “Other Income (Expense)” and totaled $211,000, $1.3 million and $918,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We must calculate the fair value of these embedded
derivatives and warrant at the end of each quarter, In making these calculations, the key estimates and
assumptions that we use include the estimated life of the Preferred Stock and the warrant, the volatility rates
applicable to the trading price of our common stock and the probability of events that would trigger the
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operation of the “make whole” provision. Factors considered in the determination of the key assumptions
include the likelihood of the holder’s conversion or redemption based upon current stock prices and interest
rates, as well as historical stock prices to determine volatility, Currently, the Company’s use of derivatives is
limited to the embedded features within its Preferred Stock.

Income Taxes. In determining income for financial statement purposes, we must make certain estimates
and judgments. These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax liabilities and in the
determination of the recoverability of certain of the deferred tax assets, which arise from temporary differences
between the tax and financial statement recognition of revenue and expense.

We must assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets. If recovery is not
likely, we must increase our provision for taxes by recording a reserve, in the form of a valuation allowance,
for the deferred tax assets that we estimate will not ultimately be recoverable. At December 31, 2006, we had
a net deferred tax asset of approximately $26.5 million, primarily relating to our net operating loss
carryforwards of $64.1 million, which expire in varying amounts between 2021 and 2025,

Realization of our deferred tax asset is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income in the United
States prior to expiration of these loss carryforwards. As of December 31, 2004, we recorded a valuation
allowance for the entire net deferred tax asset because our loss in 2004 and the emphasis placed on cumulative
losses under generally accepted accounting principles represented sufficient evidence under SFAS No. 109
“Accounting for Income Taxes” for us to determine that it was appropriate to establish a full valuation
allowance. If, in the future, an appropriate level and consistency of profitability is attained, we would reduce
the valuation allowance, which could have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. In general our revenue recognition policies do not require us to make estimates or
judgments that are difficult or subjective, with the possible exception being the recognition of revenue for
separate units of accounting in accordance with EITF No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables.” In accounting for multiple-element arrangements, one of the key judgments to be made is the
accounting value that is attributable to the different contractual elements. The appropriate allocation of value
not only impacts which segment is credited with the revenue, it also impacts the amount and timing of revenue
recorded in the consolidated statement of operations during a given period due to the differing methods of
recognizing revenue for each product or service by each of the segments. Revenue is allocated to each element
based on the accounting determination of the relative fair value of that element to the aggregate fair value of
all elements. The fair values must be reliable, verifiable and objectively determinable. When available, such
determination is based principally on the pricing of similar arrangements with unrelated parties that are not
part of a multiple-element arrangement. If fair values are not objectively determinable, revenue is recorded as
unearned and recognized ratably over the service period.

Stock Based Compensation.

Stock-based Compensation.  Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 {revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (Statement 123(R)), applying the
modified prospective method. Prior to the adoption of Statement 123(R), the Company applied the provisions
of the Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APBO) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” in
accounting for its stock-based awards and accordingly, recognized no compensation cost for its stock options.

Under the modified-prospective method, Statement 123(R) applies to new awards and to awards that were
outstanding as of December 31, 2005 that are subsequently modified, repurchased or cancelled. Compensation
expense recognized during the year ended December 31, 2006 includes the expense for all share-based
payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of December 31, 2005, based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the original provisions of Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (Statement 123), and the expense for all share-based payments granted during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the
provisions of Statement 123(R). Prior period results have not been restated.
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Stock based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $500,000. The Company used the
Black-Sholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of options granted. The assumptions used in
valuing the options granted during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are included in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements.

Because option-pricing models incorporate ranges of assumptions, those ranges are disclosed. These
assumnptions are based on various factors, including, expected future exercise patterns and the expected
volatility of the Company’s stock price. The risk-free interest rate is the imputed forward rate based on the
U.S. Treasury yield at the date of grant. The Company uses the historical volatility of the Company’s stock
price over the expected term of the options to estimate the expected volatility.

Impact of Inflation

Inflation has not had a significant impact on our historical operations.

Seasonality in Results of Operations

We experience, and we expect to continue to experience, seasonal fluctuations in our revenue because the
markets in which we operate are subject to seasonal fluctuations based on the scheduled dates for standardized
admissions tests and the typical school year. These fluctuations could result in volatility or adversely affect our
stock price. We typically generate the largest portion of our test preparation revenue in the third quarter.
However, as SES revenues increase, we expect to recognize these revenues primarily in the first and fourth
quarters. The electronic application revenue recorded in our Admissions Services division was highest in the
first and fourth quarters, corresponding with the busiest times of year for submission of applications to
academic institutions. Our K-12 Services division experiences seasonal fluctuations in revenue, with the first
and fourth quarters (corresponding to the school year) expected to have the highest revenue.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Our portfolio of marketable securities includes primarily short-term money market funds, The fair value
of our portfolio of marketable securities would not be significantly impacted by either a 100 basis point
increase or decrease in interest rates due primarily to the short-term nature of the portfolio. Our Series B-1
Preferred Stock requires the payment of quarterly dividends at the greater of 5% or 1.5% above 90-day LIBOR
(5.3% at December 31, 2006). During 2006 and 2005, we paid dividends on the Series B-1 Preferred Stock in
an aggregate amount of $517,000 and $534,000, at an average rate of 5.1% and 3.3% in 2006 and 2003,
respectively. A 100 basis point increase in the dividend rate would have resulted in a $100,000 increase in
dividends paid during these periods.

Borrowings under our credit facility, entered into on April 10, 2006, currently bear interest at the
following rates: Outstanding amounts under the credit facility up to $10.0 million bear interest at rates based
on either (A) 300 basis points over the greater of (x) the prime rate and (y) the Federal Funds Rate plus
50 basis points or (B) 400 basis points over LIBOR, at our election. Qutstanding amounts under the credit
facility in excess of $10.0 million (or the borrowing base amount, if lower) bear interest at either (A) 400 basis
points over the greater of (x) the prime rate and (y) the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points or (B) 500 basis
points over the LIBOR rate, at our election. During 2006, we paid interest on borrowings under our credit
facility in an aggregate amount of $674.000 at a weighted average interest rate of 9.3%. A 100 basis point
increase in the interest rate would have resulted in a $72,000 increase in interest paid during this period. As
more fully described in Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements, we must account for the embedded
derivatives and warrant related to our Series B-1 Preferred Stock. Other than these embedded derivatives, we
do not hold any derivative financial instruments.

Revenue from our international operations and royalty payments from our international franchisees
constitute an insignificant percentage of our revenue. Accordingly, our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations
is minimal.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of The Princeton Review, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Princeton Review, Inc, and
Subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2006. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 8. These financial
statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audiis provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of The Princeton Review, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2006 and 2005 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.,
Also, in our opinion the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein,

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, The Princeton
Review, Inc. adopied Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R}, “Share-Based Payment” using
the modified-prospective transition method.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of The Princeton Review, Inc.’s internal contrel over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
March 30, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment and an adverse opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

/s/  ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, NY
March 30, 2007
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THE PRINCETON REVIEW, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands, except
share data)
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash of $488 in 2006 and
B2550n 2005) . . i e e e e e e, $ 10,822 % 8,002
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $2,848 in 2006 and $1,601 in 2005. .. ... 31,531 22,493
Accounts recetvable-related parties . . ... ... ..o 124 1,591
Other receivables, including $1,891 in 2006 and $788 in 2005 from related
PATHIES L o ot 1,999 813
IV EMIOTY L L Lt e e 2,950 2,798
Prepaid XPenses . . ..o it e e 1,834 2,229
OUher CUITENE 88865 . . . v vttt it ot te s ta s e e e e e e o 2,612 1,307
TOtal CUITENT ASSEIS . & o v v vt et e e m et m s tm e e e e e et e 51,872 39,233
Furniture, fixtures, equipment and software development, met .. ... .. .......... 16,209 16,155
GoodWill . . e e e e e e e e 31,506 31,506
Investment in affiliates . . . . .. oo e e e e e e e 1,639 1,938
Other intangibles, net. . .. ...... ... ... ... .. ... .. ... et e e 12,810 13,371
11 T=) oyt =1 -G 4,072 3,168
TOtal ASSEES . . . . ottt e e e e e e e e $118,108 $105,371
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Current liabilities:
Line of credit. . .. oottt e e e e e $ 3000 3 —
Accounts payable . . ... .. .. e 15,220 10,449
AcCrued BXpPEISES. . . . v vt e e 11,954 10,826
Current maturities of long-termdebt . . . . .. ... ... . .. L i 1,369 1,530
Deferred INCOME . .. .. . i e e et e e e e 22,536 16,548
Total current Liabilities . . .. .. . .o i i i e s 54,079 39,353
| =) o ¢ =14 I (=1 ¢ | A OO 2,558 2,327
Long-term debt . . ... .. .t e 14,127 2,845
Fair value of derivatives and WarTant . .. ... ...ttt rreeeereoneann.. 181 393 .
Series B-1 Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value; 10,000 shares authorized; 6,000 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 10,000 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31,2005 ........ .. ... .. ... il 6,000 10,000
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 4,990,000 shares authorized, none issued and
outstanding. . . . ... e e e e — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 27,601,268 and
27,572,172 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively 276 276
Additional paid-in capital . . ....... ... . e 117,082 116,279
Accumulated deficit . .. .. .. ... e (75,871) {65,823)
Accumulated other comprehensive boss. .. ........ ... oo L (324) (279)
Total stockholders” equity . . ... .. .. . e 41,163 50,453
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. .. ... ... ... .. .. ... ... ... ..., $118,108  $105,371

See accompanying notes
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THE PRINCETON REVIEW, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of QOperations

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)
Revenue
Test Preparation Services. .. ... v v n it it e $ 92405 § 87360 § 74,297
L N T T 35,694 31,932 28,403
AdMISSIONS SEIVICES . - . - o ot e e e e 12,641 11,252 11,085
Total FEVEIUE . . . . . i e e e e e e 140,740 130,544 113,785
Cost of revenue
Test Preparation Services. . .. ...ttt 31,907 27,917 23,553
K- ServiCeS . oot i et e e e e 21,703 16,274 13,308
Admissions Services . . . ... ot e e 5,510 4,251 2,941
Total costof revenue . . . ... ... ... .. ... e 59,120 48,442 39,802
Gross Profit . . .. ... ... . 81,620 82,102 73,983
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative. . .. ..... .. ... ... ... .. ...... 90,012 86,352 79,231
Impairment of investment and goodwill . ... ... . ... ... ......... 300 — 8,199
Total operaling eXpenses .. ... ...t 90,312 86,352 37,431
Loss from Operations . ... ... ...ttt e (8,602} (4,250% (13,447)
Interest income (EXPENSEY . . . .. vttt ittt e (650) (354) (361)
Other income (EXPENSE) . - .. v vttt e e e e e (36) 2,415 918
Equity in the income (loss) of affiliates . . .. ...................... — 4 103
Income (loss) before income taxes. ... ......................... (9,378) (2,185) (12,787)
(Provision) benefit forincome taxes . .......... ... . .. i (153} — (16,708)
Netincome (1088}, . . ... ... i e e i (9,331) (2,185) (29,495)
Dividends and accretien on Series B-1 Preferred Stock .. ... . ... ... (517 (2,443) (1,439
Income (loss) attributed to common stockholders. . .. ............. $(10,048) 3 (4,628) $(30,934)
Basic inlcome (lossypershare . .. ........ ... . ... ... ........ § @036 $ i § (113
Diluted income (loss) pershare. .. ....... ... ... . ... ... ....... $ 036 $ ©I17 % (1.13)
Weighted average shares used in computing basic basic income (loss)
per share
Basic ... ... e 27,578 27,570 27,468
Diluted . . ... ... e 27,578 27,570 27,468

See accompanying notes
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THE PRINCETON REVIEW, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholders® Equity (Deficit)

Accumulated Total
Additional Other Stockholders’
__Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated  Comprehensive Equity
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income (loss) {Deficit)
(In thousands)
Balance at Janvary 1, 2004 . ... 27385 $274 $114,829 $(30,260) $(376) $ 84,467
Exercise of stock options . . . .. 121 1 834 —_ — 835
Shares issued in connection
with an equity investment . . . 64 | 499 — — 500
Stock based compensation . ... — — 98 — — 98
Dividends and accretion on
Series B-1
Preferred Stock. . ......... —_ — — (1,439) —_— (1,439)
Comprehensive loss
Netloss ......ooeveunn.. — — —_ (29.495) — (29,495)
Foreign currency gain
(loss) ................ —_ — — — 138 138
Comprehensive loss ......... — — —_ — — (29,357
Balance at December 31, |
2004, ... 27,570 $276 $116,260 $(61,194) $(238) $ 55,104 |
Exercise of stock options . .. .. 2 — 19 — — 19 |
Dividends and accretion on |
Series B-1
Preferred Stock. .. ........ — - — (2,443) — (2,443) i
Comprehensive loss
NELIOSS . - oo eeerennnn — — — (2,185) — (2,185) |
Foreign currency gain
(loss) ...... ... — — — — (42) {42)
Comprehensive loss ......... _— — —_ — — (2,227) |
Balance at December 31,
2005. . ... 27,572 $276 $116,279 $(65,823) $(279) $ 50,453
Exercise of stock options .. ... 14 — 62 — — 62
Stock-based compensation . . .. 15 — 741 — — 741
Dividends on Series B-1
Preferred Stock. . ......... — — — (517} — (517)
Comprehensive loss
Netloss ................ — — —_ (9,531) — (9,531}
Foreign currency gain
(loss) ................ — — — — 45 (45)
Comprehensive loss ......... — — — — — (9,176)
Balance at December 31,
2006, . ... ... 27,601 $276 $117,082 $(75,871) $(324) $41,163
See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,

2006

2005

2004

Cash flows provided by (used for) operating activities:
Net income (J08S) . . . vttt et et et et e e $ (9,531
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating

activities:

(In

thousands)

§ (2,182) $(29,495)

Depreciation . .. . ... ... . i e e 2,429 1,776 1,609
AMOMZatiON . .. it e e e 6,721 5,897 5,393
Impairment of investment and goodwill ........ .. ... ... .. ... ..... 300 — 8,199
Bad debt expense . . .. .. .. ... e e 2,772 1,328 1,521
Write-off of deferred financing costs .. ......... ... .. ... .. .. .. ... 347 117 —
Write-off of inventory 281 — —_—
Deferred income taxes (2,851) (1,520) (5,425)
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets . . .. ....... ..., 2,851 1,520 22,132
Deferred rent . . . .. ..o e 231 — —
Stock based compensation . ... ..., ... 741 — 98
Other, Mel . it e e (1,497 (52) (698)
Net change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . . . ... L e e e (11,330) (2,785) (3.510)
IVemOTY . . e e e e e e (433) (1,744) (153)
Prepaid eXpenses . . . .. .. i e e 362 211) 9
L 10T T (1,598) 880 (93)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . .......... ... e 5.834 5.575 (360)
Deferred iNCOME . . . . . oo e e e 5,988 (1,089) 4,758
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities ..................... 1,417 7,510 3985
Cash provided by (used for) investing activities:
Purchases of furniture, fixtures, equipment and software development. . .. ... .. (5,293) (8,258) (5,208)
Additions to capitalized K-12 content, capitalized course costs. . .. ....... ... (2,697) (5,595) (2,518)
Investment in affilates . . ... ... . . e e — — (850}
Purchases of franchises and other businesses, net of cash acquired ... .. ...... — — (130}
Payment of related party loan . ........ ... ... ... .. .. . i 526 33 —
Payment of note receivable . .. ... ... .. ... . . ... Lo L 316 250 400
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities. ., ., .................. (6,948) (13,570) (8,306)
Cash flows provided by (used for) financing activities;
Proceeds from the sale of Series B-1 Preferred Stock, net of issuance cost . .. .. _ — 9,682
Redemption of Series B-1 Preferred Stock .. ....... ... .. ... ... .. ... (4,377) —_— —
Proceeds (payments) from revolving credit facility and term loan 15,000 (2,000} 2,000
Payment of credit facility deferred financing costs .. .................... (296) — (145}
Notes issued in connection with sale of rights to franchisees .. ............. - (956} —_
Long-term debt borrowings — 367 —
Capital lease payments (786) 717N (555)
Dividends on Series B-1 Preferred Stock ... ... ... . . i i (517) (591) (374)
Notes payable related to acquisitions . ... ... ... ... .. ... {735) (1,257) (1,779
Proceeds from exercise of OPHONS . . .. ..ottt i e e e e 62 19 752
Net cash provided by {used for) financing activities . .................... 8,351 (5,135 9,581
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . ... ... ... .. ... .. 2,820 (11,195 5,260
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period. . . ... . ....... . ... ... . ... 8,002 19,197 13,937
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .. .. ... .. ... . ... . L. $10,822 $ 3002 $19,197
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid during the period forinterest ... .............. .. ... ..... $ 1,012 § 580 $§ 564
Supplemental schedule of noncash financing activities:
Equipment acquired through capital leases . ......................... $§ 88 § 316 $ 1276

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
Business

The Princeton Review, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries (together, the “Company”), are engaged in
the business of providing courses that prepare students for college, graduate school and other admissions tests.
The Company, through Princeton Review Operations, LLC, provides these courses in various locations
throughout the United States and Canada and over the Internet. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had
seven franchisees operating approximately 18 offices under the Princeton Review name in the United States
and 16 franchises with approximately 50 offices in 20 countries. The Company also sells support materials
and equipment to its franchisees, author’s content for various books and software products published by third
parties, sells marketing and web-based products to higher education institutions, operates a Web site providing
education-related content and provides a number of services to K-12 schools and school districts to help them
measurably improve academic performance.

In November 2006, due to a planned restatement of its historical financial statements as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company was unable to timely file its Form 10Q for the third
quarter of 2006 resulting in the Company failing to maintain an effective registration statement for the benefit
of the holder of its Series B-1 Preferred Stock and losing its eligibility to register securities on Form §-3.
Under the Company’s agreement with the holder of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, if the holder requests
redemption of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock and the Company elects to redeem in common shares, the
Company must issue registered common shares. If the Company cannot issue registered shares, then it must
redeem for cash. Accordingly, there is the possibility that the Company may be required to fund any future
redemptions in cash until it is again able to maintain an effective resale registration statement for the benefit
of the holder of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing the
registration requirements.

As of March 27, 2007, Series B-1 Preferred Stock of $6 million was outstanding and available for
redemption. If the holder of the Preferred Stock currently demanded redemption, there existed substantial
doubt that the Company would have sufficient cash to complete the redemption. On March 30, 2007, the
Company borrowed $3 million pursuant to an increase negotiated in their existing line of credit agreement
which, along with cash on-hand and cash generated from operations, should provide the funds necessary to
effect any such potential redemption.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Princeton Review, Inc.
and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Significant accounting estimates used include estimates for uncollectible accounts
receivable, deferred tax valuation allowances, impairment write downs, amortization lives assigned to
intangible assets and fair values of assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period balance sheet, cash flow amounts and operating expenses between segments have
been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.
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Cash and Cash Eguivalents

As of December 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents consist of investments in securities issued or
guaranteed by the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities, which have maturities of 90 days or less
at the date of purchase. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 approximately 90% of the Company’s cash and
cash equivalents were on hand at one financial institution.

Restricted Cash

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, restricted cash was $488,000 and $255,000 attributable to cash the
Company pledged as collateral to landlord as a security deposit in the form of a Certificate of Deposit and to
the State of Tennessee as a performance bond.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company provides credit, in the normal course of business, to its customers. The Company maintains
an allowance for doubtful customer accounts for estimated losses that may result from the inability of the
Company’s customers to make required payments. That estimate is based on a variety of factors, including
historical collection experience, current economic and market conditions, and a review of the current status of
each customer’s trade accounts receivable. The Company charges actual losses when incurred to this
allowance.

Inventories

Inventories consist of program support equipment, course materials and supplies. All inventories are
valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market.

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
principally ranging from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line
method over the lesser of the lease term or its estimated economic useful life. Lease terms used are based
upon the initial lease agreement and do not consider potential renewals or extensions until such time that the
renewals or extensions are contracted.

Software and Web Site Development

The Company accounts for internal use software development in accordance with the provisions of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position (“SOP”) 98-1, Accounting for the
Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use and Emerging Issues Task Force
("EITF") 00-2, Accounting for Web site Development Costs.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company expensed approximately
$3.8 million, $2.7 million and $3.8 million, respectively, of product development costs that were incurred in
the preliminary project stage under SOP 98-1 and EITF 00-2. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and
20035, the Company capitalized approximately $4.1 million and $5.0 million, respectively, in product and web
site development costs under SOP 98-1 and EITF 00-2. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, the Company recorded related amortization expense of approximately $3.6 million, $3.1 million and
$2.8 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the net book value of these capitalized product
and web site development costs were $7.7 million and $7.2 million, respectively. These capitalized costs are
amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets ranging from 12 to
60 months.
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Goodwill, Capitalized Course Costs, Capitalized K-12 Content and Other Intangible Assets.

Goodwill represents the excess purchase price of acquired businesses over the estimated fair value of net
assets acquired.

Territorial marketing rights represent rights contributed by our independent franchisees to our former
subsidiary, Princeton Review Publishing, L.L.C., in 1995 in exchange for membership units of Princeton
Review Publishing, L.L.C. to allow the marketing of the Company’s products on a contractually agreed-upon
basis within the franchisee territories. Without these rights, the Company would be prohibited from selling its
products in these territories due to the exclusivity granted to the franchisees within their territories. Should a
franchisee decide not to renew its franchise agreement, which is unlikely unless there is a sale of the franchise
back to the Company, these rights would remain with the Company. Since no legal, regulatory, contraciual,
competitive, or other factors limit the useful life of territorial marketing rights, the Company has deemed these
intangibte assets to have indefinite lives. Goodwill and territorial marketing rights were amortized on a
straight-line basis until December 31, 2001, after which such amortization ceased upon the adoption of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 142. Accordingly, the Company’s goodwill and
territorial marketing rights that are deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are subject to
annual impairment tests.

Capitalized course costs include certain expenditures incurred by our Test Preparation Services division to
develop test preparation courses and consist primarily of amounts paid to consultants and salaries of employees
hired to develop course materials and curriculum. Course costs are capitalized only when a course is first
developed or there is a major revision to a course or significant re-write of the course materials or curriculum,
for example, when the related test changes. The amortization period for these costs is five years, based upon
the average life cycle of the related standardized tests. Amortization of these capitalized course costs
commences with the realization of course revenues. The cost of minor enhancements or annual updates to the
curriculum and materials is expensed as incurred.

Capitalized K-12 content includes certain expenditures incurred by our K-12 Services division to produce
questions and lessons primarily for math, reading and language arts subjects typically taught in grades one
through 11 and consist primarily of amounts paid o consultants and salaries of employees hired to produce
these questions or lessons. These questions or lessons are used in numerous products sold by the K-12
Services division, including the Homeroom subscription service, printed materials and live instruction products.
Only expenditures for questions or lessons that allow the Company to enter into new markets, such as new
geographic areas or grades, or that significantly enhance the marketability of the Company’s products, such as
a new subject area, are capitalized. The amortization period for these costs is seven years, based on numerous
factors, including the average lives of similar products and the cycle of major changes in educational
philosophies and methodologies as reflected by the adoption cycles of state tests and textbooks. Amortization
of these capitalized K-12 content costs commences when the questions or lessons are available for use. The
cost of planning, marketing and maintenance related to this content is expensed as incurred, as is the cost of
design and feasibility work.

Publishing rights primarily consist of amounts paid in 1995 to certain co-authors to purchase their rights
to future royalties on certain books, including Cracking the SAT/PSAT, Cracking the LSAT, Cracking the GRE,
Cracking the GMAT, The Besr 361 Colleges and Word Smart. These books are primarily current reference
materials that are updated every one or two years. Publishing rights are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over 25 years.

Franchise costs represent the cost of franchise rights purchased by the Company from third parties and
are amortized using the straight-line method over the remaining useful life of the applicable franchise
agreement.
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Customer {ists were purchased by the Company from Embark.com, Inc. (“Embark™} in 2001 and consist
primarily of academic institution customers of the Company’s Admissions Services division. At the time of the
acquisition, an independent party completed a valuation of the customer list using a discounted cash flow
analysis and assumed an eight percent annual loss of customer revenues. Customer lists are amortized on a
straight-line basis over 10 years,

Other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives: three to 20 years for
trademarks/tradenames and for non-compete agreements,

See Note 5 for further information with respect to the Company’s goodwill and other intangible assets.

Impairment
Goodwill and Territorial Marketing Rights

As noted above, the Company adopted SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” under which
goodwill and territorial marketing rights are no longer amortized but instead goodwill and territorial marketing
rights are assessed for impairment annually. In making this assessment, management relies on a number of
factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows, and
transactions and market place data. Goodwill is assigned to specific reporting units and is reviewed for
possible impairment at least annually or more frequently upon the occurrence of an event or when
circumstances indicate that a reporting unit’s carrying amount is greater than its fair value, During the fourth
quarter of 2006, the Company completed its annual assessment for impairment and determined that there was
no such impairment against the current carrying amount, During 2004, the carrying amount of goodwill for
one of its reporting units exceeded its fair value. As a result of the seccond step analysis, a goodwill
impairment of approximately $8.2 million was recognized.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets, which excludes goodwill and territorial marketing rights, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. If such review indicates that an asset may not be recoverable, an impairment loss is
recognized for the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of an asset to be held and used or over
the fair value less cost to sell an asset to be disposed. During 2006 and 2005, no impairment charge was
required.

Investments in Affiliates

The Company values its investments in affiliate companies in which it has a less than 50% ownership
interest and can exercise significant influence using the equity method of accounting. Investments in affiliate
companies in which the Company has a less than 20% ownership interest and does not have the ability to
exercise significant influence are accounted for using the cost method of accounting. The Company has
evaluated its investment under FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” and
concluded that consolidation is not required.

Deferred Income

Deferred income represents tuition and customer deposits (which are refundable prior to the commence-
ment of the program), college marketing fees and subscription services, professional development fees and
fees for printed materials. Tuition is applied to income ratably over the periods in which it is earned, generally
the term of the program. College marketing fees and subscription fees are applied to income ratably over the
life of the agreements, which typically range from one to two years. Fees for professional development and
printed materials are recognized as the services and products are delivered.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of products and services as follows:

Course and Tutoring Income

Tuition and tutoring fees are paid to the Company and recognized over the life of the course.

Book, Software and Publication Income and Expenses

The Company recognizes revenue from both performance-based fees such as marketing fees and royalties
and delivery-based fees such as advances, copy editing fees, workbook development and test booklet fees and
books sold directly to schools. Performance-based fees, which represent royalties on books and software sold,
are recognized when sales reports are received from the publishers. Delivery-based fees are recognized upon
the completion and acceptance of the product by the publishers and/or customers. Until such time, all costs
and revenues related to such delivery-based fees are deferred. Book advances are recorded as liabilities and
deferred book expenses are included in other current assets.

Royalty Service Fees

As consideration of the rights and entitlements granted under franchise agreements, which entitle the
franchisees to provide test preparation and SES services utilizing the Princeton Review method in their
licensed territories, the franchisees are required to pay to the Company a monthly royalty service fee equal to
8.9% — 9.5% of the franchise’s gross receipts collected during the preceding month. Royalties received from
franchisees also include a $27.00 per student fee for use, by their students, of our on-line supplemental course
tools. Those of our franchisees that purchased the rights to offer SES courses in their territories also pay us a
8% royalty with respect to the cash receipts they earn from those courses. The Company’s franchisees’
contributions to the marketing fund are also recognized by the Company as royalty revenue (see Note 8).
Under the terms of the franchise agreements, the Company has the right to perform audits of royalty service
fees reported by the franchisees. Any differences resulting from an audit, including related interest and
penalties, if any, are recorded upon the completion of the audit when such amounts are determinable.

Course Materials and Other Products
The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of course materials and other products to the
independently owned franchises upon shipment.
Lead Generation Fees
The Company recognizes revenue from lead generation fees as the service is delivered to these
institutions.
College Marketing and Subscription Fees
The Company recognizes revenue from subscription fees for web-based services over the life of the
contract, which is typically one to two years.
Transaction Processing Fees

The Company recognizes revenue from transaction processing fees, such as web-based school application
fees, as the transactions are completed.
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Multiple-deliverable contracts

Certain of the Company’s customer contracts represent multiple-element arrangements, which may
include several of the Company’s products and services. Multiple-element arrangements are assessed to
determine whether they can be separated into more than one unit of accounting. A multiple-element
arrangement is separated into more than one unit of accounting if all of the criteria in EITF Issue 00-21,
“Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” are met. If there is objective and reliable evidence of fair
value for all units of accounting in an arrangement, the arrangement consideration is allocated to the separate
units of accounting based on each unit’s relative fair value and the revenue policies described above are then
applied to each unit of accounting. If fair values are not objectively determinable, revenue is recorded as
unearned and recognized ratably over the service period.

Other Revenue

Other revenue consists of miscellaneous fees for other services provided to third parties primarily for
assessment tests, authoring questions, advertising, training and professional development fees, which are
recognized as the products or services are delivered. Other revenue also includes college marketing fees, such
as newsletter or banner ads, which are recognized ratably over the period in which the marketing services.are
provided, which is typically one year.

Revenue Components

The following table summarizes the Company’s revenue and cost of revenue for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004: "

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Revenue
R T $111,935 $110292 $ 96,031
Products . . ... . .. 19,706 11,361 8,702
LT 9,099 8,890 9,053
Total TEVENUE . . . . . . $140,740 $130,544 $113,785
Cost of Revenue
BBIVICES © - o ottt $ 52870 § 42090 $ 37331
Products . . ... e e e e 5,635 5,836 1,886
Other . .. e e e e e 615 516 585
Total cost Of TEVENUE . . . . . .. o e e £ 59,120 $ 48442 $ 39,802

Foreign Currency Traunslation

Balance sheet accounts of the Company’s Canadian subsidiary, with the exception of certain historical
rate-based assets, are translated using year-end exchange rates. Statement of operations accounts, with the
exception of depreciation and amortization, are translated at monthly average exchange rates. The resuiting
translation adjustment is recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Foreign exchange gains
and losses for all the years presented were not significant. The accumulated balance as a component of
comprehensive income, comprised entirely of foreign exchange differences, was approximately $309,000 and
$262,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Advertising and Promotion

Advertising and promotion costs are expensed in the year incurred. Costs related to producing mailers
and other pamphlets are expensed when mailed. Due to the seasonal nature of the business, most advertising
costs related to mailers and pamphlets are expensed by the end of the year. Total advertising and promotion
expense was approximately $6.5 million, $6.8 million, and $6.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

For financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other receivables and
accounts payable, the carrying amount approximated fair value because of their short maturity. The carrying
value of the Company’s debt approximated fair value as the interest rates for the debt approximated market
rates of interest available to the Company for similar instruments.

Embedded Derivatives and Warrant

The Company’s Series B-1 Preferred Stock contains two embedded derivatives that, consistent with the
requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities” are accounted for separately from the Preferred Stock. The two embedded derivatives,
the “holder’s conversion option™ and the “make whole™ provision are accounted for on a combined basis and
reported at fair value. In addition, when the Company issued the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, it granted the
holder the right {a warrant) to purchase up to 20,000 shares of additional Preferred Stock. (See Note 7). The
Company’s use of derivatives is limited to the embedded features within its Preferred Stock. Any changes to
fair value are reflected in “Other Income (Expense)” and totaled $148,000, $1.3 million and $918,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company does not have any other
derivative instruments.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk include cash
and cash equivalents and accounts receivable arising from its normal business activities. The Company places
its cash and cash equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions.

Concentrations of credit risks with respect to accounts receivable are limited due to the large number of
entities comprising the payor base, and their dispersion across different states. The Company does not require
collateral,

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes based upon the provisions of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes. Under SFAS 109, the liability method is used for accounting for income taxes, and deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax basis of assets
and liabilities. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not that some or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share information for all periods is presented under the
requirements of SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share. Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing
net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net income (loss) per share is determined in the same manner as basic
net income (loss) per share, except that the number of shares is increased assuming exercise of dilutive stock
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options, warrants and convertible securities. The calculation of diluted net income (loss} per share excludes
potential common shares if the effect is antidilutive.

During the periods presented, stock options and securities convertible into or exercisable for common
stock were outstanding that would be dilutive but were excluded because to include them would have been
antidilutive (see Note 14).

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for the issuance of stock options under the recognition
and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB™) No, 23, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related interpretations, as permitted by FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. No stock-based employee compensation cost was recognized in the Staternent of Operations as
all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition
provision of FASB Statement No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, using the modified-prospective transition
method. Under that transition method, compensation cost recognized for the year ended December 31, 2006
includes: (a) compensation cost of all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1,
2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of Statement 123,
and (b) compensation cost of all share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of Statement 123(R). Results of prior periods
have not been restated.

As a result of adopting Statement 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company’s loss before taxes and net
loss for the year ended December 31, 2006, is $500,000 higher than if it had continued to account for share-
based compensation under APB 25. Basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2006
are $0.02 higher than if the company had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25.

Prior to the adoption of Statement 123(R), the Company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting
from the exercise of stock options as operating cash flows in the Statement of Cash Flows. Statement 123(R)
requires the cash flows resulting from the tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the
compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows.
Because of the Company’s historical net losses, and the uncertainty as to the realizability of its tax benefits, no
tax benefits have been recorded.
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The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had
applied the fair value recognition provision of Statement 123(R) to options granted under the Company’s stock
option plan for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. For purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the
value of the options is estimated using a Black-Scholes option-pricing formula and amortized to expense over
the options’ vesting periods.

Year Ended
December 31,

2005 2004

(In thousands, except
per share amounts)

Net income (loss) attributed to common stockholders, as reported . ... ... ... $(4,628) $(30,934)
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair-value

based method for all awards, net of related tax effects . . .. ............. (3,467) (1,178)
Pro forma net income (loss) attributed to common stockholders . . ... ....... $(8,095) $(32,112)

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share:
ASTEPOItEd - . . oL $017) § (1.13)

Pro fOrma. . . o e $ 029 % (a7

After the Company’s initial public offering, these options were valued using a Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The following weighted-average assumptions were used under this method:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Assumptions
Expected volatility . . .. ... ... ... ... ... 40% 54% 66%
Risk-free rate. . .. ... e e 5.00% 4.25% 4.25%
Expected dividends . .. ... ... ... .. ... et 09 0% 0%
Expected term {in years) . ... .. ... .. . 5.0 5.0 5.0

This option-valuation method requires input of highly subjective assumptions. Because the Company’s
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because
change in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s
opinion, the existing methods do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its
employee stock options. The effects of applying SFAS 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not indicative of
future amounts and additional awards in future years are anticipated. For purposes of pro forma disclosure, the
estimated fair value of the equity awards is amortized to expense, on a straight-line basis, over the options’
vesting period. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 was $2.57, $2.00 and $4.42, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, there were approximately
2,805,000 options exercisable with a weighted average remaining contractual life of approximately 5 years.

As of December 23, 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the acceleration of vesting of unvested stock options granted to employees of the Company
outstanding as of December 31, 2005 that have an exercise price at or greater than $7.00 and which are
scheduled to vest in the 24-month period following December 31, 2005. Options held by the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the Board of Directors are excluded
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from the vesting acceleration, There are approximately 360,000 options to purchase the Company’s common
stock that were accelerated. Options accelerated on behalf of the Company’s Executive Officers are as follows:

Weighted
Nurrtber of Average
Accelerated Exercise Price
Officer Title Options Per Share
Margot Lebenberg Executive Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel 27,500 $7.56
Stephen Quattrociocchi Executive Vice President 23,019 $7.35
Young . Shin. Executive Vice President 10,000 $7.30

The decision to accelerate vesting of these “out-of-the-money” stock options was made primarily to
minimize future compensation expense that the Company would otherwise have been required to recognize in
its consolidated statements of operations pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 123(R) (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” which became effective as to the Company beginning in
the first fiscal quarter of 2006. The Company believes that the aggregate future expense that will not be
included in future consolidated statements of operations as a result of this acceleration of vesting is
approximately $1.6 million.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections —a
Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3”7 (“SFAS 1547). SFAS 154 requires
retrospective application to prior period financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it is
impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS 154
also redefines “restatement” as the revising of previously issued financial statements to reflect the correction
of an error. This statement is effective for accounting changes and a correction of errors made in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2005 and did not have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) released FASB Interpretation No, 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1097 (“FIN 487).
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting and reporting for uncertainties in income taxes and prescribes a comprehensive
model for the financial statement recognition, measurement, Presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 prescribes a two-step evaluation process
for tax positions. The first step is recognition based on a determination of whether it is more likely than not
that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation
processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The second step is to measure a tax position that
meets the more-likely-than-not threshold. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is
greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. If a tax position does not meet the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position is not recognized in the financial statements.
FIN 48 is effective beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The cumulative effects, if any, or applying
FIN 48 will be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption
which for calendar year companies is January 1, 2007, The Company does not expect this pronouncement to
have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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2. Other Assets

3.

4.

stock, with an approximate value of $500,000 at the time of issuance, and incurred approximately $162,000 of

Other assets (current} consists of the following:

December 31,

2006 2005
(In thousands)
Deferred book costs . . .. ... e e $1,988 § 297
Deferred financing expenses . . .. .. ... ... .. . i 51 ()]
Loans to officers, current portion . . . ... ... ... . ... 360 369
Loan receivable . ... ... ... . .. e e e 140 580
OtheT . L e 73 __ 6]
$2612  $1,307
Other assets (non-current} consists of the following;
’ December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)
Content and software development in progress. . .. ........oviiini.on.. $2,328 % 910
Security deposits . ... ... e e e 671 655
Loans to officers . ... ... . ... . ... . e e 495 876
Loanreceivable . . ... ... ... . .. . e 568 726
Other . . ..o _ o _ -
$4072  $3,168
Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment and Software Development
December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)
Computer qUIPIMENt. . . ... .o\ttt et e et e e e e $ 7634 § 7019
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .. ... .. .. ... .. . . ... ... 2,502 2,054
Computer,copier and phone equipment under capital lease .. .............. 3,876 3,258
Software and web site development — third party ...................... 6,388 4,648
Software and web site development — internaliy devetoped . .. ............ 12,691 10,374
Leaschold improvements. .. .......... .. ittt 7,052 6,732
40,142 34,085
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization, including $2,240 in 2006 and
$1,719 in 2005 of accumulated depreciation for assets under capital leases .. 23,933 17,930
$16,209 316,155

Investment in Affiliates

On June 25, 2004, the Company invested $625,000 and issued 63,562 shares of the Company’s common

acquisition costs for an approximate 25% equity interest in Oasis Children’s Services, LLC (“Qasis™), a

privately held company. Under the agreement, the Company guaranteed a minimum market value of the shares
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issued. Oasis sold all of the shares in the open market in December, 2005. The proceeds from the sale of the
shares fell short of the guaranteed amount, requiring the Company to pay an additional $117,000 in cash.

Oasis works with schools, school systems and communities to operate summer and after-school programs.
In conjunction with the investment, Oasis and the Company have agreed to, from time to time, jointly develop,
market and sell summer programs for the K-12 market that combine recreational and enrichment programs
and activities provided by Qasis with educational programs and activities provided by the Company. The
Company accounts for its investment in Oasis using the equity method. In 2006, the Company recorded an
impairment writedown of $300,000.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s net investment in Tutor.com was recorded as $0, as a
result of recording its share of Tutor.com losses. Pursuant to an agreement entered into on December 31, 2003,
the Company terminated its strategic relationship with Tutor.com and sold preferred stock it held in Tutor.com
for $300,000 in cash. As consideration for the termination of certain strategic agreements and the restructuring
of certain rights, the Company received an additional $200,000 in cash and $500,000 in notes which have
been paid in full at December 31, 2006. The Company retains a common stock position in Tutor.com,
representing approximately 2.5% of its outstanding equity, which was recorded as $0 as of December 31,
2005.

During 2001 and 2002, the Company invested $700,000 in SchoolNet, Inc. (“SchoolNet”), a privately
held education technology solutions company. The Company currently owns approximately 5% of SchoolNet.
The Company maintains a strategic marketing relationship with SchoolNet, through which SchoolNet markets
and distributes a version of the Company’s Assessment Center product called “Homeroom Inside.” As of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the value of the Company’s investment in SchoolNet was approximately
$356,000, net of an impairment writedown of approximately $344,000 in 2002, This investment is carried in
the K-12 Services Segment. The Company has also contracted with SchoolNet to provide Enterprise Resource
Planning software that monitors the use of the Assessment Center Web site.

5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following table summarizes the components of goodwill which is no longer subject to amortization:

Test
Prepa?ation K-12 Admissions
Services Services Services Total
(In thousands)

Balance as of January 1,2005 ................. 31,011 — 500 31,511

Other . ... i e e e )] — — (5)
Batlance as of December 31,2005, .............. $31,006 — $500 $31,506
Batance as of December 31,2006. .. ............ $31,006 — $500 $31,506

As a result of the Company’s annual evaluation of the impairment of intangible assets, the Company
recorded an $8.2 million charge for the impairment of goodwill related to the Admissions Services division in
2004,
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The following is a summary of other intangible assets:

December 31, 2006

December 31, 2005

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Gross
Accumulated Carrying
Amortization Net Amount

Accumulated
Amortization Net

Subject to Amortization Franchise

(In thousands)

COSES . . oo i e, $ $ 2359 $ 24 § 283 $ 239 $ 44
Publishing rights . . . ... ....... 1,761 830 931 1,761 757 1,004
Capitalized K-12 content. . . ..., 15,413 7,131 8,282 12,867 4,617 8,250
Trademark / tradename . ..... .. 316 22 338 254 84
Non-compete agreements . ... .. 1,244 1,239 5 1,244 1,198 46
Customer lists. . ............. 2,700 1,418 1,283 2,700 1,147 1,553
Capitalized course costs .. ... .. 1,762 980 782 1,610 701 909
$23,501 $12,173 11,329 $20,803 $8,913 11,890
Not Subject to Amortization
Territorial marketing rights . . . .. 1,481 1,481
$12.810 $13,371
{In thousands)
Aggregate amortization expense:
Actual:

200 e e e e $2,152

200 e e e 2,255

2006 e e 3,260

Estimate for fiscal year:

20T e e e e 3,608

2008 e e e e 3,564

2000 e e e 2,510

2000 e e e e 342

200l e e 279

6. Line of Credit and Long-Term Debt

In February 2005, the Company repaid the entire outstanding balance and terminated the three-year
revolving credit facility the Company had entered into in May of 2004 with Commerce Bank, N.A. The
outstanding balance at the time of payment was $2.0 millicn. Additionally, the Company wrote-off
unamortized deferred financing costs of approximately $0.1 million.

Credit Agreement

On April 10, 2006, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement™), among the
Company, Princeton Review Operations, L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“Operations™),
Golub Capital CP Funding, LLC and such other lenders who become signatory from time to time, and Golub
Capital Incorporated (“Golub”), as Administrative Agent,
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The Credit Agreement provides for a revolving credit facility with a term of five years and a maximum
aggregate principal amount of $6.0 million (the “Credit Facility”). Operations is a guarantor of the Company’s
obligations under the Credit Agreement. As of the date of execution, Golub Capital CP Funding is the only
lender party to the Credit Agreement.

The Company’s borrowings under the Credit Facility are secured by a first priority lien on all of the
Company’s and Operations’ assets. In addition, the Company pledged all of its equity interests in its
subsidiaries, and all other equity investments held by the Company to Golub as security for the Credit Facility.

The Credit Agreement contains affirmative, negative and financial covenants customary for financings of
this 1ype, including, among other things, limits on the Company’s ability to make investments and incur
indebtedness and liens, maintenance of a minimum level of EBITDA of the Company’s Test Preparation
Services Division, and maintenance of a minimum net worth. The Credit Agreement contains customary events |
of default for facilities of this type (with customary grace pertods and materiality thresholds, as applicable)
and provides that, upon the occurrence and continuation of an event of default, the interest rate on all }
outstanding obligations will be increased and payment of all outstanding loans may be accelerated and/for the
lenders’ commitments may be terminated.

On May 25, 2006, the Company entered into an amendment to the Credit Agreement (the “First
Amendment™). The First Amendment increased the amount available to the Company under the Credit Facility
from a maximum of $6.0 mullion to $10.0 million for the purpose of financing the redemption of certain
shares of Preferred Stock held by Fletcher International, Lid. and to fund the Company’s working capital
needs.

The First Amendment increased the annual interest rate of the Credit Facility. Outstanding amounts under
the Credit Facility bear interest at rates based on either (A) 195 basis point over the greater of the prime rate
and the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points (up from the prior 145 basis points) or (B) 400 basis points
over LIBOR (up from the prior 350 basis points), at the Company’s election and in accordance with the terms
of the Credit Agreement.

On November 3, 2006, the Company entered inte an amendment to the Credit Agreement (the “Second
Amendment”). The Second Amendment increased the amount available to the Company under the Credit
Facility from a maximum of $10.0 million to $15.0 million for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days from the
Effective Date to fund the Company’s working capital needs. After sixty (60) days from the Effective Date,
the amount by which outstanding amounts under the Credit Facility exceed $10.0 million must be repaid, or
converted into a term loan. The term of the Credit Facility remains unchanged at five years from the date of
the original Credit Agreement. The Company drew down the full additional $5.0 million under the Credit
Facility on November 3, 2006.

Under the Second Amendment, outstanding amounts under the Credit Facility up to $10.0 million bear
the same annual interest rate as under the Credit Agreement prior to the Second Amendment. Outstanding
amounts under the Credit Facility in excess of $10.0 million bear the following annua! interest rates: either
(A) 400 basis points over the greater of the prime rate and the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points or
(B) 500 basis points over LIBOR, at the Company’s election and in accordance with the terms of the Credit
Agreement.

In addition to increasing the amount available to the Company under the Credit Facility, the Lenders
waived any events of default that may have resulted from the Company’s decision to restate its financial
statements to correct its accounting for the Series B-1 Preferred Stock.

The line of credit continues to be secured by a first priority lien on all of the Company’s and Operation’s
assets, as well as by a pledge by the Company of its equity interests in Operations and The Princeton Review
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Canada, Inc. The Second Amendment did not materially alter the existing covenants contained in the Credit
Agreement. R

As more fully described in Note 16, the Company tncreased the line of credit to $15.0 million. At
December 31, 2006, the Company failed the minimum net worth covenant and obtained a waiver of that
covenant through January 1, 2008.

Notes Payable

On March 2, 2001, the Company completed its acquisition of Princeton Review of New Jersey, Inc. and
Princeton Review of Boston, Inc. The Company financed part of this acquisition with notes to the sellers
totaling $3,625,000. This balance was comprised of two notes. The first promissory note of $3,125,000 is
payable as to principal in 20 equal quarterly installments beginning with the 17th calendar quarter following
the closing date of the acquisition and bears interest at the rate of 8.25% per year, payable quarterly. The
second promissory note for $500,000 bears interest at the rate of 8.25% per year, payable on a quarterly basis,
and is payable as to the entire principal amount four years from its date of issuance. At December 31, 2006
and 2005, $1,875,000 and $2,500,000 was outstanding, respectively.

On July 11, 2003, the Company acquired 77% of Princeton Review of North Carolina, Inc with the
balance acquired from the minority shareholders on November 13, 2003. The Company financed part of this
acquisition with two notes, which included imputed interest at 5% per year. These notes are payable in annual
installments, including interest of approximately $125,000 per year in the years 2007 through 2010. At
December 31, 2006 and 2005, $500,000 and $609,000 was outstanding, respectively.

The annual maturities of notes payable as of December 31, 2006 are approximately as follows:

Amount
As of December 31, Maturing
- {In thousands)
2 L e $ 750
2008 .. e e e e e e s 758
2000 . e e e e e 765
2000 . o 144

$2.417

Capital Lease Obligations

At December 31, 2006, the Company has leased approximately $3.9 million of computers, copiers, and
phone equipment under capital leases, all of which are included in fixed assets
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The following is a schedule of the future minimum capital lease obligation payments together with the
present value of the minimum lease payments at December 31, 2006:

Year Ending December 31, (In thousands)
2007 L e e e $ o7
2008 . L e e e e e e 274
2009 e e e 130
2000 . e e e e e e e 50
2.1 1 3 18
Thereafter . . . e 2
U721 1,121
Less: amounts representing interest (effective interest rate ranges from 6% to [1%). . . (42)
Present value of minimum lease payments .. ......... ... i 1,079
Less: current portion of capital lease obligations . . . ... ... .. ... .. . o 618
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations. ... ..... ... ... .. ..o $ 461

Total Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)
Line Of CTeil . o o o o o et e e e e e s $15000 § —
Notes payable. .. ..o e 2,417 3.161
Capital lease obligations . . .. ... ... . ot i 1,079 1,214

AU JOmN . o vt e e e e e e e e e e e e —_— —_

18,496 4375
Less CUITent POTHON . . oo v vttt et v e e et et e et e a e e o 4,369 1,530

$14,127  $2,845

7. Series B-1 Preferred Stock

On June 4, 2004, the Company sold 10,000 shares of its Series B-1 Preferred Stock to Fletcher
International, Ltd. (“Fletcher”) for proceeds of $10,000,000. These shares are convertible into common stock
at any time. Prior to conversion, each share accrues dividends at an annual rate of the greater of 5% and the
90-day London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.5% (6.8 % at December 31, 2006), subject to
adjustment. Dividends are payable, at the Company’s option whether or not declared by the Board of
Directors, in cash or registered shares of common stock. At the time of issuance of the Series B-1 Preferred
Stock, each share of Series B-1 Preferred Stock was convertible into a number of shares of common stock
equal to: (1) the stated value of one share of Series B-1 Preferred Stock plus accrued and unpaid dividends,
divided by (2) the conversion price of $11.00, subject to adjustment. In accordance with the terms of the
agreement with the holder, the conversion price was decreased to $8.0860 per share, because effectiveness of
the registration statement relating to the Series B-1 Preferred Stock shares was delayed and the Company
thereafter failed to maintain its effectiveness.
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The holder may redeem its shares of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, in lieu of converting such shares, at
any time on or after November 28, 2005, for shares of common stock unless the Company satisfies the
conditions for cash redemption. If the holder elects to redeem its shares and the Company does not elect to
make such redemption in cash, then each share of Series B-1 Preferred Stock will be redeemed for a number
of shares of common stock equal to: (1) the stated value of $1,000 per share of Series B-1 Preferred Stock
plus accrued and unpaid dividends, divided by (2) 102.5% of the prevailing price of common stock at the time
of delivery of a redemption notice (based on an average daily trading price formula). If the holder elects to
redeern its shares and the Company elects to make such redemption in cash, then the holder will receive funds
equal to the product of: (1) the number of shares of common stock that would have been issuable if the holder
redeemed its shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock for shares of common stock; and (2) the closing price of the
common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on the date notice of redemption was delivered. As of June 4,
2014 the Company may redeem any shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock then outstanding. If the Company
elects to redeem such outstanding shares, the holder will receive funds equal to the product of: (1) the number
of shares of Serics B-1 Preferred Stock so redeemed, and (2) the stated value of $1,000 per share of Series B-1
Preferred Stock, plus accrued and unpaid dividends.

In addition, the Company granted the holder certain rights entitling the holder to purchase up to
20,000 shares of additional preferred stock, at a price of $1,000 per share, for an aggregate additional
consideration of $20,000,000. These rights to purchase additional shares are legally detachable from the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock and may be exercised by the holder separately from actions taken with regard to
the originally issued Series B-1 Preferred Stock. The agreement with the holder provides that any shares of
additional preferred stock will have the same conversion ratio as the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, except that
the conversion price will be the greater of (1) $11.00, or (2} 120% of the prevailing price of common stock at
the time of exercise of the rights (based on an average daily trading price formula), subject to adjustment upon
the occurrence of certain events. Due to the delay in the effectiveness of the registration statement relating to
the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, and the Company’s failure to maintain its effectiveness as required by the
agreement with the holder, the conversion price for any such additional series of preferred stock was reduced,
to the greater of (1) $8.0860, or (2) 88.21% of the prevailing price of common stock at the time of exercise of
the rights. These rights may be exercised by the helder on one or more occasions commencing July t, 2005,
and for the 24-month period thereafter, which period may be extended under certain circumstances. The
Agreement with the holder also provides that shares of additional preferred stock will also be redeemable upon
terms substantially similar to those of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock.

The Series B-1 Preferred Stock also contains a “make whole™ provision that indicates that if the Company
is party to a certain acquisition, asset sale, capital reorganization or other transaction in which the power 1o
cast the majority of the eligible votes at a meeting of the Company's shareholders is transferred to a single
entity or group, upon consummation of the transaction, the holder is entitled to receive (at the holder’s
election)

a) the consideration to which the holder would have been entitled had it converted the Series B-1
Preferred Stock into common stock immediately prior to consummation,

b} the consideration to which the holder would have been entitled had it redeemed the Series B-1
Preferred Stock for common stock immediately prior to consummation, or

¢) cash, initially equal to 160% of the aggregate redemption amount of the Series B-1 Preferred
Stock less 5% of the redemption amount for each full year the Series B-1 Preferred Stock was
outstanding.

During 2006 and 2005, cash dividends in the amount of $517,000 and $534,000, respectively were paid
to the Series B-1 Preferred stockholder
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Redemptions

On May 1, 2006 the Company received a notice from Fletcher pursuant to which Fletcher elected to
redeem 2,000 shares of the Company’s Series B-1 Preferred Stock. In accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Agreement, dated as of May 28, 2004, pursuant to which the Company issued the Series B-1
Preferred Stock to Fletcher, the Company redeemed such shares in cash, rather than common stock on May 31,
2006. Pursuant to the agreement, a premium of $190,000 was paid at the time of the redemption.

On May 3, 2006, the Company received a second notice from Fletcher pursuant to which Fletcher elected
to redeem an additional 2,000 shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock. The Company also redeemed such shares
in cash, rather than common stock on June 2, 2006. Pursuant to the agreement, a premium of $187,000 was
paid at the time of the redemption.

Embedded derivatives and warrant

The Series B-1 Preferred Stock includes, among others, the following terms, which the Company has
concluded constitute embedded derivatives:

* Holder Conversion Option — The Series B-1 Preferred Stock is convertible into the Company’s
common stock at the option of the holder at any time. The initial conversion price was §11.00 per
common share, but was decreased to $8.0860 per common share due to a delay in the effectiveness of
the registration statement relating to the Company’s commen stock issuable upon conversion of the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock and the subsequent failure to keep the registration statement effective in
accordance with the agreement with the holder. The Company may be required to further reduce the
conversion price upon certain events such as the issuance of common stock at a price below the
conversion price or if the Company fails to keep the registration statement current.

» “Make Whole” Provision — In the event that the Company is party to one of several transactions
classified as a “business combination,” upon consummation of the transaction, the holder is entitled to
receive (at the holder’s election)

a) the consideration to which the holder would have been entitled had it converted the Series B-1
Preferred Stock into common stock immediately prior to consummation,

b) the consideration to which the holder would have been entitled had it redeemed the Series B-1
Preferred Stock for common stock immediately prior to consummation, or

c) cash, initially equal to 160% of the aggregate redemption amount of the Series B-1 Preferred
Stock less 5% of the redemption amouni for each full year the Series B-1 Preferred Stock was
outstanding.

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivatives and Hedging
Activities” (SFAS 133), certain contractual terms that meet the accounting definition of a derivative must be
accounted for separately from the financial instrument in which they are embedded, The conversion option
meets SFAS 133’s definition of an embedded derivative. In addition, the conversion option is not considered
“conventional” because the number of shares received by the holder upon exercise of the option could change
under certain conditions. The conversion option is considered an equity derivative and its economic character-
istics are not considered (o be clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics of the Series B-1
Preferred Stock, which is a considered more akin to a debt instrument than equity. Accordingly, SFAS 133
requires that this embedded derivative be accounted for separately from the Series B-1 Preferred Stock.

Similarly, the embedded “make whole” provision also must be accounted for separately from the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock. The “make whole” provision specifies if certain events (such as a business
combination) that constitute a change of control occur, the Company may be required to settle the Series B-1
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Preferred Stock at 160% of its face amount. Accordingly, the “make whole” provision meets SFAS 133’s
definition of a derivative, and its economic characieristics are not considered clearly and closely related to the
economic characteristics of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock.

Under SFAS 133, these two embedded derivatives are required to be bundied into a single derivative
instrument and accounted for separately from the Series B-1 Preferred Stock at fair value.

In addition, when the Company issued the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, it granted the holder the right (a
“warrant”} to purchase up to 20,000 shares of additional Preferred Stock at a price of $1,000 per share. The
additional Preferred Stock that will be issued if the holder were to exercise the warrant is similar to the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock initially issued, except the conversion price will be the greater of $8.0860 or
88.21% of the prevailing price of the common stock at the time of exercise. These rights are exercisable by
the holder for a two-year period, beginning luly 1, 2003, subject to extension by one day for each day the
registration requirements are not met.

Upon exercise of the warrant, the holder is entitled to receive preferred shares that are similar to the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock that the Company originally issued. The preferred shares that the holder is entitled
to receive may be redeemed, effectively “put” back to the Company, at a future date. Statement of Accounting
Standards No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity” (SFAS 150), requires that a warrant which contains an obligation that may require the issuer to
redeemn the shares in cash, be classified as a liability and accounted for at fair value.

The Company determined that the fair value of the combined embedded derivatives at inception was
$2.6 million and increased long-term liabilities by $1.7 million for the embedded derivatives and $854,000 for
the fair value of the warrant. In subsequent periods, these liabilities are accounted for at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognized in earnings. In addition, the Company recognized a discount to the recorded
value of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock resulting from the allocation of proceeds to the embedded derivatives
and warrant. This discount was accreted as a preferred stock dividend to increase the recorded balance of the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock to it redemption value at its earliest possible redemption date (November 28,
2005).

The embedded derivatives and warrant were valued at each fiscal quarter-end using a valuation model
that combines the Black-Scholes option pricing approach with other analytics. Key assumptions used in the
pricing model were based on the terms and conditions of the embedded derivatives and warrant and the actual
stock price of the Company’s common stock at each fiscal quaner-end. Adjustments were made to the
conversion option vatue to reflect the impact of potential registration rights violations and the attendant
reductions in the conversion price of the underlying shares. Other assumptions included a volatility rate
ranging from 25% — 40%, and a risk-free rate corresponding to the estimated life of the security, based on its
likelihood of conversion or redemption. The estimated life ranged from a high of four years at the inception of
the Series B-1 Preferred Stock in June 2004, to just under two years at December 31, 2006.

The value of the make-whole provision explicitly considered the present value of the potential premium
that would be paid related to, and the probability of, an event that would trigger its payment. The probability
of a triggering event was assumed to be very low at issuance, escalating t0 a 2% probability in year three and
beyond. These assumptions were based on management’s estimates of the probability of a change of control
event occurring

Since the dividend rate on the Series B-1 Preferred Stock adjusts with changes in market rates due to the
LIBOR-Index provision, the key component in the valuation of the warrant is the estimated value of the
underlying embedded conversion option. Accordingly, similar assumptions to those used to value the
compound derivative were used to value the warrant, including, the fiscal quarter-end stock price, the exercise
price of the conversion option adjusted for changes based on the registration rights agreement, an assumed
volatility rate ranging from 25% — 40% and risk-free rate based on the estimated life of the warrant.
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8. Commitments and Contingencies
Marketing Fund

All domestic franchisees are required to pay a monthly fee to the Company, for contribution to a
marketing fund, equal to 2% of their franchises’ gross receipts, as defined, for the preceding month. In
accordance with the terms of the franchise agreements, the Company is required to use all marketing fees it
receives for the development, placement and distribution of regional and national consumer advertising,
designed to promote consumer demand for services and products available from the franchises.

The Company is required to keep separate marketing fund accounting records and to maintain the
marketing funds collected from the franchisees in a separate bank account. Because the advertising is directed
and controlled entirely at the Company’s discretion, franchisee payments to the Company for the marketing
fund are recorded in the Company’s revenue and advertising expenses of the marketing fund are recorded in
the Company’s selling, general and administrative expenses.

Office and Classroom Leases

The Company has entered into various operating leases in excess of one year, primarily office and
classroom site locations. Minimum rental commitments vnder these leases, including fixed escalation clauses,
which are in excess of one year, as of December 31, 2006, are approximately as follows:

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)

200 e e e e e e e e e $ 5,429

2008 e e e 5,215

2000 L e e e e e e e e 4,696

2000 L e e e e e e e e e 4,001

2 1 N 3,209

B 112 =) G 8,043
$30,593

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $10.0 million,
$9.5 million, and $8.6 million, respectively. These amounts include rent expense for the rental of space on a
month-to-month basis, as well as those amounts incurred under operating leases for longer periods. Certain
leases provide for early termination without penalty.

Legal Matters

On September 10, 2003, CollegeNET, Inc. filed suit in Federal District Court in Oregon, alleging that The
Princeton Review infringed a patent owned by CollegeNET, U.S. Patent No. 6,460,042 (*‘the '042 Patent”),
related to the processing of on-line applications. CollegeNET never served The Princeton Review and no
discovery was ever conducted. However, apparently based on adverse rulings in related lawsuits concerning
the same '042 Patent (the “Related Litigation™), CollegeNET dismissed the 2003 case against The Princeton
Review without prejudice on January 9, 2004.

On August 2, 2003, the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit issued an opinion favorable to
CollegeNET in its appeal from the adverse rulings in the Retated Litigation.

The next day, on August 3, 2005, CollegeNET again filed suit against The Princeton Review alleging
infringement of the same 042 Patent that was the subject of the earlier action. On November 21, 2005,
CollegeNET filed an amended complaint, which added a second patent, U.S. Patent No. 6,910,045 (“the '045
Patent™), to the lawsuit. The Princeton Review was served with the amended complaint on November 22,
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2005, and filed its answer and counterclaims on January 13, 2006, which was later amended on February 24,
2006. On March 20, 2006 filed its Reply to The Princeton Review’s Counterclaims. CollegeNET seeks
injunctive relief and unspecified monetary damages.

The Princeton Review filed a request with the United Stated Patent and Trademark Office (“PTO”) for ex
parte reexamination of CollegeNET"s "042 Patent on September 1, 2005. The Princeton Review filed another
request with the PTO for ex parte reexamination of CollegeNET'’s "045 Patent on December 12, 2005. The
PTO granted The Princeton Review’s requests and ordered reexamination of all claims of the CollegeNET
’042 patent on October 31, 2005 and ordered reexamination of all claims of the '045 Patent on January 27,
2006.

On March 29, 2006, the court granted The Princeton Review’s motion to stay all proceedings in the
lawsuit pending completion of the PTO’s reexaminations of the CollegeNET patents. On November 9, 2006,
the PTO issued a Non-Final Office Action rejecting all 44 claims of the 042 Patent. On Januwary 9, 2007,
CollegeNet filed a response to the Non-Final Office Action with the PTO. The Company cannot predict the
likely outcome of these proceedings but believes that it has meritorious defenses to CollegeNET’s claims and
intends to vigorously defend.

Co-authorship Agreements

In connection with its publishing agreements, the Company has entered into various co-authorship
agreements for the preparation of manuscripts. These agreements require payment of nonrecourse advances for
services rendered at various established milestones. The Company did not have any future contractual
commitments under the co-authorship agreements for manuscripts not yet delivered for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004. In addition, the co-authors are entitled to a percentage of the future
royalties earned by the Company, which are first to be offset against such advances. The total costs incurred
under these co-authorship agreements by the Company for advances and royalties were approximately
$615,000, $524,000, and $585,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The expense related to co-author payments is accrued monthly and is adjusted based upon actual
expenditures paid to the co-authors. These expenditures are a percentage of the royalties paid to the Company
by the publisher. Royalties from the publisher are recorded as revenue with the co-author expenditures
recorded as expense.
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9, Income Taxes

The (provision) benefit for income taxes consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31,

20006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Current tax {provision) benefit:
US. Federal .. .....cooiiiii i $ — $— $ —
] — — —
Foreign ... ... e (153) — —
(153) — —
Deferred tax (provision) benefit:
US. Federal ......... .. i i e —_ —_— (14,832)
SatE . o —_ — (1,859)
Foreign ... ... . . e e — (16}
— — (16,707)
Total (provision) benefit for income taxes . ................ $(153) $— $(16,707)
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows at:
December 31,
2006 2005

Deferred tax assets:

{In thousands)

Net operating loss carryfoward .. .. ... ... . o oo $ 26314 $ 22,281
Tax credit carryfowards. . ... ... . e 85 85
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . ......c. ... ..o 982 663
Equity compensation. . .. . ... ... . e 186 188
Capitalized inventory COSIS . ... ... v vt it 180 168
Deferred T8t . .. oot e e e e e e e 1,052 911
Unrealized 10Ses . . .. ... . i e e 269 147
Accumulated amortization including write down of intangibles. ... ... ... — 621
12T 453 464
Total deferred tax aSSetS . . v v v vt m e it et e e e e e 29,521 25,528
Deferred tax liabilities;
Software development costs .. ... ... it i e (2,277) (1,133)
Accuemulated amortization, including write down of intangibles .. ....... (204) —
Accumulated depreciation (537) (743)
Total deferred tax liabilities . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... .... (3,018) (1,876}
Net deferred tax liabilities before valvation allowance . ............. 26,503 23,652
Valuation allowanCe ... ... e i e e e e e (26,503)  (23,652)
Net deferred tax liabilities assets . ... ... .t iie e $ — 3 —
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As of December 31, 2006 the Company has a net operating loss carryforward totaling approximately
$64.1 million which expires in the years 2021 through 2026, and other timing differences which will be
available to offset regular taxable income during the carryforward period.

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance

SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” requires that a valuation allowance be established when it
is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The cumulative pre-tax
loss of $24.4 million incurred in the most recent three years represents sufficient negative evidence under the
provisions of SFAS No. 109 for the Company to determine that the establishment of a full valuation allowance
against the deferred tax asset is appropriate. This valuation allowance will offset assets associated with future
tax deductions as well as carryforward items. Although management expects that these assets will ultimately
be fully utilized, future performance cannot be assured.

A reconciliation setting forth the differences between the effective tax rate of the Company for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the U.S. federal statutory tax rate is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands}

U.S. Federal income tax benefit {provision) expenses

AUSIATULONY TALE . o ot e vt et e e ie e e e $ 3,053 34% $ 1,181 34% $ 4,660 34%
Effect of permanent differences and other. ... . ... ... (686) (B)% 15 0% 39 0%
Effect of state taxes. . . ... . ... ... e 331 3% 324 9% 726 5%
Valuation allowance. .. ........... ... . ..., (2,851 (30)% (1,520) gi?;_)% (22,132 (161)Y%

$ (53) 1% % — 0% $6,707) (U22)%

10. Employee Benefits and Contracts
Retirement Plan

The Company has a defined contribution plan (the “Plan™) under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code, which provides that eligible employees may miake contributions subject to Internal Revenue Code
limitations. Employees become eligible to participate in the Plan on the first day of the quarter following the
beginning of their full-time employment, but company matching contributions do not begin until one year after
fuill-time employment. Under the provisions of the Plan, contributions made by the Company are discretionary
and are determined annually by the trustees of the Plan. The Company’s contributions to the Plan for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $283,000, $342,000, and $230,000, respectively.

Stock Incentive Plan

On April 1, 2000, the Company adopted its 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan’™)
providing for the authorization and issuance of up to 2,538,000 shares of common stock, as adjusted. On
various dates, beginning in June 2000 and extending through December 2006, an additional 2,675,744 shares
were authorized. The Stock Incentive Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock options, non-qualified
stock options, restricted stock and deferred stock to eligible participants. Options granted under the Stock
Incentive Plan are for periods not to exceed ten years. Other than for options to purchase 133,445 shares
granted in 2000 to certain employees which were vested immediately, options outstanding under the Stock
Incentive Plan generally vest quarterly over two to four years. As of December 31, 2006, there were
approximately 1,081,000 shares available for grant.

69




THE PRINCETON REVIEW, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

A summary of the activity of the Stock Incentive Plan is as follows:

Weighted-
Average
Options Exercise Price
Qutstanding at December 31,2003 ... ... ... .................. 2,548,063 $6.96
Granted at Markel .. ... ... . e e 1,098,473 $7.48
Forfeited . ... e e s (167,107) $7.60
Exercised . . ... ... .. e {120,926) $6.19
Qutstanding at December 31,2004 . ... ... ... ... .. ... .. ... 3,358,503 $7.13
Granted at Market . . ... ... 224,900 $5.77
Forfeited . ... ... v i i e e e (282,503) $7.57
Exercised . . . ... ... ... ... (2,406) $4.96
Qutstanding at December 31,2005 . ... ... ... .. .............. 3,298,494 $7.00
Granted at Market .. ...ttt e e 133,320 $5.99
Forfeited . ... .. ... . . e e e (262,192) $6.85
EXerCISEd . . . vttt e e {14,095) $3.66
Outstanding at December 31,2006 ........................... 3,155,527 $6.98
Exercisable at December 31,2004 . . ... ...... ... ... ... ... ..., 2,134,059 $6.99
Exercisable at December 31,2005 ........... ... ... . ... ... 2,461,129 §7.02
Exercisable at December 31,2006 . .. ... ... .. . . ... ... 2,804,991 $7.04
Nonvested option activity for the year ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:
Weighted-
Average
Grant Date
Options Fair Value
Nonvested options outstanding at December 31,2005, . ................ 460,386 $4.12
Options granted. . . ... ..ttt e e e 133,320 $2.57
Optons vested. . .. .ot e e e (37,378) $4.29
Options forfeited . . ... ... ... .. . ... ... . e (205,792) $4.86
Nonvested options outstanding at December 31,2006, ................. 350,536 $3.08

During 2001, the Company granted 116,500 stock options to non-employee advisors and, using the fair
value method, recorded expense of approximately $98,000, and $151,000 for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. Prior to 2005, these options were fully vested; therefore no expense was recorded
in 2005.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $2.57,
The total intrinsic value {market price on date of exercise less exercise price) of options exercised during the
year ended December 31, 2006 was $24,800. Total fair value of options vested duning the year ended
December 31, 2006 was $160,400. The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable
at December 31, 2006 was $588,000. Weighted average remaining years of contractual life for options
outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2006 was 5 years.

As of December 31, 2006, there was $793,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Stock Incentive Plan. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 4.0 years. The total fair value of shares vested
during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $500,000.
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As discussed in Note 1, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the acceleration of vesting of
unvested stock options granted to employees of the Company outstanding as of December 31, 2005 that have
an exercise price at or greater than $7.00 and which are scheduled to vest in the 24-month period following
December 31, 2005. The effect of this acceleration was to reduce stock-based compensation expense that
would otherwise have been reported in future statements of operations by approximately $1.6 million.

Performance Stock Awards

In May 2006, the Board of Directors approved the granting of Performance-Based Deferred Stock awards
under the Plan. Awards were made to selected executives and other key employees. Vesting of the awards is
based on a progressive scale (“threshold,” “target,” and “maximum”), contingent upon meeting company-wide
performance goals related to earnings per share and return on asset targets in the two year performance period
ending December 31, 2007.

The values of each Performance-Based Deferred Stock award were estimated on the date of grant and
have been subsequently adjusted to reflect management’s expectations about achieving targeted amounts. If
such goals are not met, no compensation cost is recognized and any recognized compensation cost is reversed.
The expected term for Performance-Based Deferred Stock awards under the Stock Incentive Plan is two years.

At December 31, 2006, 87,550 Performance-Based Deferred Stock awards were issued and outstanding.
As of December 31, 2006, there was $85,500 of unrecognized compensation cost related to Performance-
Based Deferred Stock awards. That cost is expect to be recognized over a period of 1.6 years.

Restricted Stock Awards

In May 2006, the Board of Directors approved the granting of Restricted Stock awards under the Stock
Incentive Plan. Awards were made to selected key employees whose vesting is contingent upon retention at
the end of the two year period ending May 5, 2008. At the end of the vesting period the Restricted Stock will
vest and the restrictions will terminate.

The value of each Restricted Stock award was estimated on the date of grant and assumes that the
employee will remain with the Company. If such goals are not met, no compensation cost is recognized and
any recognized compensation cost is reversed. The expected term for the Restricted Stock awards is two years.

At December 31, 2006, 60,650 shares of Restricted Stock were awarded and outstanding. As of
December 31, 2006, there was $240,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to the Restricted Stock
awards; that cost is expected to be recognized over a period of 1.6 years.

11. Related Parties
Publisher

Random House, Inc., a holder of 1,515,353 shares of the Company’s common stock at December 31,
2006, is also the publisher and distributor of substantially all of the Company’s books. For the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company eamed $3.6 million, $3.3 million and $3.7 million
respectively, of book and publication income from Random House, Inc. Total receivables at December 31,
2006 and 2005 included $2.0 million and $2.4 million, respectively, due from Random House, Inc. for
royalties, book advances, copy editing and marketing fees. During 2006, we entered into a web hosting
agreement with Random House. For the year ended December 31, 2006, we paid approximately $210,000 for
these services.
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Loans to Officers

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 the Company had a loan to one executive officer in the amount of
$494.000 and $625,000. No loans were made to executive officers after February 2002. Such amounts and
accrued interest are included in *“Other Current Assets™ and “Other assets” at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
The loan is payable in four consecutive, annual installments with the first payment to be made on the earlier
of the fourth anniversary of the loan or 60 days after termination of employment, accrue interest at 7.3% per
year and, at December 31, 2006, was secured by 124,821 shares of the Company's common stock.

12. Segment Reporting

The Company’s operations are aggregated into four reportable segments. The operating segments reported
below are the segments of the Company for which separate financial information is available and for which
operating income is evaluated regularly by executive management in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance.

The following segment results include the allocation of certain information technology costs, accounting
services, executive management costs; [egal department costs, office facilities expenses, human resources
expenses and other shared services, which prior to January 1, 2006 were almost fully allocated out to the
divisions on a broadly defined consumption basis. Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company refined its
allocation methodology, which resulied in lower allocations to the divisions and more retained in unallocated
corporate costs. The purpose was to have the divisional costs more in line with equivalent bought-in third
party services. In addition, the Company reclassified certain commissions from cost of revenue to operating
expenses. The prior periods have been restated to reflect these changes. The impact of these changes was an
increase in segment operating income of $7.2 million and $3.7 million for Test Preparations Services,
$3.9 million and $1.9 million for K-12 Services and $3.5 million and $1.4 million for Admissions Services for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Corporate segment operating loss increased
by $14.6 million and $7.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The majority of the Company’s revenue is earned by the Test Preparation Services division, which sells a
range of services including test preparation, tutoring and academic counseling. Test Preparation Services
derives its revenue from Company operated locations and from royalties from, and product sales to,
independently-owned franchises. The K-12 Services division earns fees from assessment, intervention materials
sales and professional development services it renders to K-12 schools and from its content development work.
The Admissions Services division earns revenue from subscription, transaction and marketing fees from higher
education institutions, counseling services and from selling advertising and sponsorships. (See Note 16) Addi-
tionally, each division eams royalties and other fees from sales of its books published by Random House.

The segment results inctude EBITDA for the periods indicated. As used in this report, EBITDA means
earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. The Company believes that EBITDA, a
non-GAAP financial measure, represents a useful measure for evaluating its financial performance because it
reflects earnings trends without the impact of certain non-cash and non-operations-related charges or income.
The Company’s management uses EBITDA to measure the operating profits or losses of the business.
Analysts, investors and rating agencies frequently use EBITDA in the evaluation of companies, but the
Company’s presentation of EBITDA is not necessarily comparable to other similarly titled measures of other
companies because of potential inconsistencies in the method of calculation. EBITDA is not intended as an
alternative to net income (loss) as an indicator of the Company’s operating performance, or as an alternative to
any other measure of performance calculated in conformity with GAAP.
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Revenue...................

Operating expense (including depreciation and

amortization)

Operating income (loss) .. ... ..
Depreciation and amortization . .
Other income (expense)

Segment EBITDA

Total segment assets. . ........

Segment goodwill

Expenditures for long lived assets

Revenue...................

Operating expense (including depreciation and

amortization)

Operating income (loss) .......
Depreciation and amortization . .
Other income (expense) . . ... ..

Segment EBITDA
Total segment assets. . ........

Segment goodwill

Expenditures for long lived assets

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Test
Prepaefalion K-12 Admission
Services Services Services Corporate Total
(In thousznds)
$92,406 $35694 312,641 3 —  $140,740
46,519 17,413 8,068 18,313 90,312
13,980 (3,422) (937) (18,313) (8,692)
1,896 3,611 1,784 1,863 9,154
— — — (35) (35}
15,876 189 847 (16,485) 427
$46,143 $33,661 $11,164  §27,141 §118,108
$31,006 $ — 8§ 500 8 — $ 31,506
$ 1115 $4103 % 632 § 2,140 $ 799
Year Ended December 31, 2005
Test
Preparation K-12 Admission
Services Services Services Corporate Total
(In thousands)
$87.,360 $31,932  $11252 % — 3130544
41,316 16,016 8,397 20,623 86,352
18,128 (359)  (1,396)  (20,623) (4,250
1,853 2,853 1,723 1,250 7,679
— 990 39 1,469 2,420
19,981 3,484 288 (17.904) 5,849
36,441 20,524 17.527 30,880 105,371
$31,007 $ — % 500 8 — $ 31,506
$ 1,275 $8268 % 1636 § 3,142 § 14,322
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Year Ended December 31, 2004

Test
Prep:;‘alion K-12 Admission
Services Services Services Corporate Total
(In thousands)
Revenue. ........................... ... $74,297 $28403 $11,085 § — $113,785
Operating expense (including depreciation and
amortization) .. ............. . 0. ion.. 39,016 16,366 20,900 11,149 87,431

Operating income (loss) . . ................. 11,729 (1L,271)  (12,756) (11,149  (13,447)
Depreciation and amortization .............. 1,827 2,166 1,894 1,112 6,999
Other income (expense) ... .........ocve... — — (67) 1,089 1,022
Segment EBITDA ....................... $13,556 $ 895 $(10,929) § (8.948) 3 (5426)
Total segment assets. . .. ... ..ovvevenenen.. $37,419  $21,827 $17532 §$30,823 $107,641
Segment goodwill ....................... 331,011 § — § 500 % — § 31,511
Expenditures for long lived assets. ... ........ $ 2,551 $3385 $ 427 § 2639 3 9,002

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net income (loss)
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Total operating income (loss) from reportable segments ......... $(8,692) $(4,250) $(13,447)
Unallocated amounts:

Interest income {expense). . .......... ... ... ... (650) (334) (361)

Other income (EXPENSE) . . v oot v ittt i ie et einans (36) 2,415 918

Equity inloss of affiliate . ... ........ ... ... ... ... ... — 4 103

(Provision) benefit for income taxes . . .................... {153) — {16,708)
Net income (I088) . . .. ..o ittt $(9,531)  $(2,1B5) $(29,495)
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13. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following table presents unaudited statement of operations data for each of the eight quarters in the
two-year period ended December 31, 2006. This information has been derived from the Company’s historical
consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s historical consolidated
financial statements and related notes appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Quarter Ended
Sept. 30, Dec. 31,

Revenue
Test Preparation Services. . ... ...
K-12 Services ... .............

Admissions Services ... ........
Total revenue. . .............

Cost of revenue
Test Preparation Services........
K-12Services . . ..............
Admissions Services . ..........

Total cost of revenue ... ......

Grossprofit ...............
Operating expenses

Selling, general and
administrative . .............

Impairment of investment .......
Total operating expenses . ... ..
Income (loss) from operations . . . ..

Net income (loss) attributed to
common stockholders ....... ..

Basic income (loss) per share .. ...

Mar. 3,
2006

June 30,
2006

2006

2006

Mar. 31,
2005

June 30,
2005

Sept. 30,
2005

Dec. 31,
2005

6,873
3,174

$25,063 $21,682

9,828
2,516

(In thousands, except per share data)

$25,008 $20,653 $22,900 $20,630

7,331
3,573

11,663
3,376

7919
2,794

7,122
2,045

$26,748
5,280
2,767

$17,084
11,610
3,645

35.110

34,026

35912

35,692

33,613

29,798

34,795

32,339

7,816
4,755
1,290

7,448
4,830
1,495

8,372
5,446
1,501

8,271
6,673
1,223

7,017
4,068
773

6,458
2,935
1,009

7.979
2,841
1,159

6,462
6,430
1,310

13,861

13,773

15,319

16,167

11,857

10,402

11,979

14,203

21,249

23,119

20,253

21,018

20,593

22,833

19,525

23,042
300

21,756

21,565

19,395

19,772

22,816

22,154

18,137

22,861

23,119

21,018

22,833

23,342

21,565

19,772

22,154

22,861

(1,870)

(765)

(2,240 (3,817)

190

377

662

(4,724)

(2,065)

(1,244)

(2497 (4,241)8  (194) (1,137)

849

(4,146)

$§ (0.07)$ (0.05)% (0.09)$ (0.15% (OO (V.OHF 003

$ (0.15)

Diluted income (loss) per share. ... $ (0.07)$ (0.05)$ (0.09% (0.15)% (0.0)$ (0.0H% 0.03

Weighted average shares used in
computing net income (loss) per
share

§ (©0.15)

27,572 27,574 27,575 27,587 27,570 27,570 27,571

27,570

27,572 27,574 27,575 27587 27570 27,570 28,733

75

27,570
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14. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The following table sets forth the denominators used in computing basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
common share for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic ... .. . 27,578 27,570 27,468

The following were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per common share because of
their antidilutive effect.

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Net effect of dilutive stock options-based on the treasury stock method . . . . 163 132 230
Effect of convertible preferred stock-based on the if converted method . . . . . 1,299 1,007 578
L 111 T 9 9 _9

1,471 1,148 817

15. Restructuring

In April 2006, the Company announced and commenced implementation of a restructuring program. The
restructuring included, among other things, streamlining our software development groups and reducing staff
in some administrative functions to better align the cost structure with revenue and growth expectations. The
restructuring charge incurred during 2006 was approximately $827,000 and consists of severance-related
payments for all employees terminated in connection with the restructuring. At December 31, 20086,
substantially all of the severance payments had been made,

16. Subsequent Events
Disposition of a Business

On February 16, 2007, the Company completed its sale of certain assets of the Company’s Admissions
Services Division to Embark Corp., a Delaware corporation, having reached the conclusion that this line of
business could not be grown profitably on a long-term basis and was non-strategic to our overall educational
services business. Pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement, the Company sold to Embark Corp. the assets
related to providing electronic application and prospect management tools to schools and higher education
institution customers (the “Admissions Tech Business”). The net assets disposed of were principally technology
equipment, software and accounts payable. The purchase price consisted of $7,000,000. subject to customary
closing adjustments, Additionally, the Company will be entitled to an earn-out of up to an additional
$1.25 million based upon certain achievements of the Admissions Tech Business in 2007. The Company is
currently calculating the gain on this transaction and expects it to be in the range of $3.0 million to
$4.0 million.

The table below is a summary of the historical results of this discontinued line of business:
For the Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Operating income (loss) from discontinued operations . ........ $(319) $(1,429) $(2,613)
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THE PRINCETON REVIEW, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

As of December 31,

2006 2005
Assets related to discontinued operations. .. ... ... e $13,142 59,098
Liabilities related to discontinued operations . . ... ..............cvaan 9,956 6,318

Amendments to Credit Facility

On February 16, 2007, the Company entered into a further amendment of its Credit Agreement with
Golub (the *“Third Amendment”). Under the terms of the Second Amendment, the amount of the Credit
Facility was temporarily increased by $5.0 million (from an aggregate total of $10.0 million to $15.0 million)
and such increased amount had to be either repaid by the Company or converted into a term loan on March 3,
2007. In lien of this obligation to repay this amount or convert this amount into a term loan on such date, the
Third Amendment requires the Company to (i) repay to Golub $3.0 million from the proceeds of the sale of
the Admissions Tech Business and (i) set the amount of the Credit Facility at $12.0 million. This $3 million
payment was made by the Company on February 19, 2007.

The term of the Credit Facility remains unchanged at five years from the date of the original Credit
Agreement. However, the Third Amendment increased the annual interest rate of the Credit Facility.
Outstanding amounts under the Credit Facility up to $10.0 million bear interest at rates based on either
(A) 300 basis points (up from 195 basis points) over the greater of (x) the prime rate and (y) the Federal
Funds Rate plus 50 basis points or (B) 400 basis points over the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
(the same rate as previously in effect), at the Company’s election and in accordance with the terms of the
Credit Agreement. Qutstanding amounts under the Credit Facility in excess of $10.0 million (or the borrowing
base amount, if lower) bear the following annual interest rates: either (A} 400 basis points over the greater of
(x) the prime rate and (y) the Federal Funds Rate or 50 basis points or (B) 500 basis points over the LIBOR
rate, at the Company’s election and in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement.

On March 29, 2007, the Company entered into a further amendment of the Credit Facility (the “Fourth
Amendment”). Under the Fourth Amendment, the maximum borrowing amount was increased to $15.0 million,
and the Company drew down the full amount on March 30, 2007. The term of the Credit Facility remains
unchanged at five years from the date of the original Credit Agreement. The terms for the annual interest rate
for the facility are the same as those of the Third Amendment.
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Schedule I
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Balance at Additions Deductions Balance at
Beginning of  Charged to From End of
Period Expense Allowance(1) Period
(In thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Year Ended December 31,2006 ................. $ 1,601 $ 2,972 $(1,525) $ 2,848
Year Ended December 31,2005 . ...... ... ...... $ 1,290 $ 1,328 (1,017 $ 1,601
Year Ended December 31,2004 ... .............. 5 302 $ 1,521 $ (533) $ 1,290
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets
Year Ended December 31,2006 ................. $23,652 g 2,851 $ — $26,503
Year Ended December 31,2005 ................. 522,132 $ 1,520 $ — $23,652
Year Ended December 31,2004 . .. ... ... ........ 5 - $22,132 | — $22,132

(1) Consists primarily of amounts written off during the period.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures (“Disclosure Controls’), as defined in Rule 13a-15(e} and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) as of December 31, 2006. The evaluation was done under the supervision and
with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO™) and Chief Financial
Officer (“CF0"), and included a review of the controls’ objectives, design and operating effectiveness with
respect to the information generated for use in this Annual Report. In the course of the evaluation, we sought
to identify data errors, contrel problems or acts of fraud and confirm that appropriate corrective actions,
including process improvements, were being undertaken. This type of Disclosure Controls evaluation is
performed on a quarterly basis so that the conclusions of management, including the CEO and CFO,
concerning the effectiveness of controls can be reported in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and in our
Annual Reports on Form 10-K. Many of the components of our Disclosure Controls are also evaluated on an
ongoing basis by other personnel in our accounting, finance and legal functions. The overall goals of these
various evaluation activities are to monitor our Disclosure Controls and to modify them on an ongoing basis as
Necessary.

A control system can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives
will be met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. Over time, controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with
policies or procedures. Because of inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Based upon the evaluation of our Disclosure Controls, and in light of the material weaknesses described
below under “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting,” our CEO and CFO
concluded that the Company’s Disclosure Controls were not effective as of December 31, 2006 to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. gen-
erally accepted accounting principles.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

* pertain to the maintenance of records that, in recasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

« provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that the receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of its
management and directors; and :

= provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material etfect on its financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or a combination of significant deficiencies, that results
in there being more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or a combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Company’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report external financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that
there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected.

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COS0”). Management’s assessment identified the following material weaknesses in internal
control over financial reporting, which in all instances are impacted by the lack of adequate staffing and
training, excessive employee turnover and procedural breakdowns in compliance with the Company’s internal
policies and procedures,

» Financial Statement Close Process

The Company concluded that controls over the financial statement close process related to various
account reconctiliations and analyses, including bank accounts, accounts receivable, deferred projects
costs, other assets and accrued liabilities were not effective. As a result, a large volume of adjustments
were necessary to present the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Due to the significance of the adjustments identified and the significance of the financial
statement close process to the preparation of reliable financial statements, there is more than a remote
likelihood that a material misstatement of the interim and annual financial statements would not have
been prevented or detected.

* Estimation Process on Collectibility of Accounts Receivable

The Company concluded that controls over accumulating information necessary to properly assess the
collectibility of aged accounts receivable balances were not effective. The calculations prepared relied
on customer and account information that was not current and which adversely impacted the
Company’s ability to properly estimate the allowance for doubtful accounts. In addition to the staffing
and procedures issues noted above, factors contributing to this material weakness include certain
organizational changes related to the Company’s credit and collections efforts that were unsuccessful.
This material weakness resulted in a number of adjustments to record additional allowance for doubtful
accounts to present the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Due to the adjustments identified, there is more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the interim and annual financial statements would not have been prevented or detected.

* Revenue Recognition

The Company concluded that controls to ensure that revenue was appropriately recognized for certain
unusual or complex transactions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles were not
effective. This included the accounting for certain multiple-element arrangements within its K-12 and
Admission Services divisions and a specific barter transaction as a nonmonetary exchange. This
deficiency also extends to revenue recognition for certain accounts receivable billings that are heavily
reliant on manual processes. In addition to the staffing and procedural issues noted above, factors
contributing to this control deficiency were poor recordkeeping and lack of transparency of certain
underlying transaction details for the manual billings. Due to the significance of the adjustments
identified, there is more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the interim and annual
financial statements would not have been prevented or detected.

80




* Series B-1 Preferred Stock

In responding to a comment letter from the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Company
determined that its controls over the accounting for certain embedded derivatives contained within the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock and a related warrant were not effective. In addition to the staffing and
procedural issues noted above, this control deficiency is also attributed to insufficient documentation of
policies and procedures. This deficiency was determined to be a material weakness as there is more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatemnent of the interim and annual financial statements
would not have been prevented or detected.

Based on our evaluation and because of the material weaknesses described above, our management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2006,

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report which is included elsewhere herein.

(c)

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was materially
affected by employee turnover contributing to the material weaknesses identified as of December 31, 2006 and
described above under “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting™.

In 2007, management is in the process of implementing its remediation plan for the material weaknesses
indentified above which includes the foilowing:

Hiring of more qualified and experienced accounting personnel to perform the month-end review and
closing processes as well as provide additional oversight and supervision within the accounting
department,

use of an outside consultant to work with our accounting personnel to improve our account analyses to
ensure that account reconciliations and amounts recorded, as well as the review of these areas, are
substantiated by detailed and contemporaneous documentary suppon and that reconciling items are
investigated, resolved and recorded in a timely manner,

updating of our policies and procedures atong with control matrices and implementing procedures 1o
ensure timely compliance, including the use of internal audit,

establishing programs to provide ongoing training and professional education and development plans
for the accounting department

with respect to revenue recognition, improving the communications and workflow by which unusual or
complex transactions are evaluated for revenue recognition as well as the process for manual accounts
receivable billings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Princeton Review, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that The Princeton Review, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company™)
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements. :

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected. The following material weaknesses have been identified and included in management’s
assessment which in all instances are impacted by the lack of adequate staffing and training, excessive
employee turnover and procedural breakdowns in compliance with the Company’s internal policies and
procedures.

» Financial Statement Close Process

The Company concluded that controls over the financial statement close process related to various
account reconciliations and analyses, including bank accounts, accounts receivable, deferred projects
costs, other assets and accrued liabilities were not effective. As a result, a large volume of adjustments
were necessary 1o present the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Due to the significance of the adjustments identified and the significance of the financial
statement close process to the preparation of reliable financial statements, there is more than a remote
likelihood that a material misstatement of the interim and annual financial statements would not have
been prevented or detected.
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» FEstimation Process on Collectibility of Accounts Receivable

The Company concluded that controls over accumulating information necessary to properly assess the
collectibility of aged accounts receivable balances were not effective. The calculations prepared relied
on customer and account information that was not current and which adversely impacted the
Company’s ability to properly estimate the allowance for doubtful accounts. In addition to the staffing
and procedures issues noted above, factors contributing to this material weakness include certain
organizational changes related to the Company’s credit and collections efforts that were unsuccessful.,
This material weakness resulted in a number of adjustments to record additional allowance for doubtful
accounts to present the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Due to the adjustments identified, there is more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the interim and annual financial statements would not have been prevented or detected,

* Revenue Recognition

The Company concluded that controls to ensure that revenue was appropriately recognized for certain
unusual or complex transactions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles were not
effective. This included the accounting for certain multiple-element arrangements within its K-12 and
Admission Services divisions and a specific barter transaction as a nonmonetary exchange. This
deficiency also extends to revenue recognition for certain accounts receivable billings that are heavily
reliant on manual processes. In addition to the staffing and procedural issues noted above, factors
contributing to this control deficiency were poor recordkeeping and lack of transparency of certain
underlying transaction details for the manual billings. Due to the significance of the adjustments
identified, there is more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the interim and annual
financial statements would not have been prevented or detected.

» Series B-1 Preferred Stock

In responding to a comment letter from the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Company
determined that its controls over the accounting for certain embedded derivatives contained within the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock and a related warrant were not effective. In addition to the staffing and
procedural issues noted above, this control deficiency is also attributed to insufficient decumentation of
policies and procedures. This deficiency was determined to be a material weakness. As there is more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the interim and annual financial statements
would not have been prevented or detected.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the 2006 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report on
such consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company did not maintain effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO
criteria. Also, in our opinion, because of the effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO control criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006 of The Princeton Review, Inc. and Subsidiaries and our report dated
March 30, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/  Emst & Young LLP

New York, NY
March 30, 2007
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Item 9B. Other Information

None

PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item 10, with respect to our executive officers, is included in Part I of
this Annuai Report on Form 10-K. The other information required by this item 10 is incorporated by reference
from our definitive proxy statement for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, scheduled to be held on
June 14, 2007.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement
for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, scheduled to be held on June 14, 2007,
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Information required by this Item 12 is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for
our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, scheduled to be held on June 14, 2007.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement
for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, scheduted to be held on June 14, 2007.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement
for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, scheduled to be held on June 14, 2007.

PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements-—See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement
Schedule at Item 8 on page 40 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules—See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial
Statement Schedule at Item § on page 40 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All other schedules are
omitted because they are not applicable or not required.

3. Exhibits — The following exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this
Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Exhibit
Number Description
2.1 — Conversion and Contribution Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2000, by and among The Princeton

Review, Inc., the Non-Voting Members of Princeton Review Publishing L.L.C., John S. Katzman and
TPR Holdings, Inc.(1)

2.2 — RH Contribution Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2000, by and among Random House TPR, Inc.,
Random House, Inc., The Princeton Review, Inc., John S. Katzman, and TPR Holdings, Inc.(1)
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Exhibit
Number Description

2.3 — TPR Contribution Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2000, by and among The Princeton Review, Inc.,
each of the persons listed on Schedule [ attached to the agreement and TPR Holdings, Inc.(1)

24 — Option Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2000, by and among Princeton Review Operations, L.L.C.,
Princeton Review of Boston, Inc. and Princeton Review of New Jersey, Inc.(1)

2.5 — Option Agreement Amendment, dated as of December 14, 2000, by and between Princeton Review
Operations, L.L.C., Princeton Review of Boston, Inc. and Princeton Review of New Jersey, Inc.(1)

2.6 — Option Agreement, dated as of October 18, 2000, by and among Princeton Review Operations, L.L.C.,
T.8.T.S,, Inc., Robert O. Case and Kevin D. Campbell.(1)

2.7 — Option Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2000, by and between Princeton Review Operations,
L.L.C. and The Princeton Review Peninsula, Inc.(1)
2.8 — Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 18, 2001, by and among Princeton Review Boston, Inc.,

Princeton Review New Jersey, Inc., Roebert L. Cohen, Matthew Rosenthal, Princeton Review Operations,
L.L.C., and Princeton Review Management, L.L.C.(1)

2.9 —Closing Agreement, dated as of March 2, 2001, by and among Princeton Review of Boston, Inc.,
Princeton Review of New Jersey, Inc,, Robert L. Cohen, Matthew Rosenthal, Princeton Review
Operations, L.L.C. and Princeton Review Management, L.L.C. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.8.1 to our Registration Statement on Form S$-1 (File No. 333-43874) which was declared
effective on June 18, 2001 (the “Form S-17)}.

2.10 — Promissory Note, dated as of March 2, 2001, made by Princeton Review Operations, L.L.C. in favor of
Princeton Review of Boston, Inc., in the principal amount of $3,125,000 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 2.9 to our Form S-1).

2.11 — Promissory Note, dated as of March 2, 2001, made by Princeton Review Operations, L.L.C. in favor of
Princeton Review of Boston, Inc., in the principal amount of $500,000 (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 2,10 to our Form S$-1).

2.12 — Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 6, 2001, by and among The Princeton Review Peninsula,
Inc., the Hirsch Living Trust, Pamela N. Hirsch, Myles E. Hirsch, Frederick Sliter, Princeton Review
Operations, L.L.C. and Princeton Review Management, L.L.C. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.11 to our Form S$-1).

2.13 — Asset Purchase Agreement, dated June 18, 2001, among Princeton Review Operations, L.L..C,, Princeton
Review Management, L.L.C., T.S.T.S., Inc., Robert O. Case and Kevin D. Campbell (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-32469), filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Auvgust 8, 2001 (the “2001 Second Quarter
Form 10-Q™)).

2.14 — Subordinated Promissory Note, dated June 18, 2001, made by Princeton Review Operations, L.L.C. in
favor of T.5.T.S., Inc., in the principal amount of $1,475,000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to our 2001 Second Quarter Form 10-Q).

2.15 — Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2001, by and among The Princeton Review, Inc.,
Princeton Review Publishing, L.L.C. and Embark.com, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2,1 to our Current Report on Form &-K (File No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on QOctober 9, 2001 (the “Form 8-K™)),

3.1 — Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit 3.1.2 10
our Form S-1).

3.2 — Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3.1 to our Form S-1)

4,1 — Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate(1).

4.2 — Certificate of Designation of Series B-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock of The Princeton

Review, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 9, 2004)

10.1 — Stockholders Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2000, by and among The Princeton Review, Inc., and its
stockholders({1}.

10.2  — Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 18, 2000, by and among The Princeton Review, Inc., SG Capital
i Partners LLC, Olympus Growth Fund 111, L.P. and Olympus Executive Fund, L.P.(1).

10.3 — Joinder Agreement, dated April 18, 2000, to the Stockholders Agreement dated April 1, 2000, among
stockholders of The Princeton Review, Inc.(1).
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.4 - Investor Rights Agreement, dated April 18, 2000, by and among The Princeton Review, Inc., SG Capital
Partners LLC, Olympus Growth Fund II1, L.P. and Olympus Executive Fund, L.P.(1).

10.5 — The Princeton Review, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, March 2000(1).

10.6 — Amendment to The Princeton Review, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.5.1 to our Form S-1).

10.7 — Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to our
Form §-1).

10.8 — Software Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 23, 1998, by and between Learning Company Properties
and Princeton Review Publishing, L.L.C. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to our
Form S-1).

10.9 —The Princeton Review Executive Compensation Policy Statement, as amended (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

10.10 — Office Lease, dated as of April 23, 1992, as amended, by and between The Princeton Review, Inc. and
2316 Broadway Realty Co. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to our Form S-1).

10.11 — Amendment to Office Lease, dated December 9, 1993 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13
to our Form §-1).

10.12 — Second Amendment to Office Lease, dated February 6, 1995 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.14 to our Form S-1).

10.13 — Third Amendment to Office Lease, dated April 2, 1996 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 to our Form S-1).

10.14 — Fourth Amendment to Office Lease, dated July 10, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to our Form S-1).

10.15 — Employment Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2002, by and between The Princeton Review, Inc. and
John Katzman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (file
No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 14, 2002 (the “2002 First
Quarter Form 10-™),

10.16 — Employment Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002, by and between The Princeton Review, Inc. and
Mark Chemis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our 2002 First Quarter Form 10-Q).

10.17 — Employment Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002, by and between The Princeton Review, Inc. and
Steve Quattrociocchi (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our 2002 First Quarter Form 10-Q).

10.18 — Employment Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002, by and between The Princeton Review, Inc. and
Bruce Task (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our 2002 First Quarter Form 10-Q).

10.19 — Employment Agreement, dated as of October 15, 2001, by and between The Princeton Review, Inc. and
Stephen Melvin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.61 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2001),

10.20 — Office Lease by and between The Rector, Church-Wardens and Vestrymen of Trinity Church in the City
of New York, as Landlord, and Princeton Review Publishing, L.L.C., as Tenant {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.35 to our Form S-1).

10.21 — Agreement, dated September 1, 1998, by and between The Educational and Professional Publishing
Group, a unit of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., and Princeton Review Publishing, L.L.C.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to our Form S-1).(2).

10.22 — Franchise Agreement, dated as of July 1, 1986, by and between The Princeton Review Management
Corp. and Lloyd Eric Cotsen (Lecomp Company, Inc.) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.39
to our Form S-1),

10.23 — Franchise Agreement, dated as of September 13, 1986, by and between The Princeton Review
Management Corp. and Robert Case, Richard McDugald and Kevin Campbell {Test Services, Inc.)
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to our Form S-1).

10.24 — Addendum to the Franchise Agreement, dated as of May 31, 1995, by and between The Princeton

Review Management Corp. and the persons and entities listed on the Franchisee Joinders (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to our Form S-1).
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10.25 — Formation Agreement, dated as of May 31, 1995, by and among The Princeton Review Publishing
Company, L.L.C., The Princeton Review Publishing Co., Inc., the Princeton Review Management Corp.
and the independent franchisees (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to our Form S-1).

10.26 — Distance Learning Waiver, dated as of June 21, 2000, by and between Princeton Review Management,
L.L.C. and Lecomp, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to our Form S-1).

10.27 — Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of September 19, 2000, by and between Steven Hodas and The
Princeton Review, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to our Form S-1).

10.28 — Promissory Note, dated as of September 19, 2000, made by Steven Hodas in favor of The Princeton
Review, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to our Form S-1).

10.29 — Non-Recourse Promissory Note, dated August 15, 2001, made by Bruce Task in favor of The Princeton
Review, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to cur Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 000-32469) for the third quarter of 2001, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on November 13, 200t (the “2001 Third Quarter Form 10-Q™)).

10.30 — Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2001, by and between Bruce Task and The
Princeton Review, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our 2001 Third Quarter
Form 10-Q).

10.31 — Non-Recourse Promissory Note, dated November 27, 2001, made by Mark Chernis in favor of The
Princeton Review, Inc, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the vear ended December 31, 2001).

10.32 — Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of November 27, 2001, by and between Mark Chernis and The
Princeton Review, Inc. {(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.54 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2001).

10.33 — Non-Recourse Promissory Note, dated March 7, 2002, made by Mark Chemis in favor of The Princeton
Review, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2001).

10.34 — Agreement, dated as of May 28, 2004, by and between The Princeton Review, Inc. and Fletcher
International, Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 9, 2004).

10.35 — Lease, dated as of August 1, 2004, by and between The Rector, Church-Wardens and Vestrymen of
Trinity Church in the City of New York, as Landlord and The Princeton Review, Inc., as Tenant.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10,1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 000-32469) for the third quarter of 2004, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on November 9, 2004).

10.36 — Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated September 12, 2003, between The Princeton Review, Inc.
and Stephen Melvin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 0000-32469) for the third quarter of 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on November 9, 2006).

10.37 — Employment Agreement, dated September 9, 2005, between The Princeton Review, Inc. and Stephen
Melvin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to ocur Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 0000-32469) for the third quarter of 2005, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on November 9, 2006).

10.38 — Office Lease Extension, dated November 18, 2005, as amended, by and between The Princeton Review,
Inc. and 2315 Broadway Realty Co,

10.3% — Credit Agreement, dated April 10, 2006, by and among The Princeton Review, Inc., Princeton Review
Operations, L.L.C., lenders who become signatory from time to time, and Golub Capital Incorporated
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 14, 2006).

10.40 — Security Agreement, dated April 10, 2006, by and among The Princeten Review, Inc., Princeton Review
Operations, L.L.C. and Golob Capital Incorporated (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 14, 2006).
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10.41 — Employment Agreement, dated April 26, 2004, between The Princeton Review, Inc., and Margot

Lebenberg (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 10, 2006).

10.42 — Employment Agreement, dated February 18, 2003, between The Princeton Review, Inc. and Young Shin
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 10, 2006}.

10.43 — Indemnification Agreement, dated December 14, 2004, between The Princeton Review, Inc. and Margot
Lebenberg (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 10, 2006).

10.44 — The Princeton Review, Inc. Bonus Policy for G-00 Employees for Calendar Year 2006 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-32469), filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 10, 2006).

10.45 — Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant to The Princeton Review, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan
(as amended and restated effective March 24, 2003) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 10, 2006).

10.46 — Form of Performance Based Deferred Stock Award Agreement pursuant to the Princeton Review, Inc.
2000 Stock Incentive Plan (as amended and restated effective March 24, 2003) (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.46 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-32469}, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 10, 2006).

10.47 — First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated May 25, 2006, by and among The Princeton Review, Inc.,
Princeton Review Operations L.L.C., the lender party thereto and Golub Capital Incorporated, as
Administrative Agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 1, 2006.).

10.48 — Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated September 25, 2006, between The Princeton Review, Inc.
and Andrew Bonnani (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 27,
2006).

10.49 — Limited Waiver and Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated November 3, 2006, by and among
The Princeton Review, Inc., Princeton Review Operations L.L.C., the lender party thereto and Golub
Capital Incorporated, as Administrative Agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on November 8, 2006).

10.50 — Letter Agreement, dated December 15, 2006, by and among The Princeton Review, Inc., Princeton
Review Operations, L.L.C., lenders who become signatory from time to time, and Golub Capital
Incorporated (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 000-32469), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 20, 2006).

21.1 — Subsidiaries of the registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

23.1 — Consent of Emst & Young LLP.
24,1 — Powers of Attorney (included on the signature pages herelo).

31.1 — Certification of CEO Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 — Certification of CFO Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 — Centification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

(1) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit with the same number to our Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-43874), which was declared effective on June 18, 2001,

(2) Confidential portions of this document are omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment that has
been granted by the Commission, and have been filed separately with the Commission.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on
March 30, 2007.

THE PriNcETON REVIEW, INC.

By: /s{ STEPHEN MELVIN

Stephen Melvin
Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each individual whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints each of John S. Katzman, Mark
Chemnis and Stephen Melvin, such person’s true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent with full power of
substitution and resubstitution, for such person and in such person’s name, place and stead, in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto, and all documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting
unio each said attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as such
person might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that any said attorney-in-fact and
agent, or any substitute or substitutes of any of them, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature IiLIg Date
/s/ Howarp A. TULLMAN Chairman and Director March 30, 2007
{Howard A. Tullman)
fs/ Joun S, KATZMAN Chief Executive Officer March 30, 2007
(John S. Katzman) (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/  STEPHEN MELVIN Chief Financial Officer March 30, 2007
(Stephen Melvin) (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
/s/ RoBerT E. EvansON Director March 30, 2007
(Robert E. Evanson)
/s RicHAarD KatzmanN Director March 30, 2007
(Richard Katzman)
/s/  Joun C. REID Director March 30, 2007
(John C. Reid)
/s/  RICHARD SARNOFF Director March 30, 2007
(Richard Sarnoff)
fs/  SHEREE T. SPEAKMAN Director March 30, 2007

(Sheree T. Speakman)
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-116821) for the registration of 5,133,492 shares of
common stock of The Princeton Review, Inc.,

(2) Registration Statements (Form S-8 No. 333-63638 and Form S-8 No. 333-104136) pertaining to
The Princeton Review, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, and

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-77016) pertaining to The Princeton Review, Inc.
401(k) Employee Savings Plan, of our reports dated March 30, 2007, with respect to the consolidated
financial statements and schedule of the Princeton Review, Inc. and Subsidiaries, The Princeton Review,
Inc. and Subsidiaries” management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of The Princeton Review, Inc.
and Subsidiaries, included in the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2006.

fs/ Ernst & Younc LLP

New York, NY
March 30, 2007
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, John Katzman, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Princeton Review, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
staternents were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(fy and 15d-15(f), for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

fs/ Joun S. KATZMAN

John S. Katzman
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 30, 2007
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Stephen Melvin, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Princeton Review, Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f), for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
interna! control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/  STEPHEN MELVIN

Stephen Melvin
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Date: March 30, 2007
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT

Each of the undersigned, in his capacity as an officer of The Princeton Review, Inc. (the “Company™),
hereby certifies, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.5.C. 1350), that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2005 (the
“Report”} fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) the informatton contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

By: /s/ Joun §. Karzman

Name: John S. Katzman
Title:  Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 30, 2007

By: /s/  StepHEN MELVIN

Name: Stephen Melvin
Title:  Chief Financial Officer

Date; March 30, 2007

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to The Princeton
Review, Inc. and will be retained by The Princeton Review, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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CoRPORATE INFORMATION

Executive Officers
John 8. Katzman
Chief Executive Officer

Mark Chernis
President and Chief Operating Officer
Acting Executive Vice President
Tést Preparation Services

Stephen Melvin
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Kevin Howell
Executive Vice President and
General Manager, K-12 Services

Margot Lebenberg
Executive Vice President, Secretary
and General Counsel

Board of Directors
Howard A. Tullman
Chairman of the Board
Chairman, Experiencia Inc.

John §. Katzman
Chief Execusive Officer
The Princeton Review
Richard Katzman
Chief Executive Officer
KAZ, Ine.

Robert E. Evanson
Senior Advisor
Apax Partners, Inc.

John C. Reid”

Richard Sarnoff
President, Corporate Develapment Group
Random House

Sheree T. Speakman*

Outside Counsel
Patterson Belknap Webb 8 Tyler LLP
New York, NY

Auvditors
Ernst & Young, LLP
New York, NY

Transfer Agent

Contintental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
17 Battery Place, New York, NY 10004
(212) 509-4000

Stock Listing
Nasdaq: REVU

Annual Meeting
Thursday, June 14, 2007
10:00 am.
The Princeton Review

2315 Broadway, New York, NY 10024

Corporate Headquarters
2315 Broadway, New York, NY 10024
Tel- 212-874-8282
Fax: 212-874-0775

Chief Administrative Officer
Linda Nessim-Rubin

Government Relations
Steven Hodas

Public Relatiens/Investor Relations

Harriet Brand
212-874-8282 Ext. 1091

harrietb@review.com

*Ms. Speakman and Mr. Reid have announced their resignation from the Board of Directors,
effective May 13, 2007 and June 14, 2007, respectively. The Board of Directors has elected David
Lowenstein (President, Federated Network Technologies) and Richard E. (’Donnell (President,
The Fund for Colorado’s Future) to replace Ms. Speakman and Mr. Reid, effective immediately

upon their resignation.

All stataments in this Annual Beport that are not histarical facts are forward-fooking Its within the ing of saction 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1334 Such farward' Jaukmg stataments  may be identified by words such &s “believe”, “intend”, “expect”. “may”, “could”, “would”, “will", “should”,
“plan®, “praject”, . “gnticipate” or simifar stat 2] thasa st reflect our current views cenceraing future events, thesa

forward-loaking statements are subject ta risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forwsrd-foeking
statements, as a resuft of many factors, including but not fimited to the factors dascribed under the caption “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on form 10-K
that is included in this Annual Report. We undertake no cbligstion to update publicly any forward-loaking statements for any reasen, even if new information
becomes avaifable or other events occur i the future.
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